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The board of Directors (the “Board”) of the Company is pleased to announce the annual results
of the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2020. This
announcement, containing the full text of the 2020 Annual Report of the Company, complies
with the relevant disclosure requirements of the GEM Listing Rules in relation to information
to accompany preliminary announcement of Annual Results.
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Winto Group (Holdings) Limited
Hung Yuen Kin
Executive Director

Hong Kong, 29 October 2021

As at the date of this announcement, the Board comprises Mr. Hung Yuen Kin as executive
Director, Mr. Lui Man Wah as non-executive Director and Ms. Wong Chi Ling, Mr. Wong Ling
Yan Philip and Mr. Lee Man Yeung as independent non-executive Directors.

This announcement, for which the Directors collectively and individually accept full responsibility,
includes particulars given in compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
GEM of the Stock Exchange for the purpose of giving information with regard to the Company.
The Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that, to the best of their knowledge
and belief, the information contained in this announcement is accurate and complete in all material
respects and not misleading or deceptive, and there are no other matters the omission of which
would make any statement herein or this announcement misleading.

This announcement will remain on the “Latest Company Announcements” page of the GEM
website at http://www.hkgem.com for at least 7 days from the date of its posting and be posted
and remains on the website of the Company at http://www.wintogroup.hk.

In the case of inconsistency, the English text of this announcement shall prevail over the Chinese
text.
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CHARACTERISTICS OF GEM OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED
(THE “STOCK EXCHANGE”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate small and mid-sized companies to
which a higher investment risk may be attached than other companies listed on the Stock Exchange.
Prospective investors should be aware of the potential risks of investing in such companies and should
make the decision to invest only after due and careful consideration.

Given that the companies listed on GEM are generally small and mid-sized companies, there is a risk that
securities traded on GEM may be more susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded on the
Main Board and no assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock Exchange take no responsibility for the contents of this
report, make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for
any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of Winto Group (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) collectively
and individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance with the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on GEM of the Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”) for the purpose of giving information
with regard to the Company. The Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that to the best of their
knowledge and belief the information contained in this report is accurate and complete in all material respects and
not misleading or deceptive, and there are no other matters the omission of which would make any statement herein
or this report misleading.
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Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”)
of Winto Group (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”, together with
its subsidiaries, the “Group”), | am pleased to present the annual
report of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020 to our
shareholders and investors.

Year 2020 has been an extremely challenging one for all
businesses right around the world. The outbreak of the COVID-19
pandemic since early 2020 has caused severe disruption to the
overall market’s business activities and global and local economic
environment due to the imposition of a series of governmental
control measures. Nevertheless, the Group continued to
implement the business development plan to revitalise its
business to a sufficient and sustainable level, including among
others, (i) actively sourcing new contracts to maintain the growth
momentum; (i) implementing measures to improve profitability;
iy implementing strategies to expand the businesses in billboard
advertising, advertising planning agency and design and
production to diverse overall business risks; (iv) implementing
stringent cost control measures; and (v) implementing control
measures to minimise the impact of COVID-19 outbreak.

The financial performance of the Group has been improved
remarkably since November 2019, for the year ended 31
December 2020, the revenue generated from the publications
and media advertising business amounted to approximately
HK$21,478,000, representing a significant increase as compared
to last year.

Looking forward to 2021, the Group will pay close attention to
the development of the outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic and
continue to review its existing business from time to time and
strive to improve the business operations and financial position
of the Group. The Company will continue to actively identify
potential business and investment opportunities to expand its
source of income.

On behalf of the board, | would like to take this opportunity to
thank our directors, our dedicated management and staff for
their wavering support and commitment. We would also like to
express our gratitude for the continuing support and trust of our
shareholders, business partners, readers and customers. We
hope to join hands with each other to achieve improvements and
deliver success continuously.

Lui Man Wah
Chairman

Hong Kong, 29 October 2021
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWR DN

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
Continuing Operation

The Group recorded total revenue of approximately
HK$29,866,000 for the year ended 31 December 2020,
representing an increase of approximately 43.3% from
approximately HK$20,838,000 for the year ended 31 December
2019. The Group recorded total gross profit of approximately
HK$15,144,000 for the year ended 31 December 2020,
representing an increase of approximately 62.0% from
approximately HK$9,349,000 for the year ended 31 December
2019. The Group’s net loss decreased to approximately
HK$3,036,000 for the year ended 31 December 2020 from
approximately HK$39,701,000 for the year ended 31 December
2019. Loss per share of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2020 was approximately HK$0.66 cents. The
Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2020.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group is principally engaged in (i) sales and distribution of
publications, and the sales of print and online advertising spaces
and provision of advertising design and related production
services, (i) sales of billboard advertising spaces and provision
of advertisement sourcing agency services, and (i) promotion of
products and services by organizing exhibitions and shows.

Publications and Advertising Business

During the year, the Group owned and published six publications,
including Exmoo News, Travel Macao, Motoz Trader, Motoz
Trader (Free), Shopping Monthly (a 2-in-1 dual cover magazine),
and Shopping Monthly (Free) (a 2-in-1 dual cover magazine).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The publications of the Group cover readership of different
market segments and age groups by focusing on different areas
of interests in lifestyle, including automotive, beauty and fashion,
property, dining and electronic products.

o Exmoo News is a Chinese-language daily newspaper
(published every Monday to Friday) published in Macau
which has a wide range of readership by covering different
areas including Macau daily local news as well as Hong
Kong, the PRC and international news, finance and
economy, entertainment, sports, fashion and lifestyle,
cultural knowledge, etc. As at the date of this annual report,
the distribution points of Exmoo News in Macau covering
commercial buildings, luxury apartments, banks, airport
and lounge, ports, petrol kiosk, food centre, car parks,
universities and governmental offices, etc. and Exmoo News
is one of the publications with highest circulation and widest
coverage in Macau.

° Travel Macao is a Chinese-language travel leisure
fortnightly magazine (published alternate Friday) published
in Macau which provides comprehensive information to
readers relating to travel, dining, shopping, culture and
entertainment in Macau. It is distributed in major terminals in
Hong Kong and Macau as well as certain hotels in Macau.
In addition to the printed magazine distributed in Macau and
Hong Kong, Travel Macao also provides website version,
digital social media platforms such as Facebook page and
WeChat platform to readers.

° Motoz Trader is a fortnightly magazine that focuses on new
car models, second-hand car market and properties while
also provides lifestyle information including dinning, fashion
and beauty.

° Motoz Trader (Free) is a free fortnightly magazine that is
extracted from Motoz Trader.

° Shopping Monthly is a fortnightly magazine and focuses on
updated information on consumer products.

° Shopping Monthly (Free) is a free fortnightly magazine that
is extracted from Shopping Monthly.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the revenue generated
from the publications and advertising business amounted to
approximately HK$21,478,000, increased from approximately
HK$7,337,000 for the year ended 31 December 2019.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWR DN

Outdoor Advertising Business

The Group has been diversifying its revenue stream by developing
the billboard advertising business (the “Billboard Advertising
Business”). During the year, the Group cooperated with certain
business partners and entered into continuing contracts for usage
of the advertisement spaces of billboards in Macau and Zhuhai,
namely Hong Kong-Zhuhai-Macau-Bridge (“HZMB”) Macau
Section Passenger Clearance Building for a term of 5.5 years
from 1 January 2020 and Zhuhai Hengqgin Passenger Clearance
Building for a term of one year till 31 August 2021.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the revenue
generated from the outdoor advertising business amounted to
approximately HK$3,714,000 increased from approximately
HK$54,000 for the year ended 31 December 2019.

Exhibition and Trade Show Business and Related
Services

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the revenue generated
from the exhibition and trade show business and related services
amounted to approximately HK$4,674,000, decreased from
approximately HK$13,447,000 for the year ended 31 December
2019.

PROSPECTS

Looking forward to 2021, the Group will pay close attention to
the uncertainties in the economic environment, and stay alert to
formulate strategies to pursue steady development and strive for
generous returns to our shareholders.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Continuing Operations
Revenue

Total revenue increased by approximately 43.3% from
approximately HK$20,838,000 for the year ended 31 December
2019 to approximately HK$29,866,000 for the year ended 31
December 2020. It was mainly due to the Group extended its
customers base in Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay
Area. The revenue generated from publications and advertising
business increased to approximately HK$21,478,000 as
compared with approximately HK$7,337,000 for the year ended
31 December 2019.

The revenue of the Group contributed from the exhibition
and trade show business and related services, amounted to
approximately HK$4,674,000 or 15.6% of the total revenue of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2020.

Cost of Sales

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the cost of sales of the
publications and advertising business and exhibition and trade
show business and related services amounted to approximately
HK$12,408,000 or 84.3% and approximately HK$2,314,000 or
15.7%, respectively of the total cost of sales.

Gross Profit

Total gross profit increased by approximately 62.0% from
approximately HK$9,349,000 for the year ended 31 December
2019 to approximately HK$15,144,000 for the year ended 31
December 2020. The increase in the gross profit was mainly due
to the expansion of publications and advertising business.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWR DN

Other Income

Other income increased by approximately HK$1.7 million from
approximately HK$88,000 for the year ended 31 December 2019
to approximately HK$1,816,000 for the year ended 31 December
2020. The income was mainly attributable to the subsidies
granted under the Employment Support Scheme by The Hong
Kong Special Administrative Region Government and The Macau
Special Administrative Region Government.

Operating Expenses

The operating expenses of the Group decreased by
approximately 35.1% from approximately HK$23,720,000 for the
year ended 31 December 2019 to approximately HK$15,401,000
for the year ended 31 December 2020. The decrease in the
operating expenses was mainly due to effective cost control on
administrative expenses.

Other Gains or Losses

The other gains or losses represented a net loss of approximately
HK$623,000 for the year ended 31 December 2020, mainly
consisted of the loss on debt modification of financial liabilities.

Finance Costs

Finance costs of the Group amounted to approximately
HK$3,660,000 for the year ended 31 December 2020, compared
to approximately HK$1,621,000 for the year ended 31 December
2019. The increase in finance costs was mainly due to interest
paid to an independent third party borrower and imputed interest
on the shareholder loan.

Income Tax Expense

Income tax expense for the Group was approximately
HK$11,000 for the year ended 31 December 2020, compared
to approximately HK$174,000 for the year ended 31 December
2019.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Loss from Continuing Operations Attributable to Owners of
the Company

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group’s loss from
continuing operations attributable to owners of the Company
decreased to approximately HK$2,847,000 from approximately
HK$39,189,000 for the year ended 31 December 2019. This
was mainly attributable to increase in sales in publications and
advertising business.

Liquidity, Financial Resources and Capital Structure
There has been no change in the capital structure of the Group

during the year ended 31 December 2020. The share capital of
the Company only comprises ordinary shares.
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As at 31 December

M12H31H
2020 2019
20204 20194
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHET FHET
(Restated)
(E7)
Current assets MENEE 17,636 13,447
Current liabilities mENEE 18,830 18,361
Current ratio VLIPS 0.9 0.7

The current ratio of the Group as at 31 December 2020 was
approximately 0.9 times as compared to approximately 0.7 times
as at 31 December 2019.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had cash and cash
equivalents of approximately HK$3,212,000 (2019: approximately
HK$3,603,000).

As at 31 December 2020, the Group has no bank loans but has
short-term advance from independent third party of approximately
HK$7,000,000 (2019: approximately HK$10,000,000).

Gearing Ratio
The gearing ratio of the Group, calculated as total borrowings

over shareholders’ fund, was approximately 348% as at 31
December 2020 (2019 (restated): -172%).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWR DN

Trade Receivables Turnover Days

The trade receivables decreased from approximately
HK$6,968,000 for the year ended 31 December 2019 to
approximately HK$5,319,000 for the year ended 31 December
2020, but the trade receivable turnover days decreased from
approximately 82 days for the year ended 31 December 2019 to
approximately 75 days for the year ended 31 December 2020.
All outstanding trade receivable balances are reviewed by the
Group’s sales and marketing department on a monthly basis to
ensure that any overdue receivable is promptly monitored and
appropriate collection actions are taken.

Treasury Policies

The Group adopts a conservative approach towards its treasury
policies. The Group strives to reduce exposure to credit risk by
performing ongoing credit evaluation of the financial conditions
of its clients. To manage liquidity risk, the Board closely monitors
the Group’s liquidity position to ensure that the liquidity structure
of the Group’s assets, liabilities and commitments can meet its
funding requirements.

Significant Investments Held

During the year ended 31 December 2020, there was no other
significant investment held by the Group.

Future Plans for Material Investments and Capital Assets

Save as disclosed in this annual report, the Group did not have
other plans for material investments and capital assets.

Material Acquisitions and Disposals of Subsidiaries and
Joint Ventures

During the year ended 31 December 2020, there was no material
acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries and joint ventures.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group completed
the disposal of 51% equity interest in Qihui Group (International)
Limited.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Pledge of Assets

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had no material pledge of
assets.

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2020, the Group did not have any significant
contingent liabilities.

Capital Commitments

As at 31 December 2020, the Group did not have any significant
capital commitments.

Information on Employees and Remuneration Policy

As at 31 December 2020, the employee headcount (not including
Directors) of the Group was 33 (2019: 32) and the total staff
costs, including Directors’ emoluments for the year ended 31
December 2020, amounted to approximately HK$9,477,000
(2019: approximately HK$12,020,000).

The Group offers competitive remuneration packages
commensurate with industry practice. In order to attract and
retain valuable employees, the Group reviews the performance
of its employees annually and such review results will be taken
into account while having the annual salary review and promotion
appraisal. In addition to a basic salary, bonuses would be paid
to staff with reference to the financial performance of the Group.
The Group would also provide trainings or seminars relating to
publication business and offer options that may be granted to
the employees under the share option scheme. The Group pays
commission to its sales and marketing staff which is calculated
based on an agreed percentage of sharing specified in their
respective contracts in accordance of the total monthly sales
solicited by such staff which is arrived at mutual agreement
between the Company and the respective staff.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Details of the event after the reporting period are disclosed in
note 45 to the consolidated financial statements.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

EESEEFET

DIRECTORS
Executive Director

Mr. Hung Yuen Kin, aged 40, was appointed as executive
Director of the Group since 16 October 2019. Mr. Hung has over
10 years of experience in media and advertisement industries.
He obtained a Bachelor of Arts degree in Journalism and
Communication from Chu Hai University in 2005.

Mr. Hung was appointed as a deputy managing director of Macau
Federal Commercial Association of Convention & Exhibition
Industry in September 2019 until 2021. He served as a media
production director of Central — Companhia de Communicacao
International, LDA, a company incorporated in Macau, which
is principally engaged in media, advertisement and exhibition
business from April 2019 to September 2019. He served as a
business development director of Pentalker Studio Publication
Co., Ltd., which is a book publisher providing cultural and travel
information in Macau from July 2016 to April 2019. He also
served as a deputy editor-in-chief of “NEW GEN. Monthly” of New
Generation Culture Association from June 2017 to July 2018. He
was also an editor in chief of Central International Communication
Co, Ltd, which is principally engaged in media, advertisement
and exhibition business from June 2011 to July 2016. Mr.
Hung served as an editor of Wide Connection Limited (being a
subsidiary of New Media Group Holdings Limited, now known
as Evergrande Health Industry Group Limited, a company listed
on the Stock Exchange, stock code: 708), which was principally
engaged in magazine publishing, from April 2010 to June 2011.
He also served as an editor in chief of Prefix Publication Limited,
which is a book publisher providing travel, leisure, lifestyle and
cultural information in Hong Kong from March 2009 to April 2010.

Non-executive Director

Mr. Lui Man Wah, aged 39, was appointed as non-executive
Director of the Group since 16 October 2019. Mr. Lui is also the
executive director of Sun International Group Limited (a company
listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange, stock code: 8029). Mr.
Lui obtained a Bachelor of Arts degree in business studies from
the Hong Kong Polytechnic University in 2004 and obtained a
Master of Commerce degree from Macquarie University in 2005.
Mr. Lui has over 10 years of experience in securities and financial
institutions. He is experienced in managing listed companies in
Hong Kong.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

Independent non-executive Directors

Ms. Wong Chi Ling, aged 49, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director of the Group since 16 October 2019.
Ms. Wong possesses over 25 years of experience in finance,
accounting and company secretarial services experience in Hong
Kong. She obtained a master degree of arts in parent education
and a professional diploma in guidance and counselling from
The Chinese University of Hong Kong, a postgraduate diploma in
early childhood education from The Hong Kong Baptist University
and a bachelor degree of arts in accountancy from the Hong
Kong Polytechnic University. Ms. Wong is a fellow member
of The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants in the
United Kingdom, a fellow member of The Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales and an associate member of
Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

Ms. Wong is currently the group financial controller of RNP
Jewelry Design Limited, which engages in the trading and
manufacturing of jewelry products, since March 2015. Ms. Wong
is responsible for corporate accounting, finance and corporate
secretarial matters. Ms. Wong worked in H.C. Wong & Co.,
Certified Public Accountants (Practising), responsible for providing
corporate secretarial services from August 2007 to March 2015,
with her last positions as senior manager. She served as an
accounting officer Il of the government of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region from April 1997 to May 2007. She also
served as an accounting manager of Sam Woo Engineering
Equipment Limited from September 1996 to April 1997 and a
staff accountant at Ernst & Young from August 1994 to August
1996.

Mr. Wong Ling Yan Philip, aged 40, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director of the Group since 16
October 2019. Mr. Wong has over 10 years of experience
in management and business operation. He is a member of
the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors and obtained a Master
Degree of Business Administration from the Chinese University
of Hong Kong in 2010. Mr. Wong is currently the chief executive
officer of YOOV Internet Technology Limited (“YOOV”), which
specialize in providing cloud-based enterprise resource planning
(ERP) solutions to small and medium-sized enterprises (SME),
since January 2016. Prior to the formation of YOOV, Mr. Wong
operated a number of English learning centres in Hong Kong
from December 2012 to December 2016. He also served as
an operations manager of Nan Fung Resources Limited from
March 2012 to November 2012. He worked in the Real Estate
Asia Division of Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. (Hong Kong branch) from
July 2007 to March 2011 with his last position as real estate
relationship manager.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

EESEEFET

Mr. Lee Man Yeung, aged 43, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director of the Group since 16
October 2019. Mr. Lee has over 13 years of experience in
business management in the construction industry. Mr. Lee
obtained a certificate in Business Administration and a diploma
in Business Management (Banking & Finance) from Holmesglen
Institute of TAFE in Melbourne, Australia in May 1999 and August
2000 respectively. Mr. Lee worked at Hang Tat Engineering
Company Limited as a project manager from 2003 to 2010. He
was the business owner of APEX Construction & Development
Limited from September 2008 to May 2015. He is the founder
and has been a director of Le Point Management Company
Limited, a company principally engaged in the business of
management of restaurants and hospitality group in China since
January 2015. Mr. Lee is an independent non-executive director
of Pak Wing Group (Holdings) Limited (a company listed on GEM
of the Stock Exchange, stock code: 8316) since September
2018. He is also an engineering consultant of Chilego Engineering
Co., Limited since December 2010.

CHANGES IN DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION

Upon specific enquiry by the Company and following
confirmations from Directors, save as otherwise set out in this
Report, there is no change in the information of the Directors
required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 17.50A(1) of the GEM
Listing Rules.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The Directors are pleased to present their report and the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2020.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding and
those of the principal subsidiaries of the Company are set out in
note 43 to the consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group during the year and a
discussion on the Group’s future business development and
possible risk and uncertainties facing the Group are set out in
Chairman’s Statement as well as the Management Discussion
and Analysis of this annual report respectively. An analysis of
the Group’s performance during the year using financial key
performance indicators is set out in the Management Discussion
and Analysis of this annual report.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group’s business
operation made continuous effort on minimizing damage to
the environment and ensuring employees’ well-being. No non-
compliance in relation to environmental and social aspects was
recorded. Engagement with stakeholders has resulted in raised
concerns on key material issues, which include (i) employee
health and safety, (i) labour standards, (i) intellectual property
(“IP”) rights, (iv) customer data protection and (v) anti-corruption.
These aspects had already been managed by the Group and
the Group will continue to keep close communication with
its stakeholders for advancing its environmental, social and
governance management.

Discussion on the Group’s environmental policies and
performance, relationships with its key stakeholders and
compliance with relevant laws and regulations which have
a significant impact on the Group will be provided in the
Environmental, Social and Governance Report which will be
published on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange no later than three months after the publication of this
annual report.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ESERE

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020
and the state of affairs of the Group covering the same period
are set out in the consolidated financial statements in this annual
report. The Board does not recommend the payment of any final
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2020.

SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for
the last five financial years is set out on page 192 of this annual
report.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in share capital of the Company during
the year are set out in note 34 to the consolidated financial
statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2020, the Company did not have any reserve
available for distribution to the shareholders.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s articles of association or the laws of the Cayman
Islands which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on
a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 December 2020, neither the Company
nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of
the Company’s listed securities.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

Sales to the Group’s five largest customers accounted for
approximately 60% of the total sales for the year ended 31
December 2020 and sales to the largest customer included
therein amounted to approximately 19%. Purchases from the
Group’s five largest suppliers accounted for approximately 62%
of the total purchases for the year ended 31 December 2020 and
purchases from the largest supplier included therein amounted to
approximately 21%.

Save as disclosed, none of the Directors or any of their close
associates or any shareholders (which, to the best knowledge
of the Directors, own more than 5% of the Company’s issued
shares) had any interest in the Group’s five largest customers or
suppliers.

ARRANGEMENT TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the sections headed “Share Option
Scheme” and “Directors’ Interests and Short Positions in Shares,
Underlying Shares and Debentures”, at no time during the year
was the Company, any of its subsidiaries, its ultimate holding
company or any subsidiary of such ultimate holding company a
party to any arrangements to enable the Directors or the chief
executive of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any
other body corporate.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ESERE

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report
were:

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Mr. Hung Yuen Kin
Ms. Li Ka Yee Daphne (Resigned on 4 December 2020)

Non-executive Director

Mr. Lui Man Wah (Chairman)

Independent non-executive Directors

Ms. Wong Chi Ling

Mr. Wong Ling Yan Philip

Mr. Lee Man Yeung

In accordance with Article 84(1), three directors will retire at the

forthcoming annual general meeting (“AGM”) and, all of them,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the AGM.

BIOGRAPHIES DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

The biographical details of the Directors of the Group are set out
on pages 14 to 16 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director proposed for re-election at the AGM has a service
contract with the Company which is not determinable by the
Company within one year without payment of compensation (other
than statutory compensation).

All independent non-executive Directors have entered into a letter
of appointment with the Company under which their term of
appointment is three years.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

No transaction, arrangement or contract of significance in relation
to the Company’s business to which the Company, any of its
subsidiaries, its ultimate holding company or any subsidiary
of such ultimate holding company was a party and in which a
Director or an entity connected with the Director was materially
interested, either directly or indirectly, subsisted during or at the
end of the year.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Other than the share option scheme disclosed in section “Share
Option Scheme” in this report and Note 37 to the consolidated
financial statements, no equity-linked agreements that will or
may result in the Company issuing shares or that require the
Company to enter into any agreements that will or may result in
the Company issuing shares were entered into by the Company
during the year or subsisted at the end of the year.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

During the year ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, there is no
other material acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries and affiliated
companies.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on Company’s remuneration
policy and structure for all Directors and senior management,
having regard to market competitiveness, individual performance
and achievement. The Company has adopted a share option
scheme as an incentive to Directors and eligible participants,
details of the scheme is set out in section “Share Option
Scheme” in this report and Note 37 to the consolidated financial
statements.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Group adopted the share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”) on 16 February 2015, under which the Directors may
grant options to eligible persons to subscribe for the Company’s
shares, subject to the terms and conditions stipulated therein.
The Share Option Scheme will expire on 16 February 2025.
For further details, please refer to Note 37 to the consolidated
financial statements.

As at 16 October 2019, all of the share options granted have
been cancelled.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

As far as the Directors are aware of, none of the Directors, the
controlling shareholders of the Company or their respective close
associates has any business or interest that competes or may
compete with the business of the Group and any other conflicts
of interests which any such person has or may have with the
Group.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS
AND/OR SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE
COMPANY OR ANY ASSOCIATED CORPORATION

As at 31 December 2020, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executive in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (“SFO”))
which were notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests or short positions which they were taken or deemed to
have under such provisions of the SFO), or which were recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company under Section
352 of the SFO, or which were, pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.67
of the GEM Listing Rules, required to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange, were as follows:

(A) Interest in Shares of the Company

EERERBRRRGFXBHERS

AEFEMA > MEEF - AR AIERBRRER
EXRANETHEAREEMERAREXKE
PR R A BE BB F M RIS Sk s - TR
RS AT BEE AR A R A TR A B 2 RfF 2
IR EAF mE R -

EERIETBAEBRAEAQATEM
EMERANKRSD - MERD R EER
HERER KA

MR2020F12A31H » EFERETETHRAERAK
ANEI S E AR AR (E& BB AN E571
EESH MBS GO (EHRBEED ) EXVIE)
WAk - RO REREBEFEEREESR
HIEIRBIEXVEBETRSD BEHNE AR AKX
BRXAMER AR (BIEREREES K
EIEPI B BIEXHEE R BER S A
B HIREBEEBESF R ERHIEISMFERAR
AFEZELMARENER AR - HIRE
GEMEMRAIFES.46E5.67KBHMEARNE &
B FTR RS ROR BRI

(A) RAERFRMDAER

Approximate
percentage of
issued Share

Capital of

Name of Director Capacity Interest in Shares the Company
ERARE BT

EEpR 14 REROHNERZ REASNESHL
Mr. Lui Man Wah Interests in a controlled corporation (Note 1) 320,023,300 (L) 74.08%

BXERLE A E s (M)

22 —— WINTO GROUP (HOLDINGS) LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2020



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

Notes:

1. Mr. Lui Man Wah is the ultimate beneficial owner of these
Shares, of which Shares is directly held by Source Creation
International Limited (“Source Creation”). The entire issued share
capital of Source Creation are wholly owned by Mr. Lui Man
Wah.

2. Duplication occurs in respect of the interests held by Mr. Lui
Man Wah and Source Creation which they represented the same
block of Shares.

3. As at 31 December 2020, the Company has 432,000,000
Shares in issue.

Abbreviation: “L” stands for long positions.
(B) Interests in Share Options of the Company

Details of the particulars of interests (all being personal
interests) in share options held during the year ended
31 December 2020 by Directors (and/or their respective
associate(s)) to subscribe for Shares of the Company
granted/exercisable under the share option scheme of
the Company are disclosed in the section “Share Option
Scheme” of this report.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, none of the
Directors nor chief executives had interests or short positions in
the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or
any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV
of the SFO) that were required to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of
the SFO (including interests and short positions which were taken
or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or were
recorded pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or were otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND/OR SHORT POSITION
IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE
COMPANY

As at 31 December 2020, so far as the Directors are aware, the
following persons (other than the Directors or chief executives of
the Company) had or were deemed or taken to have the following
interests and/or short positions in the shares or the underlying
shares of the Company which were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 2 and
3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were required to be recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company under section
336 of the SFO:

Long positions in the Shares or Underlying Shares

FERREEMALTREARTREG KR
MEROHWERR, KR

R2020F12H318  WEERMAM - T AT
(RRRIESHETEZTHRABRINEA IHER
VESK & 1B A IR AR B B0 S AR B AR 1D P IR 1%
FHEREEEMIEXVERE2RID RBAME AR
A REE R AT - AR ESN AR RIRIEE 5 &
BB E36ETFEMELMM TAEZE R,
AR

RGBS EERG TR
Approximate
Number of  percentage of
Shares or  shareholding
Underlying Shares interests  Note
RAOSEBRAHE RESOEIL M

Name Nature of interest
He/ 4% Bt

Source Creation International Limited Beneficial owner
BRI AR AR ERBAA

Note:

1. As at 31 December 2020, the Company has 432,000,000 shares in
issues.

Abbreviation: “L” stands for long positions.

Save as disclosed above, the Directors are not aware of any
other persons who had any interests or short positions in the
shares or underlying shares of the Company which would fall to
be disclosed to the Company and the Stock Exchange under
the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or
which were required to be recorded in the register required to
be kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO, as at 31
December 2020.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of related party transactions of the Group during the
year ended 31 December 2020 are set out in note 42 to
the consolidated financial statements. Those related party
transactions constitute continuing connected transactions
exempted from the reporting, announcement and independent
shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter 20 of the
GEM Listing Rules. The Company confirmed that it has complied
with the disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 20
of the GEM Listing Rules.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Company had not entered into any
connected transaction which is subject to the disclosure
requirements under the GEM Listing Rules.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that was publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of its Directors, as at the
date of this Annual Report, there was sufficient public float of not
less than 25% of the Company’s issued shares as required under
the GEM Listing Rules.

INTERESTS OF COMPLIANCE ADVISER

As at 31 December 2020, as notified by the Company’s
compliance adviser, Lego Corporate Finance Limited (“Lego”),
neither Lego nor any of its directors, employees or close
associates had any interest in the share capital of the Company or
any member of the Group (including options or rights to subscribe
for such securities) or otherwise in relation to the Company which
is required to be notified to the Company pursuant to Rule 6A.32
of the GEM Listing Rules.
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AUDITOR

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, who was the auditor of the Group
since 2014, has resigned as the auditor of the Group with effect
from 24 January 2020.

The Company has appointed HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
(“HLB”) as the auditors of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2019 with effect from 24 January 2020.

HLB has resigned as the auditor of the Company with effect
from 14 April 2021 and Moore Stephens CPA Limited (“Moore
Stephens”) had been appointed as the auditor of the Company
with effect from 14 April 2021 to fill the casual vacancy following
the resignation of HLB. Moore Stephens resigned as the auditor
of the Company with effect from 30 August 2021 and McM
(HK) CPA Limited (“McM”) has been appointed as the auditor of
the Company with effect from 30 August 2021 to fill the causal
vacancy following the resignation of Moore Stephens. HLB
and Moore Stephens confirmed in its letter of resignation that
there are no matters in relation to its resignation that need to be
brought to the attention of the shareholders of the Company. The
Board also confirmed that there are no disagreements between
HLB and the Company and Moore Stephens and the Company
respectively or unresolved matters concerning the change of
the auditor which should be brought to the attention of the
shareholders of the Company.

The consolidated financial statements for the Reporting Period
have been audited by McM will retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment at the forthcoming annual general
meeting. A resolution to re-appoint McM and to authorize
the Directors to fix their remuneration will be proposed at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board
LUI MAN WAH
Chairman

Hong Kong, 29 October 2021
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard
of corporate governance practices in order to safeguard the
interests of its shareholders. To accomplish this, the Company
has adopted the principles and code provisions of the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Codes”) contained in Appendix 15 to
the GEM Listing Rules as its own code of corporate governance.
During the year, the Company had been in compliance with the
CG Codes as set out in Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing Rules,
except for the provision detailed below:

Code Provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of chairman and
chief executive officer (“CEQ”) should be separated and should
not be performed by the same person. The Company currently
has no CEO. All duties of CEO are shared among the executive
Directors, the Board believes that the present arrangement
enables the Company to make and implement decisions
promptly, and thus achieve the Company’s objectives efficiently
and effectively in response to the changing environment.

The Company will continue to review its corporate governance
practices in order to enhance its corporate governance standard,
comply with regulatory requirements and meet the growing
expectations of shareholders and investors.

CODE OF CONDUCT FOR DIRECTORS’
SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding
securities transactions by Directors on terms no less exacting
than the required standard of dealings concerning securities
transactions by the Directors as set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of
the GEM Listing Rules. Specific enquiry has been made of all the
Directors, and the Directors confirmed that they have complied
with the required standard of dealings and its code of conduct
regarding Director’s securities transactions during the year ended
31 December 2020.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Directors and officers are indemnified under a directors’ and
officers’ liability insurance against any liability incurred by them in
the discharge of their duties while holding office as the Directors
and officers of the Company.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Company is governed by the Board, which has the
responsibility for leadership and monitoring of the Company. The
Directors are collectively responsible for promoting the success of
the Group by directing and supervising the Group’s affairs.

The Board sets strategies and directions for the Group’s
activities with a view to developing its business and enhancing
shareholders’ value. The Board has delegated the daily operation
and day-to-day management of the Group as well as the
implementation of the Board’s policies and strategies to the
executive Director and management of the Group.

All Directors carry out their duties in good faith and in compliance
with applicable laws and regulations, making decisions objectively
and acting in the interests of the Company and its shareholders
at all times.

Board Composition

As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprises
one executive Director, one non-executive Director and three
independent non-executive Directors (“INEDs”) as named
below. An updated list of the Directors identifying their roles
and functions is posted on GEM’s website and the Company’s
website from time to time.

Executive Directors

Mr. Hung Yuen Kin
Ms. Li Ka Yee Daphne (Resigned on 4 December 2020)

Non-executive Director

Mr. Lui Man Wah (Chairman)
Independent Non-executive Directors
Ms. Wong Chi Ling

Mr. Wong Ling Yan Philip

Mr. Lee Man Yeung

The biographical details of the Directors are set out in the
“Biographical Details of Directors” section of this Annual Report.
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In compliance with Rules 5.05(1) and (2) of the GEM Listing Rules,
Ms. Wong Chi Ling has appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related financial management expertise.

Each Director has sufficient experience to hold the position so as
to carry out his/her duties effectively and efficiently. The Board
provides the Group with diversified industry expertise, advised the
management on strategic development and the Board maintains
high standard of compliance with financial and other mandatory
reporting requirements as well as provides adequate checks
and balances to safeguard the interests of Shareholders and the
Company as a whole.

There is no relationship, including financial, business, family or
other material/relevant relationship(s) between members of the
Board.

Role and Function of the Board and the Management

The Company has set out the respective functions and
responsibilities which can be reserved to the Board and
delegated to management or Board committees. The Board
delegates day to-day operations of the Group to management
while reserving certain key matters, mainly relating to the approval
and monitoring of the Group’s overall strategies, policies and
business plans; and overseeing and evaluating the performance
of the Group. It is also responsible for promoting the success of
the Group and its businesses by directing and supervising the
Group’s affairs. Board committees for specific functions are also
set up to ensure efficient Board operations. The composition and
functions of each Board committee and their major roles and
functions are described below. The final decision still rests with
the Board unless otherwise provided for in the terms of reference
of the relevant committees.

Board Diversity

In compliance with the requirement set out in Code Provision
A.5.6 of the CG Codes, the Company has adopted diversity
policy (the “Board Diversity Policy”) which sets out its approach to
achieve diversity on the Board, and a sustainable and balanced
development of the Company.
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The Company seeks to achieve Board diversity through the
consideration of a number of factors, including but not limited to
gender, age, cultural and educational background, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. The Company
will also take into account factors based on its own business
model and specific needs from time to time. The ultimate
decision will be based on merit and contribution that the selected
candidates will bring to the Board.

DIRECTORS’ ATTENDANCE AT MEETINGS

The following table shows Directors’ attendance at Board,
committees and shareholders meetings held in the financial year
ended 31 December 2020:

ARAREBEZTEZTEMEELERE -
BEETRRMER - Fik - ERBEESR
BEER - e - MBRRBEH o RRF]TR
BIARREEESFEBEALART2ERNA
ARE RBERAEHENEBERREASBRE
FETRNEZRELNERME

EEREBNHERBR

TRBATEELEFEREE2020F12831H (LB
BEEETHNESTSRZECSHURBEK
2B -

Corporate
Governance
and Risk
Audit  Nomination Remuneration Management General
Board  Committee = Committee Committee =~ Committee =~ Meeting
E -
RRER
Exg ENZRE REZEY FHzEES ZEg® KRK®
Executive Directors HTES
Mr. Hung Yuen Kin RRRREEE 717 4/4 N/AT i £ N/AT i@ £ N/AT i A 11
Ms. Li Ka Yee Daphne FRELT
(resigned on 4 December (R2020F
2020) 1254 A§F) 77 4/4 N/ATE R N/ATNE N/ATNE A 11
Non-executive Director kBITES
Mr. Lui Man Wah BXELE " N/ATiE A 2/2 2/2 11 NATER
Independent non-executive BYFHTES
Directors
Ms. Wong Chi Ling BETRLL 77 4/4 212 2/2 1/1 1/1
Mr. Wong Ling Yan Philip BEREAE 777 4/4 2/2 2/2 1/1 1/1
Mr. Lee Man Yeung FFEE 77 4/4 2/2 2/2 11 11
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The Group adopted the practice of holding Board meetings
that included executive Directors, non-executive Director and
INED presented in person or through electronic means of
communication regularly at least four time every year. During
regular meetings of the Board, the Directors discussed and
formulated the overall strategies of the Group, monitored financial
performances and reviewed the financial results, as well as
discussed and decided on other significant matters. The Board
will also meet on other occasions when a board-level decision on
a particular matter is required.

Generally, notice of at least fourteen days should be given for a
Company'’s regular Board meeting. For all other Board meetings,
reasonable notice should be given. The Directors will receive the
agenda and accompanying documents tabled at the meeting
before regular Board meetings and will be given an opportunity
to include matters in the agenda for discussion from the Board
meetings, Board committees met on other occasions during
which matter relating to their respective terms of reference
was discussed. The Board committee members would receive
notice, agenda and documents to be tabled for consideration in
advance of each meeting in accordance with the CG Codes and
respective terms of reference.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF
THE DIRECTORS

The executive Director has entered into an executive Director’s
service agreement with the Company and each of the non-
executive Director and INEDs has entered into a letter of
appointment with specific terms with the Company with an initial
term of three years, subject to renewal by the Company. All
Directors are subject to retirement by rotation and are eligible for
re-election at the general meeting in accordance with the Articles
of Association.
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Pursuant to the Articles, at each annual general meeting, one-
third of the Directors for the time being (or, if their number is not a
multiple of three (3), then the number nearest to but not less than
one-third) shall retire from office by rotation, provided that every
Director (including those appointed for a specific term) shall be
subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years.
Any Director appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall
hold office until the first general meeting of Members after his
appointment and be subject to re-election at the meeting and any
Director appointed by the Board as an addition to the existing
Board shall hold office only until the next following annual general
meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible for re-election.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received annual confirmations of independence
from each of the INEDs in accordance with Rule 5.09 of the GEM
Listing Rules. The Directors consider that all the INEDs remain
independent.

DIRECTORS’ PARTICIPATION IN CONTINUOUS
PROFESSIONAL TRAININGS

Directors keep themselves abreast of responsibilities as a Director
and of the conduct, business activities and development of the
Company.

Every newly appointed Director will receive formal, comprehensive
and tailored induction on the first occasion of his/her appointment
to ensure appropriate understanding of the business and
operations of the Company and full awareness of director’s
responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules and
relevant statutory requirements.

Directors should participate in appropriate continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge
and skills to ensure that their contribution to the Board remains
informed and relevant. Internally facilitated briefings for directors
will be arranged and reading material on relevant topics will
be issued to directors. All Directors are encouraged to attend
relevant training courses at the Company’s expenses.
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During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Directors
received training on the following areas with an emphasis on the
roles, functions and duties of a director of a listed company in
compliance with the requirement of the CG Codes on continuous
professional development:
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REE2020F12A31HIEEE 220 ETMN
TEBFEEXERBAGSTLEEATIAR

EZLTRABEREZAC B BESEL
=l

Corporate Governance/
updates on Laws, Rules
& Regulations

EER BIEEE -

RAIRER
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Hung Yuen Kin RRRfESL A v
Ms. Li Ka Yee Daphne REXT v
Non-executive Director FHITES
Mr. Lui Man Wah BXERLE 4
Independent non-executive Directors BAEHITES
Ms. Wong Chi Ling sfE Tt v
Mr. Wong Ling Yan Philip BEERLE v
Mr. Lee Man Yeung B ERE v
BOARD COMMITTEE EEZEE
The Board has established the audit committee (“Audit EZEERKUBEZZES(BE%ZES)) ¥

Committee”), remuneration committee (“Remuneration
Committee”), nomination committee (“Nomination Committee”)
and corporate governance & risk management committee
(“CGRM Committee”) for overseeing various particular aspects of
the Group’s affairs.

All Board committees of the Company are established with
defined written terms of reference. The terms of reference of
such Board committees are available on GEM’s website and the
Company’s website. The Board committees are provided with
sufficient resource to discharge their duties and, upon reasonable
request, are able to seek independent professional advice in
appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expense.

The lists of the chairman and members of each Board committee
are set out in “Board Composition”.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established the Audit Committee on 23 January
2015 in compliance with Rule 5.28 of the GEM Listing Rules.
Written terms of reference in compliance with paragraph C.3.3
of the Corporate Governance Code set out in Appendix 15 to
the GEM Listing Rules has been adopted. As at the date of this
annual report, the Audit Committee comprises three INEDs,
namely Ms. Wong Chi Ling (Chairlady), Mr. Wong Ling Yan
Philip and Mr. Lee Man Yeung have appropriate professional
qualifications and experience in accounting matters.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, four meetings of
the Audit Committee were held by the committee to review
the quarterly, half yearly and the annual results. The principal
responsibilities of the Audit Committee include reviewing of the
financial results of the Group, the accounting principles, the
scope of non-audit services provided by the external auditors and
its independence, and be responsible for all the matters relating
to the continuing connected transaction of the Company. The
Audit Committee endorsed the accounting treatments adopted
by the Group and, to the best of its ability assured itself that
the disclosures of the financial information in the Company’s
quarterly, interim and annual reports comply with the applicable
accounting standards and the GEM Listing Rules.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company established the Remuneration Committee on 23
January 2015 pursuant to the GEM Listing Rules with written
terms of reference in compliance with paragraph B.1.2 of the
Corporate Governance Code set out in Appendix 15 to the
GEM Listing Rules. As at the date of this annual report, the
Remuneration Committee comprises Mr. Wong Ling Yan Philip
(Chairman), Mr. Lui Man Wah, Ms. Wong Chi Ling and Mr. Lee
Man Yeung.

The principal responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee
include making recommendations to the Board on the Group’s
policy and structure for remuneration of all Directors and senior
management; reviewing their remuneration packages, approving
the management’s proposal of remuneration packages by
reference to corporate goals, objectives and market practices.
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During the year ended 31 December 2020, two meetings
of the Remuneration Committee were held to review the
structure and policy of remuneration of the Group and approve
the remuneration package of Directors. The emoluments of
the Directors are reviewed by the Remuneration Committee
according to the Directors’ respective responsibilities, individual
performance and prevailing market conditions.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company established the Nomination Committee on 23
January 2015 with written terms of reference in compliance with
paragraph A.5.2 of the Corporate Governance Code set out in
Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing Rules. As at the date of this
annual report, the Nomination Committee comprises Mr. Lui Man
Wah (Chairman), Ms. Wong Chi Ling, Mr. Wong Ling Yan Philip
and Mr. Lee Man Yeung.

The principal responsibilities of the Nomination Committee
include reviewing the structure, size and composition of the
Board, the Board Diversity Policy, the Policy for the nomination of
directors, making recommendations to the Board on nomination,
rotation and re-appointment of Directors, and assessing the
independence of INEDs.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, two meetings of the
Nomination Committee were held to review the structure, size,
composition and diversification (including the skills, knowledge
and experience) of the Board, review the policy of Directors’
nomination related matters, make recommendations to the Board
on the proposal of reappointment of Directors at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.

The attendance records of each committee member in the
Nomination Committee meeting held during the year are set out
in Directors’ Attendance at Board and General Meetings section
above.
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Nomination Policy

The Board has adopted a nomination policy which sets out the
criteria for selection and process of nomination of Directors. In
accordance with the nomination policy, in assessing and selecting
a candidate for acting as a Director, the criteria to be considered
including but not limited to the following:

- Qualifications including professional qualifications, skills,
knowledge and experience;

- Commitment to attending the meetings and participating in
relevant training and other board associated activities;

- Requirement for the Board to have independent Directors
in accordance with the GEM Listing Rules and whether the
candidate would be considered independent with reference
to the independence guidelines set out in the GEM Listing
Rules;

- Such other perspectives that are appropriate to the
Company’s business and succession plan and where
applicable, may be adopted and/or amended by the Board
and/or the Nomination Committee from time to time for
nomination of Directors and succession planning.

The nomination policy also sets out the nomination process and
procedures, including but not limited to:

1. ldentify and evaluate the candidate based on the
abovementioned criteria upon receipt of the proposal of
appointment or re-appointment of Director; and

2. Recommend the Board to appoint the appropriate
candidate as a Director.

Board Diversity Policy

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy which sets out
the approach to achieve diversity on the Board in terms of skills,
professional experience, educational background, knowledge,
culture, age and gender. The main objective of the policy is to
maintain an appropriate balance of diversity perspectives of
the Board that are relevant to the Company’s business growth.
In accordance with the board diversity policy, a truly diverse
Board will include and make good use of differences in the skills,
regional and industry experience, background, race, gender
and other qualities of the Directors. These differences will be
considered in determining the optimum composition of the Board.
All Board appointments will be based on merit while considering
diversity (including gender diversity).
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE & RISK
MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

The Company established the Corporate Governance & Risk
Management Committee (the “CGRM Committee”) Committee on
23 January 2015 with written terms of reference. The Corporate
Governance Committee was renamed as Corporate Governance
& Risk Management Committee on 6 January 2016 to add in
risk management functions. As at the date of this annual report,
the CGRM Committee comprises Mr. Lui Man Wah (Chairman),
Ms. Wong Chi Ling, Mr. Wong Ling Yan Philip and Mr. Lee Man
Yeung.

The primary functions of the Corporate Governance & Risk
Management Committee include, among others, reviewing and
making recommendation to the Board in respect of the Group’s
policies and practices on corporate governance, reviewing and
monitoring the Group’s policies and practices on corporate
governance, reviewing and monitoring the Group’s policies and
practices on compliance with any requirement, direction and
regulation that may be prescribed by the Board, contained in
any constitutional documents of the Group, or imposed by the
GEM Listing Rules, other applicable laws, regulations, rules and
codes, and ensuring that appropriate monitoring systems are
in place to ensure compliance with the relevant internal control
systems, processes and policies, oversee the effectiveness
of the procedures of the internal control system of the Group,
monitoring the implementation of the Group’s plan to maintain
high compliance with own risk management standards, providing
guideline to the management on risk management and to set
up procedures to identify, assessing and managing material risk
factors, and ensuring the management discharge its responsibility
in establishing an effective risk management system.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, one meeting of the
CGRM Committee was held to review the Group’s corporate
governance practice and oversee of the Company’s compliance
with the CG codes, to review and discuss about the internal
control procedures and finding of the Company.
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AUDITORS’ REMUNERATIONS

The Audit Committee is responsible for considering and reviewing
the appointment of the external auditors and reviewing any non-
audit functions performed by the external auditors, including
whether such non-audit functions could lead to any potential
material adverse effect on the Group.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the fees paid/payable to
the auditors, McM and Moore Stephens, in respect of the audit
and non-audit services are as follows:

BB A B =

ENLZBECRARES MMATINE AT R T
VA B 28 B SN BE A% SR AM P A 1T B (E 7] SR AR L
- BERARIFERBERTEHAKREES
EABEERTHNEE -

HZE2020F12A31BILFE - MBEZNIEE
EREEN,/ EAZEMEREEAESHEN
ERWT :

2020
20204
HK$’000
FHET

Audit services EZPRTE

1,801

REMUNERATION OF SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Pursuant to Code Provision B.1.5, the remuneration of the
member(s) of senior management of the Group (excluding the
Directors of the Company) for the year ended 31 December 2020
by band is as follows:

B AREEEH

RIESTANE X EB. 1.5 - NEBEE E20204F
12A31H L FERGEEZHSHNESREEBAR
(KRREERINEFHENOT -

Number of
Remuneration individual(s)
i A
Nil to HK$1,000,000 =% 1,000,000/ 7T 3

38 — WINTO GROUP (HOLDINGS) LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2020



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
SYSTEMS

The Board and the Corporate Governance & Risk Management
committee of the Company are acknowledges its responsibility for
the risk management and internal control systems and reviewing
their effectiveness annually. Policies have been designed for
monitoring the regulations and laws compliance of the Company
and to advise on the risks involved in major decisions that need
to be reviews by the Board and solutions to the major risks.

Each department is responsible for identifying, assessing and
managing risks within its business, ensuring that appropriate
internal control for effective risk management are implemented.
The management is responsible for overseeing the risk
management and internal control activities of the Group. The
Corporate Governance & Risk Management Committee of the
Company provides independent review on effectiveness of the
risk management and internal control systems of the Group
and gives their recommendation to the Board. The Board is
responsible for reviewing the internal audit report and approving
policies and procedures designed by the management.

The Group’s risk management framework includes risk
identification, risk assessment, risk treatment and monitoring
and reviewing of the effectiveness of the measures. This
risk management framework is guided by the three-tier risk
management approach. At the first line of defence, business units
are responsible for identifying, assessing and monitoring risks
associated with each business or deal. The management, as the
second line of defence, defines rule sets and models, provides
technical support, develops new systems and oversees portfolio
management. It ensures that risks are within the acceptable
range and that the first line of defence is effective. As the final
line of defence, the Corporate Governance & Risk Management
Committee of the Company, ensures that the first and second
lines of defence are effective through constant inspection and
monitoring.
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Risk Management
Currency risk

Substantially all of the Group’s monetary assets and liabilities are
denominated in Hong Kong dollars and Macau Pataca same as
the functional currency of the respective group entities.

The Group does not expect any significant currency risk which
materially affect the Group’s result of operations.

Interest rate risk

In currant year, the Group was exposed to fair value interest rate
risk in relation to fixed-rate other borrowings.

The Group does not expect any significant interest rate risk which
materially affect the Group’s results of operations in 2020 and
2019.

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its
contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the Group.
The Group has adopted a policy of only dealing with creditworthy
counterparties and obtaining sufficient collaterals, where
appropriate, as a means of mitigating the risk of financial loss
from defaults.

In respect of trade and other receivables and loan receivables,
in order to minimise risk, the management has a credit policy in
place and the exposures to these credit risks are monitored on
an ongoing basis. Credit evaluations of its customers’ financial
position and condition is performed on each and every major
customer periodically. These evaluations focus on the customer’s
past history of making payments when due and current ability to
pay, and take into account information specific to the customer
as well as pertaining to the economic environment in which the
customer operates. The Group does not require collateral in
respect of its financial assets.
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The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the
individual characteristics of each customer. The default risk of
the industry in which customers operate also has an influence on
credit risk but to a lesser extent. At the end of reporting period,
the Group has concentration of credit risk as 14% (2019: 23%)
of the total trade receivables of the Company was due from
the largest customer and 44% (2019: 55%) of the total trade
receivables of the Group was due from the largest 5 customers.
Taking into accounts the creditworthiness of the customers, the
credit risk measures and the historical levels of bad debts, the
directors consider that such concentration of credit risk would
not result in significant credit default exposure to the Group.

The credit risk on bank balances is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit ratings assigned by
international credit-rating agencies.

Liquidity risk

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current and expected
liquidity requirements and its compliance with lending covenants
to ensure that it maintains sufficient amount of cash and adequate
committed lines of funding from major financial institutions to
meet its liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.

The Board, through the Corporate Governance & Risk
Management Committee, has conducted a review of the
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems for the year ended 31 December 2020 covering all
material financial, operational and compliance functions, is of the
view that the effectiveness of the risk management and internal
control systems of the Group are considered as effective and
adequate.

Internal Audit

The Group currently does not have an internal audit department.
The Board will review and consider to establish such department
as and when it thinks necessary.

Inside Information

The Group has adopted and implemented its own disclosure
policy aiming to provide a general guide to the directors and
senior management of the Company in handling of confidential
information and/or monitoring of information disclosure pursuant
to applicable laws and regulations in compliance with the GEM
Listing Rules and Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”).
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The disclosure policy provides the procedures and internal
controls for the handling and dissemination of inside information
by publication of the announcement to the websites of the
Stock Exchange and the Company on a timely basis to enable
the public to access the latest information of the Group, unless
such information fall within the safe harbours with the SFO.
The management has notified all employees to comply with the
disclosure policy. Briefing and training on the implementation of
the policy have been provided to Directors, officers and senior
management of the Group. The Board emphasizes that only the
authorised representatives registered in the Stock Exchange are
authorised to speak on behalf of the Company.

RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements of the
Group and ensure that the consolidated financial statements
are in accordance with statutory requirements and applicable
accounting standards. The Directors also ensure the timely
publication of the consolidated financial statements of the Group.

The statements of the external auditor of the Group in relation
to their reporting responsibilities on the consolidated financial
statements of the Group are set out in the section headed
“Independent Auditor’s Report” of this annual report.

COMPANY SECRETARY

All Directors have access to the advice and services of the
Company Secretary. The Company Secretary reports to the
Chairman on board governance matters, and is responsible for
ensuring that Board procedures are followed and for facilitating
communications among Directors as well as with Shareholders
and management.

Mr. Yu Ngai confirmed that he has taken no less than 15 hours of
relevant professional training during the year.

Mr. Yu Ngai is currently a member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

SHAREHOLDERS RIGHTS

The general meetings of the Group provide an opportunity for
communication between the Shareholders and the Board. An
annual general meeting of the Company shall be held in each
year and at the place as may be determined by the Board. Each
general meeting, other than an annual general meeting, shall be
called an extraordinary general meeting (‘EGM”).

Right to Convene an Extraordinary General Meeting

Pursuant to Article 58 of the Company, any one or more
member(s) holding at the date of the deposit of the requisition
not less than one tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company,
shall at all times have the right, by written requisition to the Board
or the Secretary of the Company, to require an EGM to be called
by the Board for the transaction of any business specified in such
requisition; and such meeting shall be held within two months
after the deposit of such requisition.

If within twenty-one days of such deposit the Board fails
to proceed to convene EGM, the Requisitionist(s) himself
(themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable
expense incurred by the Requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure
of the Board shall be reimbursed to the Requisitionist(s) by the
Company.

The requisition in writing should be sent to the Company’s
principal place of business in Hong Kong.

In case of shareholding enquires, Shareholders should direct their
enquiries to the Company’s Hong Kong branch share registrar,
Tricor Investor Services Limited, via its online holding enquiry at
www.tricoris.com, or by email to is-enquiries@hk.tricorglobal.com
or dial its hotline at (852) 2980 1333 or go in person at its public
counter at Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East,
Hong Kong.

Right to Put Enquiries to the Board

Shareholders have the right to put enquiries to the Board. All
enquiries shall be in writing and sent by post to the principal place
of business of the Company in Hong Kong for the attention of the
company secretary.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

LREABE

Contact information of the Company is set out as follows:

Principle Office: Workshop A, 14th Floor, V Ga Building, 532 Castle
Peak Road, Kowloon, Hong Kong

Telephone: (852) 3643 0799

Facsimile: (852) 3622 1457

E-mail: info@wintogroup.hk

Company website: www.wintogroup.hk

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Group is committed to maintaining a high level of
transparency and employs a policy of open and timely disclosure
of relevant information to its Shareholders. The focus of the
Company is to ensure information disclosure is timely, fair,
accurate, truthful and complete thereby enabling the public as
well as the investors to make rational and informed decisions.

The Board strives to encourage and maintain constant dialogue
with its Shareholders through various means. The Company
updates its Shareholders on its latest business developments and
financial performance through its annual, interim and quarterly
reports. All Shareholders’ communications are available on the
Company’s website. The website of the Company also provides
email address, postal address, fax number and telephone
number by which Shareholders’ enquiries may be put to the
Company’s Board. Appropriate members of the Board and
senior management are ready to respond to enquiries from
Shareholders and investors on a timely basis.

The annual general meeting of the Company provides a useful
forum for Shareholders to exchange views with the Board. All
Directors will make an effort to attend. External auditors are also
available at the annual general meeting to address Shareholders’
queries. In case of any general meeting to approve a connected
transaction or any other transaction that is subject to independent
Shareholders’ approval, members of the independent Board
committee will also make an effort to attend to address
Shareholders’ queries.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the year ended 31 December 2020, there was no
significant change in the constitutional documents of the
Company.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board has adopted a dividend policy which sets out the
principles of and guidelines on recommending or declaring
dividend to the Shareholders. The Company shall maintain
adequate cash reserves for meeting its working capital
requirements and future growth as well as its shareholder value.
The Board has the discretion to declare and distribute dividends
to the Shareholders subject to the Articles and relevant laws
and regulations. The Board shall take into account the factors,
including but not limited to:

- Actual and expected financial performance;
- Cash flow situation;
- The Group’s business and operations; and

- Economic conditions and other factors.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS" REPORT
18 M % BLED S

MCM

McM (HK) CPA Limited

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
WINTO GROUP (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Winto
Group (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 55 to
191, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2020, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to
the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group
as at 31 December 2020, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSASs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the “Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements” section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS" REPORT

MATERIAL UNCERTAINTY RELATED TO GOING
CONCERN

We draw attention to Note 4 to the consolidated financial
statements, which states that the Group incurred a net loss
attributable to owners of the Company of HK$2,847,000, and as
of the date, the Group’s total liabilities exceeded its total assets
by HK$7,276,000. These matters, along with other matters as
described in Note 4 to the consolidated financial statements,
indicate the existence of a material uncertainties which may cast
significant doubt about the ability of the Group to continue as
a going concern. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this
matter.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters. In addition to the matter described in the material
uncertainty related to going concern section, we have determined
the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be
communicated in our report.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
statements section of our report, including in relation to these
matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance of
procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks
of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements.
The results of our audit procedures, including the procedures
performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for
our audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated financial
statements.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)
Valuation of goodwill

We identified the impairment of goodwill arising from the
acquisition of to be Concepts Limited (“TBC”) as a key audit
matter, as the amount is quantitatively significant to the Group
and the valuation requires an estimation of the value in use of
the business. The estimation of the value in use is subject to
significant management estimates, in respect of the discount
rate, terminal rate and growth rates. No impairment loss was
recognised during the year.

Details relating to the assessment of the goodwill is set out in
notes 4, 5 and 19 to the consolidated financial statements.

HOW OUR AUDIT ADDRESSED THE KEY AUDIT
MATTER

Our procedures in relation to the impairment assessment of the
goodwill arising from the acquisition of TBC included:

= Assessing the appropriateness of the valuation model
and obtaining evidence to support the estimated cash
flow forecast underlying the value in use prepared by
management;

- Evaluating the appropriateness of the key assumptions and
inputs such as the terminal rate and growth rates used in
the model by comparing the management’s expectations
against our understanding of the current market
circumstances; and

- Critically challenging the reasonableness of the discount
rate adopted by management in discounting the cash flow
forecast with reference to available market data.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS" REPORT

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)
Valuation of trade and other receivables

We identified the valuation of trade and other receivables as a key
audit matter as the amounts are significant and the determination
of expected credit loss (“ECL”) requires significant management
judgements.

In respect of certain of the Group’s trade receivables, the Group
uses provision matrix to calculate the ECL. The provision rates
are based on debtor’s aging consisting of debtors with common
credit risk characteristic. The provision matrix is based on the
Group’s historical default rates taking into consideration forward-
looking information. At every reporting date, the historical
observed default rates are reassessed and changes in the
forward-looking information are considered.

In respect of other receivables, the Group assesses the expected
credit loss individually by estimation based on historical credit
loss experience, general economic conditions of the relevant
industry in which the debtors operate, and an assessment of
both the current as well as the forecast direction of conditions at
the reporting date.

Based on the result of the foregoing, the management has
recognised impairment losses on trade and other receivables
of HK$301,000. As at 31 December 2020, the carrying amount
of the Group’s trade and other receivables, net of allowance for
credit loss, was HK$7,598,000.

Details relating to the Group’s trade and other receivables are
set out in notes 4, 5, 24 and 40 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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HOW OUR AUDIT ADDRESSED THE KEY AUDIT
MATTER

Our procedures in relation to evaluating the valuation of trade and
other receivables included:

- Understanding key controls on how the management
estimates the loss allowance for trade and other receivables;

- Testing the integrity of information used by management
to develop the provision matrix, including trade receivables
ageing analysis as at 31 December 2020, on a sample
basis, by comparing individual items in the analysis with
the relevant sales agreements, sales invoices and other
supporting documents;

- In respect of other receivables, assessing the
reasonableness of management’s assessment and the
financial position of the counterparty as at 31 December
2020;

- Challenging management’s basis and judgement in
determining credit loss allowance on trade receivables
as at 31 December 2020, including their identification of
credit impaired trade receivables, the reasonableness of
management’s grouping of the remaining trade debtors
into different categories in the provision matrix, and the
basis of estimated loss rates applied in each category in the
provision matrix (with reference to historical default rates
and forward-looking information);

- Challenging management’s basis and judgement in
determining credit loss allowance on other receivables as at
31 December 2020; and

- Evaluating the disclosures regarding the impairment
assessment of trade and other receivables in notes 24 and
40 to the consolidated financial statements.

OTHER MATTER

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2019 were audited by another auditor who
expressed an unmodified opinion on those statements on 30
March 2020.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS" REPORT

OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE ANNUAL
REPORT

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the annual
report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements
and our auditors’ report thereon (the “Other Information”).

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the Other Information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the Other Information
and, in doing so, consider whether the Other Information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to
be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of the Other
Information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing
to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit
Committee in discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. We report
our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our
agreed terms of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is
a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors of the Company.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS" REPORT

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group
to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS" REPORT
18 M % BLED S

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in
the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this
independent auditors’ report is Wong Ka Bo, Jimmy.

McM (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Wong Ka Bo, Jimmy

Practising Certificate Number PO7560
3/F., Parklane Building,

233 Queen’s Road Central,

Hong Kong, 29 October 2021
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
SEeREREMEZEKRER

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z2020512 A31H L FE

2020 2019
20204 2019%F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’'000
BsE FET FHET
(Restated)
(&E:7)
Continuing operations HEREER
Revenue U z5 6 29,866 20,838
Cost of sales SHEK A (14,722) (11,489)
Gross profit EAH 15,144 9,349
Other income E A 8 1,816 88
Other gains or (losses) H e sk (&) 9 (623) (262)
Operating expenses KRS (15,401) (23,720)
Impairment loss recognised under BHEEBEERET
the expected credit loss model EERAREEE 11 (301) (22,702)
Finance costs BhE A A 10 (3,660) (1,621)
Share-based payment expense RO R - (659)
Loss before tax BRILRIEE 11 (3,025) (39,527)
Income tax expense Fris iR 12 (11) (174)
Loss for the year from continuing BB EFR
operations FEEIE (3,036) (39,701)
Discontinued operation LR e K
Profit for the period from discontinued B 4% [F4E & 2751
operation B A% 13 - 291
Loss for the year FAEE (3,036) (39,410)
Other comprehensive expense FREMEZEEX
for the year
Item that will not be reclassified to TEEH BB
profit or loss: HA
Fair value loss on equity BEAFEFAEMER
instruments at fair value through W MR AR T A/
other comprehensive income NEEBE - (1,423)
Items that may be reclassified P8 I vk Y Fdip)
subsequently to profit or loss: HE
Exchange differences arising on BMEBINETEHE X Z 5
translating foreign operations - (201)
Exchange differences reclassified to ~ EFHHEEHEK B AR
profit or loss on disposal of ERAE N E5E
subsidiaries - 20
Other comprehensive expense FREMEZERSY -
for the year, net of income tax HBRFTISEL - (1,604)
Total comprehensive expense FREHEBZHARE
for the year (3,036) (41,014)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
HeREREMEZERER

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z2020F 12 A31H L FE

2020 2019
20204 2019%F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’'000
BsE FET FHET
(Restated)
(& E5)
(Loss)/profit for the year EHFERESR), ST
attributable to: B
Owners of the Company ViN/NCIEZZ N
— for continuing operations - MRECEER (2,847) (39,189)
— for discontinued operation - BRAR AR HE T - 306
(2,847) (38,883)
Non-controlling interests FEPE R =
— for continuing operations - MFELEED (189) (512)
— for discontinued operation - BRI E T - (15)
(189) (527)
(3,036) (839,410)
Total comprehensive expense for EMER2HEZALE :
the year attributable to: B
Owners of the Company ZiN/NEIEZ =N (2,847) (40,390)
Non-controlling interests AR (189) (624)
(3,036) (41,014)
From continuing and discontinued BiF#ER& ILEE K
operations
Loss per share T EE
~ Basic (HK cents) - EARGHAL) 16 (0.66) (9.00)
— Diluted (HK cents) - #55 GBIl 16 N/ATIE A (9.00)
From continuing operations BEFEREEK
Loss per share B EE
- Basic (HK cents) - EARGEL) 16 (0.66) 9.07)
— Diluted (HK cents) - #50EL) 16 N/ATIE A (9.07)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e B AR R &R

At 31 December 2020 72020512 A31H

2020 2019
20204 20194
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
BsE FET FHET
(Restated)
(&E7)
Non-current assets FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment EE YN 18 901 1,450
Goodwill RS 19 1,399 1,399
Intangible assets mEE 20 330 330
Equity instruments at fair value through 32 A FEzF AE M2
other comprehensive income WaRm R T A 22 - =
Contract costs B LI 25 1,064 =
Other deposits Hfbike 24 9,426 =
13,120 3,179
Current assets REBEE
Loan receivables FEWE K 23 - =
Trade and other receivables B 5 R H M EWFRIE 24 7,598 8,934
Contract costs A RIS 25 5,814 772
Finance lease receivables B E R E FEUMGIR 26 470 =
Tax recoverable AU B F7 I8 - 138
Amount due from a shareholder FEW — B IR IR 33 529 =
Amount due from a non-controlling e — B A A
shareholder of a subsidiary FEIZ IR AR B IR 33 13 =
Bank balances and cash IRITHEBR IR S 27 3,212 3,603
17,636 13,447
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and other payables B 5 & E A BN FRIE 28 8,556 7,200
Contract liabilities E48E 29 2,984 987
Other borrowing HAfER 30 7,000 10,000
Lease liabilities HEAE 32 290 =
Tax payables FET IR - 174
18,830 18,361
Net current liabilities REBEEFHE (1,194) (4,914)
Total assets less current liabilites BEERABERS 11,926 (1,735)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
B BB AR R &R

At 31 December 2020 #2020 12 531 H

2020 2019
20204 20194
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
BsE FET FHET
(Restated)
(&E7)
Non-current liabilities FRBEMR
Lease liabilities HEBE 32 50 =
Loan from a substantial shareholder ~ F ZAXE & 31 19,152 8,718
19,202 8,718
Net liabilities FaE (7,276) (10,453)
Capital and reserves EXRRHE
Share capital & 7 34 8,640 8,640
Reserves i (16,162) (19,528)
Total capital deficiency BATHEE ANELER
attributable to owners of B4t 5
the Company (7,522) (10,888)
Non-controlling interests FEIE AR M B 246 435
Total capital deficiency EREHMETE (7,276) (10,453)

The consolidated financial statements on pages 55 to 191 were 558 & £ 191 H M43 A B IE 3R R 2021410
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on  A29R & EF e ENKETIEI AU TES

29 October 2021 and are signed on its behalf by: REZEZE
Hung Yuen Kin Lui Man Wah
REEfR BXE
Director Director
EF EF

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the consolidated ~ B& M M sE A 4R & A TS SRR M 4B 2B ©
financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
RERBBER

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z2020512 A31H L FE

Attributable to owners of the Company

LGE N
Fair value
through
other
Share comprehensive Non-
Share Share  options  Statutory Exchange income  Capital ~ Accumulated controlling Total
capital  premium  reserve  reserve  reserve reserve - reserve losses ~ Sub-total interests equity
BAVE
BhE tARf FER
Ra  RHEE  &E tEBRE EXRE 2EUERE EARE  EHEE it BE  4ER
HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HK$000  HK$O000 HKS'000  HKS 000 HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000
TR TEr  TEr TR TEn Thr  Thn Thr  TEr TR THn
(oted  (noteb) (otec)  (noted)
(k) () (o) (W)
At danuary 2019 Ha9% 171 B MBI e - W - MR M R M
Loss for the yea estte) FrERAES) - - - - - - Sy e B 0
Other comprehensive expens for the year EREMAERY:
Fair value loss on equiy nstuments at favalie trough—— RATEHAZHRENEH
other comprehensive income RETAHATREER - - = = = (1429 = - 14 - (1
Exchange diferences arsig on iangating BEBISBNELZE
forelgn operations - - - - (104) - - - (104) @ 201)
Exchange diferences reciassfied to roft o oss on E%ﬁn BELENRLARRY
dlisposal of subsiiaries EiER - - - - 2 - - - 2 - 2N
Total comprehensive expense for the year FReARRIeE - - - = 64 (1429) S (3888 (40390 (624 @014
Disposal of subsicares (note 36 HEHBAR ’WE% = = = = = = = = = 3661 368
Reoogniton of equiy-seted share-hased expense ﬁﬁwﬁﬁﬂ% HER - - 69 - - - - - 69 = 69
Deemed captal contrbuton RiEnE - - - - - -1 - 138 -1
Cancelaton of share options iRRE - R 7)) = = = = 421 > = =
Aporopiaton o statutory resere BRETER = = = 9 = = = (&9 . = =
A1 December 2010 HOtgE 1A% B0 B - @ - (@) 13 (99 (0BY 45 (0
At 31 December 2019, as prevously reported R019E12R31R (RAI2H) 860 943 = 9 = (1429) (13880 (12,289 %6 (189
Prioryear acjustment note 3 BEEERR0GR) - - - - - -1 7 13% 9 14
A danuary 2000, asrestated Houo0E 191 (8E5) B0 A - - 149 18 (16 (0B 45 (0489
Loss forthe year FREE - - - - - - - (@81 (2840) (18 (3088)
Other comprehensie expense for the year EREMRERR - - - - - - - - - - -
Total comprehensive expense for the year ERRERSLE - - - - - - - Q8 s (189 (30%)
Reclassficaion adustment upon equity nstument MRATET AL D2 AN
at far value hrough other comprehensive income RAIEHEREHEAEE
witen off rote 22) (H20) - - - - - 148 - (1429 - - -
Deemed captal conirbuton (note 31) fifeti & (H3Ea1) - - - - - -6 -6 -6
A1 ecember 202 HOOE 28R T I I
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z2020F 12 A31H L FE

Notes:

Share options reserve represents the fair value of services estimated
to be received in exchange for the grant of the relevant share options
over the relevant vesting periods, the total of which is based on the fair
value of the share options at grant date. The amount for each reporting
period is determined by spreading the fair value of the share options
over the relevant vesting periods (if any) and is recognised as expenses
with a corresponding increase in share options reserve.

In accordance with the article 377 of the Macau Commercial Code, the
Company’s subsidiary incorporated in Macau are required to transfer
a minimum of 25% of the annual net profits to a statutory reserve
until that reserve equals 50% of the nominal value of their capital. The
statutory reserve may not be distributed in the form of cash dividends
or otherwise, during the life of the company.

Fair value through other comprehensive income reserve represents
cumulative gains and losses on fair value of financial assets at fair
value through other comprehensive income recognised in other
comprehensive income.

Capital reserve represents the deemed capital contribution from a
substantial shareholder (note 31) arising from the Shareholder’s loan. It
is the difference between the imputed interest calculated by the market
interest rate at the loan inception date and the nominal interest rate
charged by the substantial shareholder.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
RERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z2020512 A31H L FE

2020 2019
20204 2019%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FH&T
(Restated)
(& E7)
OPERATING ACTIVITIES KESTE
(Loss)/profit before tax Fi AT (E518) }ﬁéﬂt'
- from continuing operations - BB EER (3,025) (39,527)
— from discontinued operation - BRI EET - 291
Adjustments for: AR
Interest income F B A (195) (87)
Interest expense FERX 3,660 1,621
Depreciation of property, M - BMEERETE
plant and equipment 579 839
Depreciation of right-of-use assets CREEERE - 1,745
Amortisation of contract costs BRI PR B 182 =
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEH B Rk - (101)
Loss on debt modifications B AEEE 978 =
Gain on derecognition of right-of-use RIFEREAEEEN RS
assets (355) -
Net loss on fair value changes of financial EAVEFABRS(EATE
assets at fair value through profit or loss EJr)\TEﬁT’iJ) WERMEEL
(“FVTPL”) AN EEHEEFH - 34
Share-based payment expense O RA X - 659
Impairment loss recognised under EHEEBEEN TERY
expected credit loss model BUEEE 301 22,702
Operating cash flows before movements in =~ ZEE &S FHFNLLERERE
working capital 2,125 (11,824)
Decrease/(increase) in trade and other B REMEWFIEREERS
receivables and rental deposits /W//(i hn) 1,515 (6,197)
Increase in contract costs B HIPAIE N (5,042) (771)
Increase in trade and other payables B 5 N FAh FE A FRIE G HN 1,356 3,898
Increase in contract liabilities BB EEMN 1,997 987
Cash generated from/(used in) operations KEEBE,/ (FTR)E S 1,951 (13,907)
Profits tax refund FISBER (47) (186)
Net cash generated from/(used) in EEBRE (FTRBRSFE
operating activities 1,904 (14,093)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

mEREMRER

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z2020F 12 A31H L FE

2020 2019
20204 20194
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FH&T
(Restated)
(&E:7)

INVESTING ACTIVITIES REZH
Interest received 2 UH B - 87
Deposit paid for acquisition of an associate ~ YZ 8 — B & A Bl M L4 - (3,400)
Deposit paid to secure the subcontracting RESSEHENINNEE

agreement (10,500) -
Purchase of property, plant and equipment ~ [EE ¥ % - 22 L RE (30) (91)
Advance to a shareholder B EE=EN (529) =
Advance to a non-controlling shareholder of a1 — 11 B A &) &9 FEF2 AL A% B8

a subsidiary IR (13) -
Net cash inflow resulting from disposal of HENBARARERAFRE

subsidiaries - 264
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets at HEEAFEF ABRAS R

FVTPL BEMSHIA - 1,027
Repayment of loan receivables EWREFER - 5,000
Net cash (used in)/generated from REZTH (A, FBRSFHE

investing activities (11,072) 2,887
FINANCING ACTIVITIES mMETE
Interest paid ERFE (1,539) (1,624)
Proceeds from other borrowings H A fE RS IR - 5,970
Repayment of other borrowings EEEMERK (2,934) (5,970)
Proceeds from substantial shareholder loan == Z % R & P15 308 13,500 10,000
Repayment of lease liability EEHEaE (250) (1,397)
Net cash generated from financing METEHFMERETFH

activities 8,777 6,979
Net decrease in cash and cash ReRBRESEBYRDFE

equivalents (391) (4,227)
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January A1A1ENBEESRBESEEY 3,603 7,792
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes HNGE P R B L & - 38
Cash and cash equivalents at R12B31ENEERREZEY

31 December 3,212 3,603
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z2020512 A31H L FE

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in
the Cayman Islands and its issued shares are listed on GEM
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). The addresses of the registered office, and
head office and principal place of business of the Company
are disclosed in the “Corporate Information” section to the
annual report. Its ultimate and immediate parent is Source
Creation International Limited, a company incorporated in
the British Virgin Islands with limited liabilities and owned
by Mr. Lui Man Wah (“Mr. Lui”). Mr. Lui is a non-executive
director and the ultimate controlling party of the Company.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The principal activities of the Company’s subsidiaries
(together with the Company referred to as the “Group”) are
provision of exhibition and trade show and related services,
publication and advertising and outdoor advertising.

The consolidated financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollar (HK$’000), which is same as the
functional currency of the Company.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) AND HONG KONG
ACCOUNTING STANDARDS (“HKASs”)

In the current year, the Group has adopted the Amendments
to References to the Conceptual Framework for Financial
Reporting 2018 and the following new and revised
HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”) that are relevant to its
operations and effective for its accounting year beginning
on 1 January 2020 as mentioned below. HKFRSs comprise
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”); Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKAS”); and Interpretations.
The adoption of these new and revised HKFRSs did not
result in significant changes to the Group’s accounting
policies, presentation of the Group’s financial statements
and amounts reported for the current year and prior years.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e I RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z2020F 12 A31H L FE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) AND HONG KONG
ACCOUNTING STANDARDS (“HKASs”)
(Continued)

Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting 2018 (the
“Conceptual Framework”) sets out a comprehensive set of
concepts for financial reporting and standard setting, and
provides guidance for preparers of financial statements in
developing consistent accounting policies and assistance
to all parties to understand and interpret the standards.
The Conceptual Framework includes new chapters on
measurement and reporting financial performance, new
guidance on the derecognition of assets and liabilities, and
updated definitions and recognition criteria for assets and
liabilities. It also clarifies the roles of stewardship, prudence
and measurement uncertainty in financial reporting. The
Conceptual Framework is not a standard, and none of
the concepts contained therein override the concepts
or requirements in any standard. The application of the
Amendments to References to the Conceptual Framework
did not have any significant impact on the financial position
and performance of the Group.

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year

The Group has applied the following new and amendments
to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”) for the first time in the
current year:

Amendments to HKAS 1 and
HKAS 8

Definition of Material

2.

FERFI B RN BREER
((EBUBHEER REBEFE
RITEBE R AR H BT (8

2018 F H B HMEMSER(BSERDH
JI—EZBPBHRER S MENRE - X
AHIFTER— S BRER NI KRR R
HERBESIARGHER T HEREE
8] - BISERBEAELRENBEREN
B  BENBERLERNIES
AR EENBEREMERER - &
NEBEE - FENTENHETEERR
WEZIER - SERALIFER - BEH
AR BT & B AT R A BB R AR
E ° BRABISHERTE S| 2 EFTHASEN
MBRRRRRY BEREAREZE -

REEBRHERNHTEBMBRE
ER R EERT

RAFE  AEESERERATIEES
AR A (BRSO E D BEMAIHET
BEMBHREERREESR]

BREGHENERREE EANRTE
ST ERFSRETA

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business BERBRELRNER EBATE
CHEN
Amendments to HKFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark ERUBRELENES - FIREEKRE

HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7 Reform
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z2020512 A31H L FE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) AND HONG KONG
ACCOUNTING STANDARDS (“HKASs”)
(Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs but not yet
effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not
yet effective which may be relevant to the Company:
Amendments to HKFRS 16 COVID-19 Related Rent
Concessions

Reference to Conceptual
Framework?

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and Sale or Contribution
HKAS 28 of Assets between an
Investor and its
Associate or Joint
Venture®

Classification of Liabilities
as Current or Non-
current and the related
amendments to Hong
Kong Interpretation 5
(2020)"

Property, plant and
Equipment: Proceeds
before Intended Use?

Onerous Contracts — Cost
of Fulfiling a Contract?

Annual Improvements
to HKFRSs 20182020
cycle?

Amendments to HKFRS 3

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 16

Amendments to HKAS 37

Amendment to HKFRSs

B PR 75T S A RS 4R 45 2
(B BHIHEER ) REERHE
RITEBREHERL) BUR 25T (80

EARERMWHTEEMBRELENRE
)

7N B30 4R 5 8 A T A AL A AR
B A0 B A1 1 R A BT 5T BB B TS 4R
B R LT -

ERUBRELENE165 2 COVID-1918EHAE
B3] B=
ERUBRELRENRy  HaER R
CHI

BREMBREEMF10H K
BRG R8I

REEEEBENT
RRELEZEMN

5 BEHERTA®
BERLHENE IR 2B BEEIERATRHN
ERBREEER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e I RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & ZE20209F12 A31H L FE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS 2.

TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) AND HONG KONG
ACCOUNTING STANDARDS (“HKASs”)
(Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs but not yet
effective (Continued)

ik Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2023.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2022.

& Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined.

s Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2021.

& As a consequence of the amendments to HKFRS 17 issued in

October 2020, HKFRS 4 was amended to extend the temporary
exemption that permits insurers to apply HKAS 39 rather than
HKFRS 9 for annual periods beginning before 1 January 2023.

The directors anticipate that the application of these new
and amendments to HKFRSs will have no material impact
on the consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable
future.

3. RETROSPECTIVE RESTATEMENT 3.

The Group’s consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2019 have been restated to correct
prior period errors.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z2020512 A31H L FE

RETROSPECTIVE RESTATEMENT (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Company
obtained a facility from the substantial shareholder, Mr.
Lui, and utilised HK$10,000,000 from such facility, as
disclosed in note 31 to these consolidated financial
statements. The Company engaged an independent third
party valuer which assessed the market interest rate at the
respective drawdown dates, ranging from 14.0% to 15.6%.
Accordingly, the loan from Mr. Lui was made with a below-
market element. Although the loan contained a repayment
on demand clause, Mr. Lui confirmed that he would not
demand repayment until the Group has enough liquid cash
to repay, which is estimated to be beyond 12 months from
the end of the reporting period. Accordingly, the Group
classified the loan from a substantial shareholder as non-
current liabilities. However, the loan from a substantial
shareholder was initially recognised at its face value instead
of at its fair value at the inception date. Such accounting
treatment does not comply with HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments. Therefore, a retrospective restatement was
made for the year ended 31 December 2019 to recognise
the loan initially at its fair value, which is the present value
of the loan discounted at the market interest rate. The
difference between the fair value and the face value of
the substantial shareholder’s loan is recorded as capital
contribution from the substantial shareholder in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity. The finance
costs are also restated accordingly.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e I RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z2020F 12 A31H L FE

RETROSPECTIVE RESTATEMENT (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2019, a 67%-owned
subsidiary of the Company completed a christmas event on
or about 26 December 2019. However, the related revenue
and costs of approximately HK$340,000 and HK$194,000,
respectively, were not recognised until after the year ended
31 December 2019. Under HKFRS 15 Revenue from
Contracts with Customers, an entity shall recognise revenue
when (or as) the entity satisfies a performance obligation
by transferring a promised good or service (ie an asset) to
a customer and when (or as) a performance obligation is
satisfied, an entity shall recognise as revenue the amount of
the transaction price that is allocated to that performance
obligation. Accordingly, the related revenue and costs
should be recorded during the year ended 31 December
2019. Based on the matters described in the above, a
retrospective restatement of the Group’s revenue, cost of
sales, contract costs, trade receivables, contract liabilities,
trade payables and non-controlling interests was made for
the year ended 31 December 2019.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group
rendered advertising agency services under the publications
and advertising segment and recorded a total gross
revenue and costs of approximately HK$161,000 and
HK$107,000, respectively. Since the Group simply arranges
an independent third party to perform advertising services
directly to the customer, it does not have the ability to
direct the independent third party to provide the service
to the customer on the Company’s behalf nor the primary
responsibility for fulfilling the promise to provide advertising
services to the customer and the Group only has discretion
to establish to price charged to the customer in order to
generate additional revenue from its service of arranging
for services to be provided by the independent third party
to the customer. The above conditions indicate the Group
is acting as an agent and should recognise as revenue in
the amount of any fee or commission on a net basis as
an agent, in accordance with HKFRS 15 Revenue from
Contracts with Customers. Based on the matters described
in the above, a retrospective restatement of the Group’s
revenue and cost of sales was made for the year ended 31
December 2019.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e IR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z2020512 A31H L FE

RETROSPECTIVE RESTATEMENT (Continued) 3. EHEIGE@E

The effects of the retrospective restatement are summarised BYEYNEERRAT
below:
Consolidated statement of profit or loss and other HZE2019F12A31H L FEMLEE
comprehensive income for the year ended 31 December mREMEERERK
2019:
Effect of

As previously retrospective
reported restatement As restated

LR
W5 A 2 3] BHINEE mE|
HK$’000 HK$’000
FATT FHET
Continuing operations HEREXEK
Revenue Wz 20,605 233 20,838
Cost of sales $HE KA (11,402) 87) (11,489)
Gross profit EAH 9,203 146 9,349
Other income HaA 88 88
Other gains or losses H A s sk B8 (262) (262)
Operating expenses KR (23,720) (23,720)
Impairment loss recognised under FBEf{=EEIBEAIA T
expected credit loss model EERAREEE (22,702) (22,702)
Finance costs BhE KA (1,541) (80) (1,621)
Share-based payment expense I3 1t 5k F 5% (659) (659)
Loss before tax bR AT E 1B (39,593 66 (39,527)
Income tax expense Frsfim = (174) (174)
Loss for the year from continuing B & & & 25/
operations FEEIE (39,767) 66 (39,701)
Discontinued operation IS K
Profit for the year from B4R IS TR
discontinued operation F W A 291 291
Loss for the year FAREE (39,476) 66 (39,410)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e I RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z2020F 12 A31H L FE

3. RETROSPECTIVE RESTATEMENT (Continued) 3. EHEIGE@E

Consolidated statement of profit or loss and other HE2019F12A31B L FENLGEAIBE
comprehensive income for the year ended 31 December REMPEKEREE) -
2019 (Continued):

Effect of

As previously retrospective
reported restatement As restated

By
w5 A 2 3], BIMEE mE|
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHEIT FET
Other comprehensive expense FREM2HEEIX
for the year
Item that will not be reclassified to T8 E#H 7 4HE
profit or loss: Bamh)EE -
Fair value loss on equity TR EFAEM
instruments at fair value eI G 0) N
through other comprehensive TEMNRFEE
income &8 (1,423 (1,423)
Items that may be reclassified HEEnEFTEE
subsequently to profit or loss: BammEE
Exchange differences arising on & /G4 ZE 75 HYE K,
translating foreign operations =5 (201) (201)
Exchange differences HEWNBARBER
reclassified to profit or loss DEEEENER
on disposal of subsidiaries =X 20 20
Other comprehensive expense FAEMEERS -
for the year, net of income tax R TS (1,604) (1,604)
Total comprehensive expense FRAZHEB AT
for the year (41,080) 66 (41,014)

70 — WINTO GROUP (HOLDINGS) LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2020



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e IR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z2020512 A31H L FE

RETROSPECTIVE RESTATEMENT (Continued) 3. EHEIGE@E

I

Consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income for the year ended 31 December

HZE2019F12A31HILFEMNGEEIBER
FEMAZEmKER (E) -

2019 (Continued):
Effect of
As previously retrospective
reported restatement As restated
B
pUB YT BIHNEE mEZ|
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHEIT FHET
Loss for the year attributable E{GFEREE :
to:
Owners of the Company ViN/NEIEZ 2SN
— for continuing operations - MFELEED (39,206) 17 (39,189)
— for discontinued operation - PR RS ETS 306 306
(38,900) 17 (38,883)
Non-controlling interests FEPERRAE
~ for continuing operations - MBFELEED (561) 49 (512)
~ for discontinued operation - PR RS ETS (15) (15)
(576) 49 (527)
(39,476) 66 (39,410)
Total comprehensive expense EEFREZEHEX
for the year attributable to: 4EE
Owners of the Company ZIN/NEIEZ =N (40,407) 17 (40,390)
Non-controlling interests JEPE AR = 673) 49 (624)
(41,080) 66 (41,014)
From continuing and BRFERRIEEEER
discontinued operations
Loss per share T EE
Basic and diluted (HK cents) EAR R EE B (9.00) (0.00) (9.00)
From continuing operations BRFEQEEK
Loss per share BREE
Basic and diluted (HK cents) EARREE B (9.08) 0.01 (9.07)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e I RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z2020F 12 A31H L FE

3.

RETROSPECTIVE RESTATEMENT (Continued)

Consolidated statement of financial position as at 31

3. EHEI@E

MR2019F12 A1 HMG A MR K ¢

December 2019:
Effect of
As previously retrospective
reported restatement As restated
=R
AT 2 3] BN E mEZ|
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHEIT FHEIT
Non-current assets RBEE
Property, plant and equipment e YN 1,450 1,450
Goodwill EES 1,399 1,399
Intangible assets mEEE 330 330
Equity instruments at fair value BEATEFAEMER
through other comprehensive WaHRATA
income - -
3,179 3,179
Current assets RBEE
Loan receivables FEWE R - -
Trade and other receivables B 5 R HMEWFIE 8,766 168 8,934
Contract costs BRI 870 (98) 772
Tax recoverable A [B] U R I8 138 138
Bank balances and cash RITEBRNIR S 3,603 3,603
13,377 70 13,447
Current liabilities REAE
Trade and other payables B 5 M E A E IR 7,120 80 7,200
Contract liabilities BHAE 1,159 (172) 987
Other borrowing HAEK 10,000 10,000
Tax payables & I8 174 174
18,453 ©92) 18,361
Net current liabilities BERBAE (5,076) 162 (4,914)
Total assets less current HEERRBAE
liabilities (1,897) 162 (1,735)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z2020512 A31H L FE

RETROSPECTIVE RESTATEMENT (Continued)

Consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2019 (Continued):

3. EBEHEI @

MR2019F 12 A31 BT B AR
(8B) :

Effect of
As previously retrospective
reported restatement As restated

=R
pUB YT BIHNEE mEz|
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHEIT FHET
Non-current liability kRBEE
Loan from a substantial FERREER
shareholder 10,000 (1,282) 8,718
Net liabilities FEE (11,897) 1,444 (10,453)
Capital and reserves EXR#E
Share capital % 7 8,640 8,640
Reserves ] (20,923) 1,395 (19,528)
Total capital deficiency KATEE AEL
attributable to owners of =N
the Company s (12,283) 1,395 (10,888)
Non-controlling interests FEPE R 386 49 435
Total capital deficiency & A 5 A48 58 (11,897) 1,444 (10,453)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In
addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on GEM of the Stock Exchange (the
“GEM Listing Rules”) and by the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

4. EREFHBE
eREH

REMBHRRRBET LSS RM
MEBEBVHEHREENRE - I - K8
SRR BIEY X FAGEME % £ AR Al
(TGEMLETMARRID R EREREERE K
BFEREROIHRERTE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e I RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z2020F 12 A31H L FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis, except for certain financial
instruments that are measured at fair values at the end of
each reporting period.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into
account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.
Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in
the consolidated financial statements is determined on such
a basis, except for share-based payment transactions that
are within the scope of HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment,
leasing transactions that are accounted for in accordance
with HKFRS 16 and measurements that have some
similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as net
realisable value in HKAS 2 Inventories or value in use in
HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets.

For financial instruments which are transacted at fair value
and a valuation technique that unobservable inputs is to
be used to measure fair value in subsequent periods, the
valuation technique is calibrated so that the results of the
valuation technique equals the transaction price.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z2020512 A31H L FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3
based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which
are described as follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity
can access at the measurement date;

° Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

Going concern assumptions

In preparing these consolidated financial statements, the
directors of the Company have given careful consideration
to the future liquidity of the Group, in light of the fact that
the Group incurred a net loss attributable to owners of
the Company of approximately HK$2,847,000 with net
operating cash inflows of approximately HK$1,904,000
during the year ended 31 December 2020 and, as of that
date, the Group’s total liabilities exceeded its total assets by
approximately HK$7,276,000. Notwithstanding the above
result, the consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on a going concern basis.

The management closely monitors the Group’s financial
performance and liquidity position. The validity of the going
concern basis depends upon the success of the Group’s
future operations, its ability to generate adequate cash flows
in order to meet its financial obligations as and when they
fall due such that the Group can meet its future working
capital and financing requirements.

The directors of the Company have performed an
assessment of the Group’s future liquidity and cash flows,
taking into account the following relevant matters:
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e I RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z2020F 12 A31H L FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of preparation (Continued)
Going concern assumptions (Continued)

Mr. Lui, the substantial shareholder and a non-executive
director of the Company, has granted an unsecured loan
facility of up to HK$40,000,000 (the “Facility”) during the
available period which will expire on 31 December 2022.
The Facility bears an interest of 2% per annum. During the
year ended 31 December 2020, an aggregate amount of
HK$23,500,000 (2019: HK$10,000,000) of the Facility has
been drawn down by the Company. At 31 December 2020,
the Facility of HK$16,500,000 (2019: HK$30,000,000) was
unutilised, unrestricted and available to be drawn down.

Mr. Lui has also agreed to provide continuing financial
support to the Group and confirmed that he has uplifted
the demand clause, as further detailed in note 31 to these
consolidated financial statements during the year ended 31
December 2020, and will not withdraw the Facility provided
to the Group and have financial ability to provide facility
granted to the Group within the next twelve months or until
the Group has financial capability to do so.

The directors of the Company have reviewed the Group’s
cash flow projections prepared by the management. The
cash flow projections cover a period of not less than twelve
months from 31 December 2020. Based on the cash flow
projections, the Group will have sufficient financial resources
to meet its financial obligations as and when they fall due
in the coming twelve months from 31 December 2020. The
management has made key assumptions on the projections
with regard to the anticipated cash flows from the Group’s
operations and capital expenditures.

The directors of the Company consider that after taking into
account of the above-mentioned matters, the Group will
have sufficient working capital to finance its operations and
to meet its financial obligation for at least the next twelve
months from the date of approval of these consolidated
financial statements. Accordingly, the consolidated financial
statements have been prepared on a going concern basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z2020512 A31H L FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities controlled
by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved
when the Company:

o has power over the investee;

o is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes
to one or more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the
Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income
and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income from the
date the Group gains control until the date when the Group
ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company
and to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
into line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members
of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein, which represent
present ownership interests entitling their holders to a
proportionate share of net assets of the relevant subsidiaries
upon liquidation.

EXRETHEG@E

REEE

eV BHRRBRARE AR B AT
WERREMBE QRN BRE - AR
Blim e A T B 2= BN A 2 I

o HRRENBEEES

o H2EFRERAERHNFEHE R
AERRRZEAEN K&

s REBHBEHFEHDR-

MEERBERRER il =R HIEE R A
FERZREE  AAKEGENFE
REBINERIE R R B EHIHE -

AR B ERAS ST P B 2 B RO F2 Il R R 4
REMBARIRRE - WA B KX
BRRMIERERAL - ARBME @ NF
PRI =X & RO BT /8 2 R RV MR A e F 52
CHAKRERSEHENEBEEARE
RENTB S RIE SIS B MR AR S
BamhHEMEEKER

BamhEMEEKEEIERFBRARA
A AN ER - MBARNEZEK
SEERBRARRREE ARIFERE
o - BME L8R & S| BT 5 1 IR B Al

ELEBERAT » RARSHHME AR
BRRFL AR - AEESFTHREARE
EFTHO S BRERT — 2

EAKEXERARRZBHENABERENAN
BENAE  #E WA FAXERRER

B 2 M FE AR A 2 B A S A R A
R D25 - EBREERANER
BB T EIEE AR IS (B BB AR
HE R EE -

TEFR | EREE (ER) BRAF — 77



SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of
the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by
the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the
equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for control
of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally
recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value,
except that:

° deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or
liabilities related to employee benefit arrangements are
recognised and measured in accordance with HKAS
12 Income Taxes and HKAS 19 Employee Benefits
respectively;

° liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-based
payment arrangements of the Group entered into to
replace share-based payment arrangements of the
acquiree are measured in accordance with HKFRS 2
Share-based Payment at the acquisition date; and

o assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held
for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current
Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations are
measured in accordance with that standard.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over
the net amount of the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed as at acquisition date. If, after re-
assessment, the net amount of the identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess
is recognised immediately in profit or loss as a bargain
purchase gain.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z2020512 A31H L FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate share
of the relevant subsidiary’s net assets in the event of
liquidation are initially measured at the non-controlling
interests’ proportionate share of the recognised amounts
of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets or at fair value. The
choice of measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-
transaction basis.

Changes in Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries with change of control

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the assets
and liabilities of that subsidiary and non-controlling interests
(if any) are derecognised. A gain or loss is recognised in
profit or loss and is calculated as the difference between (i)
the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received
and the fair value of any retained interest and (i) the carrying
amount of the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of
the subsidiary attributable to the owners of the Company.
All amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in relation to that subsidiary are accounted for as
if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss
or transferred to another category of equity as specified/
permitted by applicable HKFRSs)

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of business is carried at
cost as established at the date of acquisition of the business
less accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units
(“CGUSs”) (or groups of CGUs) that is expected to benefit
from the synergies of the combination, which represent the
lowest level at which the goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes and not larger than an operating
segment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z2020F 12 A31H L FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Goodwill (Continued)

A CGU (or group of CGUs) to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment annually or more
frequently when there is indication that the unit may
be impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a
reporting period, the CGU (or group of CGUs) to which
goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment before
the end of that reporting period. If the recoverable amount
is less than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is
allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
and then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis based on
the carrying amount of each asset in the unit (or group of
CGUs).

On disposal of the relevant CGU, the attributable amount of
goodwill is included in the determination of the amount of
the gain or loss on disposal.

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or
services underlying the particular performance obligation is
transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or
a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of
distinct goods or services that are substantially the same.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z2020512 A31H L FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised
over time by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation if one of
the following criteria is met:

o the customer simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits provided by the Group’s performance as
the Group performs;

o the Group’s performance creates or enhances
an asset that the customer controls as the Group
performs; or

o the Group’s performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the Group and the Group
has an enforceable right to payment for performance
completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when
the customer obtains control of the distinct good or service.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation
to transfer goods or services to a customer for which
the Group has received consideration (or an amount of
consideration is due) from the customer.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e I RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z2020F 12 A31H L FE
4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. BEREFTBEG@E
(Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers REEFEHNHWE(E)
(Continued)

The Group incurs costs to fulfill a contract in its exhibition AEBRERENEIRESHNTREITE
and trade show contracts. The Group first assesses RRFEAKRAR - AEEFHLRBEMIER
whether these costs qualify for recognition as an asset in EBFEZERLARLTEERERASE
terms of other relevant Standards, failing which it recognises E W TEERE  BEEFEUTEIIRE
an asset for these costs only if they meet all of the following BIEZENTERBEE

criteria:

(@) the costs relate directly to a contract or to an @ BEAKAEAREBETHERRZE
anticipated contract that the Group can specifically ANTBHET L2 ENBEEBR
identify;

(b) the costs generate or enhance resources of the Group b) BEKASAEBZHBRET(EE
that will be used in satisfying (or in continuing to BRETBREBRAEEZERSUE
satisfy) performance obligations in the future; and BRI K&

(c) the costs are expected to be recovered ) BEEKATEERYE

The asset so recognised is subsequently amortised to profit Nt ER s EEERBRIER G EEHES

or loss on a systematic basis that is consistent with the B ZEAEERRFPEEZEERB

transfer to the customer of the goods or services to which EmsRE—% - EEEETRESRH -

the assets relate. The asset is subject to impairment review.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z2020512 A31H L FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified
in a contract with a customer. The Group recognises
revenue from the following major sources. The Group’s
revenue recognition policies on each of these revenue
sources are as follows:

(i) Publications and advertising income

The Group generates advertising income from the
publications that are point and online media platform.
The customers simultaneously receive and consume
the benefits when the advertisements are released
on the designated publications and online media
platform. Revenue from publications and advertising
recognised over time using the output method,
which is to recognise revenue on the basis of direct
measurements of the value of the services transferred
to the customer to date relative to the remaining
services promised under the contract.

The Group earns revenue from selling publications.
Revenue from sales of publications is recognised at a
point in time when the customer obtains control of the
magazines.

The Group generates advertising design and related
production services to its customers. Revenue from
provision of advertising design and related production
service is recognised over a period of time using the
output method, which is to recognise revenue on
the basis of direct measurements of the value to the
customer of the services transferred to date relative to
the remaining services promised under contract (i.e.
when the designated publications transferred to the
customers.)

EXRETHEG@E

REFEFENH K E(F)

Wes IRBEEFEARIANKERE - K
SEAN T E2RRHERME - AEER
FIRE B R U s FERR R R AN T

() FYREZKA

AEEBHRNY MR EREFE
EEESKA - EFRKEREILFE
RESHEEENY MR EEEFSE
tEGROANE - A RESHK
sSfERELABERERER - iKE
BEMELS5CHEETEPHNRGE
ERH GO T AR EAERT R
EENEER-RKE -

AEEBHET RIS - HE
T4 e W et 5 10 55 P BUAS i o E 12
Tl B 2 — B B RR

AEESETEFRHEES R MAE
FASLIERRTS - IR E S RAT AR
SERBHOWSERBELZE K
REAER  REEAEES
EEETEFPNREEERESH
MHEGRERNBR TRBEENESE
ERLEAEETMEBERTER

B o)

TEFR | EREE (ER) FRAT — 83



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e I RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z2020F 12 A31H L FE

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Outdoor advertising income

The Group provides outdoor advertising spaces to
customers. The customers simultaneously receive
and consume the benefits when the advertisement is
displayed on the outdoor advertising spaces. Revenue
from outdoor advertising is recognised over time using
the output method.

The Group provides advertisement sourcing agency
services to its customers. Revenue from provision of
advertisement sourcing agency service is recognised
over a period of time under a straight-line method
and amortised over the period of the contract. The
Group recognises revenue in the amount of any fee or
commission on a net basis as an agent.

Exhibitions and trade show and related service
income

Revenue from provision of exhibitions and trade show
services is recognised over time using the output
method, which is to recognise revenue on the basis
of direct measurements of the value of the services
transferred to the customer to date relative to the
remaining services promised under the contract.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z2020512 A31H L FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Contract assets

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for
goods or services transferred to the customer. If the Group
performs by transferring goods or services to a customer
before the customer pays consideration or before payment
is due, a contract asset is recognised for the earned
consideration that is conditional. Contract assets are subject
to impairment assessment, details of which are included in
the accounting policies for impairment of financial assets.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is received
or a payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer
before the Group transfers the related goods or services.
Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the
Group performs under the contract (i.e., transfers control of
the related goods or services to the customer).

Contract costs

Other than the costs which are capitalised as inventories,
property, plant and equipment and intangible assets, costs
incurred to fulfil a contract with a customer are capitalised
as an asset if all of the following criteria are met:

(@ The costs relate directly to a contract or to an
anticipated contract that the entity can specifically
identify.

The costs generate or enhance resources of the
entity that will be used in satisfying (or in continuing to
satisfy) performance obligations in the future.

(c) The costs are expected to be recovered.

The capitalised contract costs are amortised and charged
to the statement of profit or loss on a systematic basis that
is consistent with the transfer to the customer of the goods

or services to which the asset relates. Other contract costs
are expensed as incurred.

EXRETHEG@E

BHEE

BHREENIBRREAEPEENEMX
ARA AR B ZHER - HARERES
A RERT B BN AT A & e R 15
BTEE - BIBLH S G RER A E TR
BREE - BREERTIARERE &
HBEENAHEREEREZSFTHBUR -

BRAME

BHABEINAKEERHEREE MRS
Z BBV R R SRR Sk M = P 2 AR B KR
HHARBEELEERE)RHER - BHE
ERAREREABIEEEmIIRE 22
HIEEBERP)RRERSWA -

o
Pt

x

BREREE VX BEMRREARER
BEBEAZERAI - WEFE KT EE K
4t BIRETTEP A QM ELE 2 A TR
REEEN

(@) AAAESHHTREREBHENNTE
FRRENERER -

MAREREESRAEBERMZE
RGN BEARET (HFERTT)
BRRME -

(© FXATREAR] FUL[E o
BABRZBEHNAR R G EER AL
BEmRAG > ERNEFPEBREEMBN
EmE RG] - BB ORARELR
i e

ZEFR | EREE (ER) GRAE — 85



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e I RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z2020F 12 A31H L FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leases
Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys
the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period
of time in exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified or arising from
business combinations on or after the date of initial
application, the Group assesses whether a contract is or
contains a lease based on the definition under HKFRS
16 at inception, modification date or acquisition date, as
appropriate. Such contract will not be reassessed unless
the terms and conditions of the contract are subsequently
changed.

The Group as a lessee
Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

For a contract that contains a lease component and one or
more additional lease or non-lease components, the Group
allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease
component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of
the lease component and the aggregate stand-alone price
of the non-lease components.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z2020512 A31H L FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exception to leases that have a lease term of 12 months or
less from the commencement date and do not contain a
purchase option. It also applies the recognition exemption
for lease of low-value assets. Lease payments on short-
term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised
as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Right-of-use assets

Except for short-term leases and leases of low value
assets, the Group recognises right-of-use assets at
the commencement date of the lease (i.e. the date the
underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are
measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of
lease liabilities.

The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

o the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liability;

o any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives
received;

o any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

o an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group
in dismantling and removing the underlying assets,
restoring the site on which it is located or restoring the
underlying asset to the condition required by the terms
and conditions of the lease.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e I RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z2020F 12 A31H L FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Right-of-use assets (Continued)

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably certain
to obtain ownership of the underlying leased assets at the
end of the lease term is depreciated from commencement
date to the end of the useful life. Otherwise, right-of-use
assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the
shorter of its estimated useful life and the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate line
item on the consolidated statement of financial position.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group
recognises and measures the lease liability at the present
value of lease payments that are unpaid at that date.
In calculating the present value of lease payments, the
Group uses the incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date if the interest rate implicit in the lease
is not readily determinable.

The lease payments include:

o fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments) less any lease incentives receivable;

° variable lease payments that depend on an index or a
rate;

o amounts expected to be paid under residual value
guarantees;

° the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably
certain to be exercised by the Group; and

o payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising the option to
terminate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z2020512 A31H L FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Lease liabilities (Continued)

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted
by interest accretion and lease payments.

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a
corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use assets)
whenever:

o the lease term has changed or there is a change in
the assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in
which case the related lease liability is remeasured
by discounting the revised lease payments using a
revised discount rate at the date of reassessment.

° the lease payments change due to changes in market
rental rates following a market rent review, in which
cases the related lease liability is remeasured by
discounting the revised lease payments using the initial
discount rate.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item
on the consolidated statement of financial position.

Lease modifications

The Group accounts for a lease modification as a separate
lease if:

o the modification increases the scope of the lease by
adding the right to use one or more underlying assets;
and

o the consideration for the leases increases by an
amount commensurate with the stand-alone price for
the increase in scope and any appropriate adjustments
to that stand-alone price to reflect the circumstances
of the particular contract.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e I RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z2020F 12 A31H L FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Lease modifications (Continued)

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as
a separate lease, the Group remeasures the lease
liability based on the lease term of the modified lease by
discounting the revised lease payments using a revised
discount rate at the effective date of the modification.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease
liabilities by making corresponding adjustments to the
relevant right-of-use asset. When the modified contract
contains a lease component and one or more additional
lease or non-lease components, the Group allocates
the consideration in the modified contract to each lease
component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of
the lease component and the aggregate stand-alone price
of the non-lease components.

When the Group is an intermediate lessor, a sublease
is classified as a finance lease or operating lease with
reference to the right-of-use asset arising from the head
lease. If the head lease is a short-term lease to which the
Group applies the on-balance sheet recognition exemption,
the Group classifies the sublease as an operating lease.

Group as a lessor
When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease

inception (or when there is a lease modification) each of its
leases as either an operating lease or a finance lease.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z2020512 A31H L FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leases (Continued)
Group as a lessor (Continued)

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially
all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset
are classified as operating leases. When a contract contains
lease and non-lease components, the Group allocates
the consideration in the contract to each component on
a relative stand-alone selling price basis. Rental income is
accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms
and is included in revenue in the statement of profit or loss
due to its operating nature. Initial direct costs incurred in
negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to
the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised
over the lease term on the same basis as rental income.
Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the period in
which they are earned.

Leases that transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of an underlying asset to the lessee
are accounted for as finance leases.

At the commencement date, the cost of the leased asset
is capitalised at the present value of the lease payments
and related payments (including the initial direct costs),
and presented as a receivable at an amount equal to the
net investment in the lease. The finance income on the net
investment in the lease is recognised in the statement of
profit or loss so as to provide a constant periodic rate of
charge return over the lease terms.

When the Group is an intermediate lessor, a sublease
is classified as a finance lease or operating lease with
reference to the right-of-use asset arising from the head
lease. If the head lease is a short-term lease to which the
Group applies the on-balance sheet recognition exemption,
the Group classifies the sublease as an operating lease.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e I RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z2020F 12 A31H L FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the entity’s
functional currency (foreign currencies) are recognised
at the rates of exchange prevailing on the dates of the
transactions. At the end of each reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried
at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when the
fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency
are not retranslated.

Exchange differences on settlement of monetary items, and
on the retranslation of monetary items, are recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) using exchange rates
prevailing at the end of each reporting period. Income and
expense items are translated at the average exchange
rates for the period, unless exchange rates fluctuate
significantly during that period, in which case, the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions are used.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
under the heading of “exchange reserve” (attributed to non-
controlling interests as appropriate).

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a disposal
of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or a
disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary that
includes a foreign operation, or a partial disposal of an
interest in a joint arrangement or an associate that includes
a foreign operation of which the retained interest becomes a
financial asset), all of the exchange differences accumulated
in equity in respect of that operation attributable to the
owners of the Company are reclassified to profit or loss.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets
acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation
are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign operation
and translated at the rate of exchange prevailing at the end
of each reporting period. Exchange differences arising are
recognised in other comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z2020512 A31H L FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Borrowing costs

All borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be
received.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation
for expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose
of giving immediate financial support to the Group with no
future related costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they become receivable.

Employee benefits
Bonuses

The Group recognises a liability for bonuses when there is
a contractual obligation and the amount can be estimated
reliably.

Retirement benefit obligations

The Group operates the Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for those
employees employed under the jurisdiction of the Hong
Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF Scheme is a
defined contribution scheme, the assets of which are held in
separate trustee-administered funds.

Under the MPF Scheme, the employer and its employees
are each required to make contributions to the scheme at
5% of the employees’ relevant income, with the employees’
contributions subject to a cap of monthly relevant income
of HK$30,000. The Group’s contributions to the MPF
Scheme are expensed as incurred. 5% of relevant income
vests immediately upon the completion of service in the
relevant service period, while the remaining portion vests in
accordance with the MPF Scheme’s vesting scales. Where
employees leave the MPF Scheme prior to the full vesting
of the employer’s contributions, the amount of forfeited
contributions is used to reduce the contributions payable by
the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e I RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z2020F 12 A31H L FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Employee benefits (Continued)
Retirement benefit obligations (Continued)

The employees employed by the Group’s subsidiaries in
the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) are members
of state-managed retirement benefit schemes operated by
the government of the PRC. The subsidiaries are required
to contribute a specific percentage of payroll costs to the
retirement benefit scheme to fund the benefits. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement
benefits schemes operated by the government of the PRC
is to make the specified contributions under the schemes.”

Social security fund

Full-time employees of the Group’s Macau subsidiaries are
covered by a government-mandated defined contribution
plan pursuant to which a fixed amount of retirement benefit
would be determined and paid by the Macau government.
Contributions are generally made by both employees and
employers by paying a fixed amount on a monthly basis
to the Social Security Fund Contribution managed by the
Macau government.

Share options granted to employees

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and
others providing similar services are measured at the fair
value of the equity instruments at the grant date.

The fair value of the equity-settled share-based payments
determined at the grant date without taking into
consideration all non-market vesting conditions is expensed
on a straight-line basis over the vesting period, based on the
Group’s estimate of equity instruments that will eventually
vest, with a corresponding increase in equity (share options
reserve). At the end of each reporting period, the Group
revises its estimate of the number of equity instruments
expected to vest based on assessment of all relevant non-
market vesting conditions. The impact of the revision of the
original estimates, if any, is recognised in profit or loss such
that the cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate,
with a corresponding adjustment to the equity-settled
share-based payment reserve. For share options that vest
immediately at the date of grant, the fair value of the share
options granted is expensed immediately to profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z2020512 A31H L FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Employee benefits (Continued)
Share options granted to employees (Continued)

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be transferred to
share capital and share premium. When the share options
are forfeited after the vesting date or are still not exercised
at the expiry date, the amount previously recognised in
share options reserve will be transferred to accumulated
losses.

Share options granted to consultants

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions with
parties other than employees are measured at the fair value
of the goods or services received, except where that fair
value cannot be estimated reliably, in which case they are
measured at the fair value of the equity instruments granted,
measured at the date the entity obtains the goods or the
counterparty renders the service. The fair values of the
goods or services received are recognised as expenses.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from “loss before tax” as reported
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss because of
income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other
years and items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e I RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z2020F 12 A31H L FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding
tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally
recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which those deductible temporary differences
can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are
not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the
initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of
assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the
taxable profit nor the accounting profit. In addition, deferred
tax liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from the initial recognition of goodwiill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries
and interests in associates, except where the Group is
able to control the reversal of the temporary difference
and it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences associated
with such investments and interests are only recognised
to the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in
the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will
be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rates
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z2020512 A31H L FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of
its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred taxes for investment
properties that are measured using the fair value model,
the carrying amounts of such properties are presumed to
be recovered entirely through sale, unless the presumption
is rebutted. The presumption is rebutted when investment
properties are depreciable and is held within a business
model whose objective is to consume substantially all of
the economic benefits embodied in the investment property
over time, rather than through sale.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-of-
use assets and the related lease liabilities, the Group first
determines whether the tax deductions are attributable to
the right-of-use assets or the lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies HKAS
12 Income Taxes requirements to right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities separately. Temporary differences relating to
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities are not recognised
at initial recognition and over the lease terms due to
application of the initial recognition exemption.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which
case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax arises
from the initial accounting for a business combination, the
tax effect is included in the accounting for the business
combination.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e I RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z2020F 12 A31H L FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

In assessing any uncertainty over income tax treatments,
the Group considers whether it is probable that the relevant
tax authority will accept the uncertain tax treatment used,
or proposed to be use by individual group entities in their
income tax filings. If it is probable, the current and deferred
taxes are determined consistently with the tax treatment in
the income tax filings. If it is not probable that the relevant
taxation authority will accept an uncertain tax treatment,
the effect of each uncertainty is reflected by using either the
most likely amount or the expected value.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment held for use in the production
or supply of goods or services, or for administrative purpose
are stated in the consolidated statement of financial position
at cost, less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of
assets other than construction in progress less their residual
values over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-
line method. The estimated useful lives, residual values
and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate
accounted for on a prospective basis. The principal annual
rates are as follows:

Leasehold improvements 33.33%
Office equipment 20%
Furniture and fixtures 20%
Motor vehicle 20%

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued used of the asset.
Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an
item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the
difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z2020512 A31H L FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Intangible assets
Intangible assets acquired separately

Separately are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation
and any accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation for
intangible assets with finite useful lives is recognised on
a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The
estimated useful life and amortisation method are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective
basis.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives that are
acquired separately are carried at cost less any subsequent
accumulated impairment losses.

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination
are recognised separately from goodwill and are initially
recognised at their fair value at the acquisition date (which is
regarded as their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets acquired
in a business combination with finite useful lives are
reported at cost less any accumulated amortisation and
any accumulated impairment losses, on the same basis as
intangible assets that are acquired separately.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e I RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z2020F 12 A31H L FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Intangible assets (Continued)
Derecognition of intangible assets

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no
future economic benefits are expected from use or disposal.
Gains and losses arising from derecognition of an intangible
asset, measured as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, and are
recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.

Impairment of property, plant and equipment, right-of-
use assets, contract costs and intangible assets other
than goodwill

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets and intangible assets with finite useful
lives and contract cost to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment
loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount
of the relevant asset is estimated in order to determine the
extent of the impairment loss (if any). Intangible assets with
indefinite useful lives and intangible assets not yet available
for use are tested for impairment at least annually, and
whenever there is an indication that they may be impaired.

The recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets, and intangible assets are estimated
individually, when it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount individually, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the CGU to which the asset belongs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z2020512 A31H L FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Intangible assets (Continued)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment, right-of-
use assets, contract costs and intangible assets other
than goodwill (Continued)

In addition, the Group assesses whether there is indication
that corporate assets may be impaired. If such indication
exists, corporate assets are also allocated to individual
CGUs, when a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation
can be identified, or otherwise they are allocated to the
smallest group of CGUs for which a reasonable and
consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Before the Group recognises an impairment loss for assets
capitalised as contract costs under HKFRS 15, the Group
assesses and recognises any impairment loss on other
assets related to the relevant contracts in accordance with
applicable standards. Then, impairment loss, if any, for
assets capitalised as contract costs is recognised to the
extent the carrying amounts exceeds the remaining amount
of consideration that the Group expects to receive in
exchange for related goods or services less the costs which
relate directly to providing those goods or services that have
not been recognised as expenses. The assets capitalised as
contract costs are then included in the carrying amount of
the CGU to which they belong for the purpose of evaluating
impairment of that CGU.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset (or a CGU) for which the estimates
of future cash flows have not been adjusted.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e I RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z2020F 12 A31H L FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Intangible assets (Continued)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment, right-of-
use assets, contract costs and intangible assets other
than goodwill (Continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a CGU) is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset (or a CGU) is reduced to its recoverable
amount. For corporate assets or portion of corporate assets
which cannot be allocated on a reasonable and consistent
basis to a CGU, the Group compares the carrying amount
of a group of cash-generating units, including the carrying
amounts of the corporate assets or portion of corporate
assets allocated to that group of CGUs, with the recoverable
amount of the group of CGUs. In allocating the impairment
loss, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill (if applicable) and then to
the other assets on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying
amount of each asset in the unit or the group of CGUs.
The carrying amount of an asset is not reduced below the
highest of its fair value less costs of disposal (if measurable),
its value in use (if determinable) and zero. The amount of the
impairment loss that would otherwise have been allocated
to the asset is allocated pro rata to the other assets of the
unit. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit
or loss.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or CGU or a group of CGUs)
is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable
amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset (or a CGU or a group of CGUS) in prior years. A
reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in
profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z2020512 A31H L FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event,
it is probable that the Group will be required to settle the
obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate
of the consideration required to settle the present obligation
at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the
risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When
a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated
to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the
present value of those cash flows (where the effect of the
time value of money is material).

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle
a provision are expected to be recovered from a third party,
a receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain
that reimbursement will be received and the amount of the
receivable can be measured reliably.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when
a group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument. All regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a
trade date/settlement date basis. Regular way purchases or
sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the time frame established by
regulation or convention in the market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value except for trade receivables arising from
contracts with customers which are initially measured in
accordance with HKFRS 15. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial
assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets
at FVTPL are added to or deducted from the fair value of
the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on
initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to
the acquisition of financial assets at FVTPL are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e I RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z2020F 12 A31H L FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability
and of allocating interest income and interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts and
payments (including all fees and points paid or received
that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through
the expected life of the financial asset or financial liability,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Interest income which are derived from the Group’s ordinary
course of business are presented as other income.

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

° the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is to collect contractual cash flows;
and

° the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z2020512 A31H L FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (Continued)

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”):

o the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and selling; and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at
FVTPL, except that at the date of initial application of
HKFRSY/initial recognition of a financial asset the Group
may irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in
fair value of an equity investment in other comprehensive
income if that equity investment is neither held for trading
nor contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer
in a business combination to which HKFRS 3 Business
Combinations applies.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the near term; or

° on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual pattern of
short-term profit-taking; or

° it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as
a hedging instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial
asset that are required to be measured at the amortised
cost or FVTOCI as measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates
or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e I RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z2020F 12 A31H L FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (Continued)

M

(i)

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective
interest method for financial assets measured
subsequently at amortised cost. Interest income is
calculated by applying the effective interest rate to
the gross carrying amount of a financial asset, except
for financial assets that have subsequently become
credit-impaired (see below). For financial assets that
have subsequently become credit-impaired, interest
income is recognised by applying the effective interest
rate to the amortised cost of the financial asset from
the next reporting period. If the credit risk on the
credit-impaired financial instrument improves so that
the financial asset is no longer credit-impaired, interest
income is recognised by applying the effective interest
rate to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset
from the beginning of the reporting period following
the determination that the asset is no longer credit
impaired.

Equity instruments designated as FVTOCI

Investment in equity instruments at FVTOCI are
subsequently measured at fair value with gains and
losses arising from changes in fair value recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
FVTOCI reserve; and are not subject to impairment
assessment. The cumulative gain or loss will not be
reclassified to profit or loss on disposal of the equity
investments, and will continue to be held in the
FVTOCI reserve.

Dividends from these investments in equity instruments
are recognised in profit or loss when the Group’s right
to receive the dividends is established, unless the
dividends clearly represent a recovery of part of the
cost of the investment.

106 — WINTO GROUP (HOLDINGS) LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2020

EXRETHEG@E

ERMIAGE

EHEE &)

EREENTERAKLSE B

(i)

BRSPS B A B UA

HEB BB HERAGTENEREEN
MEBWATIERER AN SRR -
MNEBEBATEBREEREERTE
RERAERMNETUGE - X
RERERRENS@MEERT
ORI - BRERHREEREDN
EREE T ERSHENS
WAE%@%@@%E%%&K%
AERENEER - EEERESR
TANEERREE  EREE
TBEREERHE EREEET
BHREERER  KREHHSR
MNEBATEBREEREERTE
FEFEE BRI R o

HE AR FHER AR M 2 E RS
MR T A

BN ER AR 2 S r IR
TEMKREERRATEFE  H
AFEEHEENRERERRHE
i, 22 [ U a5 AR e IR IR A R AE A
Hizmik s fm Rt - BBAE
ARG - Rt REXEBRNHEE
hﬁ&é%%?iﬁ‘ﬁzﬁm

Wil BN IR N FEFARMEE
Wéﬁﬁ%ﬁ°

fin] 7 &% [ 4 <7 U B AR B RE I B
BZERATARENRENRIER
FIER - FRIEB R B RRE AU E
RIEB D IR E RS - BIERIFR ©



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z2020512 A31H L FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (Continued)

(i) ~ Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being

measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI or designated
as FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value
at the end of each reporting period, with any fair value
gains or losses recognised in profit or loss. The net
gain or loss recognised in profit or loss excludes any
dividend or interest earned on the financial asset and
is included in the other gain and losses line item.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for expected
credit loss (“ECL”) on financial assets which are subject
to impairment under HKFRS 9 (including loan receivables,
trade and other receivables and bank balances). The
amount of ECL is updated at the end of each reporting
period to reflect changes in credit risk since initial
recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from
all possible default events over the expected life of the
relevant instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL represents
the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from
default events that are possible within 12 months after the
reporting date. Assessment are done based on the Group’s
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are
specific to the debtors, general economic conditions and an
assessment of both the current conditions at the end of the
reporting period as well as the forecast of future conditions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e I RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z2020F 12 A31H L FE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables without significant financing component.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12-month ECL, unless when there
has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The
assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be recognised
is based on significant increases in the likelihood or risk of a
default occurring since initial recognition.

()  Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the reporting period with the
risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument
as at the date of initial recognition. In making this
assessment, the Group considers both quantitative
and qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportable, including historical experience and
forward-looking information that is available without
undue cost or effort.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z2020512 A31H L FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

()  Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly:

° an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the financial instrument’s external (if available) or
internal credit rating;

° significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant increase
in the credit spread, the credit default swap
prices for the debtor;

° existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are
expected to cause a significant decrease in the
debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations;

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the operating results of the debtor;

o an actual or expected significant adverse change
in the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a
significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to
meet its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information
that demonstrates otherwise.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e I RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z2020F 12 A31H L FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

M

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of
the criteria used to identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the
amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group
considers an event of default occurs when information
developed internally or obtained from external sources
indicates that the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors,
including the Group, in full (without taking into account
any collaterals held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that
default has occurred when (i) a trade receivable
is more than 90 days past due unless the Group
has reasonable and supportable information to
demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is
more appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z2020512 A31H L FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
(i)  Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events of default that have a detrimental impact on the
estimated future cash flows of that financial asset have
occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is credit-
impaired includes observable data about the following
events:

° significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower;

° a breach of contract, such as a default or past
due event;

° the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower
a concession(s) that the lender(s) would not
otherwise consider;

° it is becoming probable that the borrower will
enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;
or

° the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e I RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z2020F 12 A31H L FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(iv)

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the counterparty is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect
of recovery, for example, when the counterparty
has been placed under liquidation or has entered
into bankruptcy proceedings, or in the case of trade
receivables, when the amounts are over two years
past due, whichever occurs sooner. Financial assets
written off may still be subject to enforcement activities
under the Group’s recovery procedures, taking into
account legal advice where appropriate. A write-off
constitutes a derecognition event. Any subsequent
recoveries are recognised in profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the
probability of default, loss given default (i.e. the
magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and
the exposure at default. The assessment of the
probability of default and loss given default is based
on historical data adjusted by forward-looking
information. Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased
and probability-weighted amount that is determined
with the respective risks of default occurring as the
weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive, discounted at the
effective interest rate determined at initial recognition.

Where ECL is measured on a collective basis or cater
for cases where evidence at the individual instrument
level may not yet be available, the financial instruments
are grouped on the past-due status basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z2020512 A31H L FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(v)  Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management
to ensure the constituents of each group continue to
share similar credit risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset unless the
financial asset is credit impaired, in which case interest
income is calculated based on amortised cost of the
financial asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in
profit or loss for all financial instruments by adjusting
their carrying amount, with the exception of trade and
loan receivables where the corresponding adjustment
is recognised through a loss allowance account.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another
entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to
control the transferred asset, the Group recognised its
retained interest in the asset and an associated liability
for amounts it may have to pay. If the Group retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of
a transferred financial asset, the Group continues to
recognised the financial asset and also recognises a
collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised
cost, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is
recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e I RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z2020F 12 A31H L FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Derecognition of financial assets (Continued)

On derecognition of an investment in equity instrument
which the Group has elected on initial recognition to
measure at FVTOCI, the cumulative gain or loss previously
accumulated in the investments revaluation reserve is
not reclassified to profit or loss, but is transferred to
accumulated losses.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial
liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance
of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all
of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company
are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue
costs.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities including trade and other payables,
other borrowing, amount due from a shareholder, amount
due to a non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary, loan
from a substantial shareholder and bank overdrafts are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z2020512 A31H L FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)
Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises the financial liabilities when,
and only when, the Group’s obligations are discharged,
cancelled or have expired.

When the contractual terms of financial liability are modified
such that the revised terms would result in a substantial
modification from the original terms after considering
qualitative factors (e.g. modifications of convertible
instruments such as extending the tenure, change in
exercise price of the underlying options). When the
contractual terms of financial liability are modified such that
the revised terms would result in a substantial modification
from the original terms, after taking into account all relevant
facts and circumstances including qualitative factors, such
modification is accounted for as derecognition of the original
financial liability and the recognition of new financial liability.
The difference between the carrying amount of financial
liability derecognised and the fair value of consideration paid
or payable, including any liabilities assumed and derivative
components recognised, is recognised in profit or loss.

For non-substantial modifications of financial liabilities that
do not result in derecognition, at the point of modification,
the carrying amount of the relevant financial liabilities is
revised for directly attributable transaction costs and any
consideration paid to or received from the counterparty.
The effective interest rate is then adjusted to amortise
the difference between the revised carrying amount and
the expected cash flows over the life of the modified
instrument.”
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e I RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z2020F 12 A31H L FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held at
call with banks, other short-term highly liquid investments
with original maturities of three months or less, and bank
overdrafts.

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and
on hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short term, highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. For
the purpose of the statement of cash flows presentation,
cash and cash equivalents include bank overdrafts which
is repayable on demand and form an integral part of the
Company’s cash management.

Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from
past events and whose existence will only be confirmed by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the Group. It
can also be a present obligation arising from past events
that is not recognised because it is not probable that outflow
of economic resources will be required or the amount
of obligation cannot be measured reliably. A contingent
liability is not recognised but is disclosed in the notes to the
consolidated financial statements. When a change in the
probability of an outflow occurs so that outflow is probable,
they will then be recognised as a provision.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past
events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the Group.
A contingent asset is not recognised but is disclosed in
the notes to the financial statements when an inflow of
economic benefits is probable. When inflow is virtually
certain, an asset is recognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z2020512 A31H L FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Related party transactions

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

() A person or a close member of that person’s family is
related to the Group if that person:

(1) has control or joint control over the Group;
(2)  has significant influence over the Group; or

(8) is a member of the key management personnel
of the Group or the Group’s parent.

(i) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

(1)  the entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others);

(2) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member);

(8) both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party

(4) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third entity;

(5) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group;

(6) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (i);

(7) a person identified in (i)(1) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity); or

(8) the entity, or any member of a group of which it
is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the Group’s parent.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e I RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z2020F 12 A31H L FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Related party transactions (Continued)

A related party transaction is a transfer of resources,
services or obligations between the Group and a related
party, regardless of whether a price is charged.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity.

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATES

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in note 4, the directors are required to
make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and other
factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results
may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised
if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
Estimated impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an
estimation of the recoverable amount of the cash generating
unit to which goodwill has been allocated, which is the
higher of the value in use or fair value less costs of disposal.
The value in use calculation requires the Group to estimate
the future cash flows expected to arise from the cash-
generating unit, a suitable discount rate, terminal rate and
growth rates in order to calculate the present value. No
impairment loss on goodwill was recognised during the
years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019. Details of the
recoverable amount calculation are disclosed in note 21.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z2020512 A31H L FE

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATES (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Estimated impairment of goodwill (Continued)

The carrying amount of goodwill at the end of the reporting
period was approximately HK$1,399,000 after an
impairment loss of HK$Nil was recognised during the year.

Provision of ECL for trade and other receivables

The Group uses provision matrix to calculate ECL for trade
receivables. The provision rates are based on debtor’s aging
as groupings of various debtors with common credit risk
characteristic. The provision matrix is based on the Group’s
historical default rates taking into consideration forward-
looking information that is reasonable and supportable,
and that is available without undue cost or effort. At every
reporting date, the historical observed default rates are
reassessed and changes in the forward-looking information
are considered. In addition, trade receivables that are credit
impaired are assessed for ECL individually.

In respect of other receivables, the Group assesses the
expected credit losses individually by estimation based
on historical credit loss experience, general economic
conditions of the relevant industry in which the debtors
operate, an assessment of both the current as well as the
forecast direction of conditions at the reporting date.

The information about the Group’s trade and other
receivables and credit risk and impairment assessment
are disclosed in notes 24 and 40 respectively. As at 31
December 2020, the carrying amount of the Group’s trade
and other receivables, net of allowance for credit loss, was
HK$7,598,000 (2019 (restated): HK$8,934,000).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e I RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z2020F 12 A31H L FE

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATES (Continued)

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies
Going concern and liquidity

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
apart from those involving estimations, management has
prepared the consolidated financial statements on the
assumption that the Group will be able to operate as a going
concern in the coming year, which is a critical judgement
that has the most significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the consolidated financial statements. The
assessment of the going concern assumption involves
making a judgement by the directors, at a particular point
of time, about the future outcome of events or conditions
which are inherently uncertain. The directors consider that
the Group has the capability to continue as a going concern
and the major events or conditions, which may give rise
to business risks, that individually or collectively may cast
significant doubt upon the going concern assumption
under “Basis of preparation” are set out in note 4 to these
consolidated financial statements.

Principal versus agent

When another party is involved in providing goods or
services to a customer, the Group determines whether the
nature of its promise is a performance obligation to provide
the specified goods or services itself (i.e. the Group as a
principal) or to arrange for those goods or services to be
provided by the other party (i.e. the Group as an agent).

The Group is a principal if it controls the specified good
or services before that good or services is transferred to a
customer.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e IR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z2020512 A31H L FE

REVENUE 6. W=
Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with REEFEHANREMED
customers
Continuing operations FEEEEK
2020 2019
20204 20194
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FH&T
(Restated)
(BE5)
Provision of exhibition and trade show RHtERE R E 5 R 8 &A@ RS
and related services 4,674 13,447
Publications and advertising income R EERA 21,478 7,337
Outdoor advertising income FONEEWA 3,714 54
29,866 20,838
Timing of revenue recognition Wi 225 e 8 B
A point in time 5 R ] B 1,647 70
Overtime B s 28,219 20,768
29,866 20,838
Transaction allocated to the remaining performance PHEEFEXNZE TRYNEEZXS
obligation for contract with customer
The Group has applied the practical expedient in paragraph AEBEHBEBNBRELERFEISRE
121 of HKFRS 15 to all its sale contracts such that the 121N EREEH ZERBEMAHEES
Group does not disclose information about revenue that B MAEBMTEEEETRITHR TR
the Group will be entitled to when it satisfies the remaining MEERKERIE 2 REER -

performance obligations.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e I RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z2020F 12 A31H L FE

OPERATING SEGMENTS

The Group manages its businesses by divisions, which are
organised by business lines in a manner consistent with
the way in which information is reported internally to the
Group’s Chief Operating Decision Maker (“CODM”), being
the executive directors of the Company for the purpose
of resource allocation and performance assessment. No
operating segments have been aggregated in arriving at the
reportable segments of the Group.

The Group’s reportable segments under HKFRS 8 are as
follows:

1 Exhibition and trade show business and related
services

2 Publications and advertising business, including print
and online media advertising, sales of publications,
advertising and related production services and
outdoor advertising

An operating segment regarding the mobile app business
was discontinued during the year ended 31 December
2019. The segment information reported below does not
include any amounts for this discontinued operation, which
are described in more details in note 36 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Information regarding the Group’s reportable segments as
provided to the Group’s CODM for the purposes of resource
allocation and assessment of segment performance for the
years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019 is set out below.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e IR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z2020512 A31H L FE

OPERATING SEGMENTS (Continued) 7. REDIER)
Segment revenues and results DI EE
Continuing operations FFRERE XK
For the year ended 31 December 2020 B ZE2020F12A31HLFE
Exhibition
and trade Publications
show business and
and related advertising
services business Total
RERES
BEXX HH R
R R L EES &t
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FHT FBT FHT
Revenue I %
Segment revenues D Ep e 4,674 26,192 30,866
Inter-segment sales DEEHEE - (1,000) (1,000)
Revenue from external customers RE IR B 4,674 25,192 29,866
Segment profit kil 2,360 12,784 15,144
Other income Hl A 1,816
Other gains or (losses) H a5k (B518) (623)
Operating expenses RERY (15,401)
Impairment loss recognised under BHEEBERAET
expected credit loss model ERRNRERE (301)
Finance costs AR (3,660)
Loss before tax Bri% B EE (3,025)
Income tax expense FTiSHiR (11)
Loss for the year FAEE (3,036)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e I RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & ZE20209F12 A31H L FE

7. OPERATING SEGMENTS (Continued)

7. RBESY

B (%)

Segment revenues and results (Continued) oI R I E4E ()
Continuing operations (Continued) FFEKEXE (E)
For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZE2019F12A31A L FE
Exhibition
and trade Publications
show business and
and related advertising
services business Total
EERES
EEEK T4 K&
&L S S =
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAL FHT FAT
(Restate) (Restate) (Restate)
(fe=5) (& E5) (&)
Revenue g
Segment revenues i 13,447 7,391 20,838
Inter-segment sales DEEHE - - -
Revenue from external customers RE IR RIS 13,447 7,391 20,838
Segment profit 7 B A 4,063 5,286 9,349
Other income HAnlg A 88
Other gains or (losses) Hih Wz sk (B518) (262)
Operating expenses RERX (23,720)
Impairment loss recognised under HHEEBBEEXET
expected credit loss model BRI FEERE (22,702)
Finance costs BEKA (1,621)
Share-based payment expense RS~ 3R 2 (659)
Loss before tax BrBiRTE1E (39,527)
Income tax expense FTiSBiR (174)
Loss for the year FAEE (39,701)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z2020512 A31H L FE

OPERATING SEGMENTS (Continued)
Segment revenues and results (Continued)
Continuing operations (Continued)

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the
same as the Group’s accounting policies described in note
4 to the consolidated financial statements. Segment profit
represents the profit earned from each segment without
allocation of other income, operating expenses, other gains
or losses, impairment loss recognised on trade and other
receivables and loan receivables, finance costs and share-
based payment expenses. This is the measure reported
to the Group’s management for the purposes of resource
allocation and performance assessment.

Segment assets and liabilities

Segment assets include all tangible and intangible assets
and current assets with the exception of equity instruments
at FVTOCI, unallocated bank balances and cash and other
corporate assets. Segment liabilities include provisions and
trade and other payables attributable to the activities of the
individual segments, contract liabilities and lease liabilities.

A

S & o FB ()
P L6 IS ES LY

RS BN ETBOREG A MR E
4R ARG BORAR 7 50 F 15
B o3 B BRER B i ) ) I 48 ) B B A A
REFS - HfblasssiR - B 5 REM
JE MR I K W B R SR DR (BB 18~ R
BRARBRONRAS - hTI2/ T AE
BEREEFEERND R RKRBATENAE

THEERER

DHEEBEMBEB L NELEENLR
PEE  TEERAFESARMEZEK
BAORATER - RO BRITHER MRS IA
REMPEEE - DHABERREADE
MEE  ANBRENEERE -
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7. OPERATING SEGMENTS (Continued) 7. REZIME

THEEREE(E)

Segment assets and liabilities (Continued)

AT RRA2RREENHEDNAEE
BENBBOHDN

The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and
liabilities by reportable and operating segments.

2020 2019
20204 20194
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHBT FET
(Restated)
(#EE5)
Segment assets PHEE
Exhibition and trade show business RENREIREXT
and related services N8R R T% 4,398 5,554
Publications and advertising business T & & 5 %75 24,557 8,130
Total segment assets DB EREE 28,955 13,684
Bank balances and cash IRTTHEH LIRS 239 1,407
Unallocated assets ROBLEE 1,562 1,535
Consolidated assets HREBE 30,756 16,626
Segment liabilities PEHEE
Exhibition and trade show business RENEFREES
and related services e 48 B8 AR 7% 1,421 1,924
Publications and advertising business ~ TI|% & & & 2 7% 6,635 1,569
Total segment liabilities DB ERTE 8,056 3,493
Unallocated liabilities AOBELAE 29,976 23,586
Consolidated liabilities = 38,032 27,079
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OPERATING SEGMENTS (Continued)
Geographical information

The Group’s continuing operations are located in
Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area.

Information about the Group’s revenue from external
customers for continuing operations is presented based on
location of delivery destination of the goods and place of
services rendered.

R B ()

I E R
AEEFELLEBUNEERNER o
FRASERBINEPNRELLEERR

W B R IRIBEE MR B &t ekie it
BRI BT 251

Revenue from

external customers Non-current assets
REIMBEF U= IRBEE
2020 2019 2020 2019
20204 20194 20204 20194
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’'000
THET FETT FERT FHETT
(Restated)
(Fe=51)
Continuing operations HFELE XK
Guangdong — Hong Kong 278 A &
— Macao Greater Bay
Area 29,866 20,838 13,120 3,179

ZEFR | EREE (ER) GRAT — 127



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e I RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z2020F 12 A31H L FE

7. OPERATING SEGMENTS (Continued) & a0 (4|)
Continuing operations BEKEER
Revenue from customers contributing over 10% of total RABEFEELASEEHEBERIBI0%H
sales of the corresponding years of the Group is as follows: RN
2020 2019
2020 2019%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FHT
Customer A (Note a) = PA(M7Ea) 3,489 4,090
Customer B (Note a) = FB(MiFEa) N/ATE A1 2,892
Customer C (Note b) X PC(MsEDb) N/ATE A1 2,097
Customer D (Note b) = PD(HIFED) 5,705 5,688

Notes:

U The corresponding revenue did not contribute over 10% of the
total revenue of the Group for the corresponding years

(@) Revenue from the above customers is arising from exhibition and
trade show business and related services.

(b)  Revenue from the above customers is arising from publications
and advertising business.

! RIBFESFE - AR R a3 SR 05 7N SR [ 48 1L
#H10%A £

@ RELRFFPHKRSEELBERERESRE
BEGMBRER -

(o) ?A(;QJ:E%?}E s TIRE TR ES %
5

8. OTHER INCOME Ha A
2020 2019
20204 2019%F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FExT FHET
Continuing operations BEREER

Interest income on finance lease B & & R UGR IR R F B LA
receivables 23 -
Interest income on loan receivables FEW E KB FI B HA - 87
Interest income on non-current deposits FERENIL S BI A E U A 172 =
Government grants (note) B #78 Bh (B9 5%) 1,531 -
Bank interest income RITHFEMA - 1
Sundry income HMIBIA 90 -
1,816 88

Note: During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group
recognised government grants of approximately HK$902,000
(2019: Nil) related to Employment Support Scheme provided by
the Hong Kong government and COVID-19 related subsidies
provided by the Government of Macau. The remaining
recognised government grants of approximately HK$629,000
related to an incentive subsidy for technology modernisation
by the Government Information Bureaus of the Macau SAR.
Government grants were recognised at the time the Group
fulfilled the relevant granting criteria.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e IR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z2020512 A31H L FE

OTHER GAINS OR LOSSES 9. Hftlhz=mIEE
2020 2019
20204 20194
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHEIT
Continuing operations HEKSEEK
Loss on debt modification ER AR E R (730 %31)
(notes 30 and 31) (978) -
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries HEH BRI EIR
(note 36) GEXD) - (221)
Loss arising on change in fair value of IR AFEFFABENCRHEE
financial assets at FVTPL NEEEHELENEE - (34)

Gain on derecognition of right-of-use RO (AR E T ERF R I HERE A
assets upon classification of finance & B r W s (T 5126)

lease (note 26) 355 -
Net foreign exchange loss HNE ES 1R R - (7)
(623) (262)
. FINANCE COSTS 10. BMER A&
2020 2019
20204 20194F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FET
(Restated)
(& &E5))
Continuing operations FEREEK
Interest on bank overdrafts IRITELFE - 122
Interest on other borrowing H A &3 F B 1,027 1,270
Interest on loan from a substantial FTERRERFE
shareholder 2,615 96
Interest on lease liabilities HEBERE 18 133
3,660 1,621
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11. LOSS BEFORE TAX 11. BREATEE
Loss before tax has been arrived at after charging: BB RIE B DR TR IBEED -
2020 2019
20204 2019%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FHET
Continuing operations FEREEK
Auditors’ remuneration (note) ZEEM I 2 (B 5E) 1,801 950
Equity-settled share-based payment BERNBRAEERO T HRAS
expense to consultants - S5
Impairment loss recognised on loan BN E R AR EEE
receivables - 1,752
Impairment loss recognised on trade  Ht & 5 & E Ath fE U R I FERR &Y
and other receivables, net BEEEFRE 301 950
Impairment loss recognised on AR E IR e HERAREE R
refundable deposit - 20,000
Depreciation of property, VI - BMEREITE
plant and equipment 579 839
Depreciation of right-of-use asset CRREENE - 1,745
Rental expenses in respect of REESENEERS
short-term leases 971 534
Staff costs BT KA
Director’'s emoluments (note 14) EEE (M1sE14) 1,603 4,929
Other staff costs Hfh 8 TR
- salaries, allowances and benefitsin =~ — %4 - 2B R EWEF
kind 7,609 6,842
— contributions to retirement benefits R EFFHEI K
scheme 265 249
7,874 7,091
Note: Auditor's remuneration for the year ended 31 December 2020 Bt : B ZE2020512A31 8 L F [ 894+ 26m B
included approximately HK$880,000 and HK$920,500 payable BREIRENTRAE(ER) SRS
to McM (HK) CPA Limited and predecessor auditor respectively. 74 Bt X A A 4% 2RAM 9 £9880,00078 7T K& 47
920,500 /& T °
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INCOME TAX EXPENSE 12. FI8HiIFAX
2020 2019
20204 20194
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Continuing operations HERSEEK
Hong Kong Profits Tax BBMEH
- Current tax - BHATE 18 - -
Macau Complementary Tax SRPIFTIS TR
- Current tax - BIHATE 18 - 174
— Underprovision in prior years -BAEFERETR 11 -
11 174

On 21 March 2018, the Hong Kong Legislative Council
passed The Inland Revenue (Amendment) (No. 7) Bill 2017
(the “Bill”) which introduces the two-tiered profits tax rates
regime. The Bill was signed into law on 28 March 2018 and
was gazetted on the following day. Under the two- tiered
profits tax rates regime, the first HK$2,000,000 of profits
of the qualifying group entity will be taxed at 8.25%, and
profits above HK$2,000,000 will be taxed at 16.5%. The
profits of group entities not qualifying for the two-tiered
profits tax rates regime will continue to be taxed at a flat rate
of 16.5%. There is no impact to the Group as the Group
does not have any assessable profit in Hong Kong.

Hong Kong Profits Tax has not been provided for the years
ended 31 December 2020 and 2019 as the Group has
sufficient tax losses brought forward to set-off against both
years’ assessable profits.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the
“EIT Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law,
the tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% for both years.

Macau Complementary Tax is calculated at 12% of the
estimated assessable profits for both years.

R2018F3A21H » BB AERIB2017
FREUEED) (BT KB ER(EHE
=]) > SIAFEFRMAEH - EHERRK
2018F3H28HEREM AEE UK
LHAE BREFMESHEMARST @ §ES
& B = 2 52,000,000 7T 8 % FI B R &
8.25% - TMmiAi@2,000,0005% 7T A Y F £
KAIE16.5% o TNFE FS T MR HIAE
B EAEF A B EIR16.5%m B —Fi =R
ME o ARAEBERN BB W BT R
mA I EE A EEEKTE -

HZE2020F 201912 A31 B IEFE X
EREBEBRNER  DRAEERERE
B 18 R LABE 4 DA S5 R (B 4F /8 MO FE sR B0
FETBL

REFECEMETE(EERMETRED
REXMBVAERIED - PEIKEAR
R EFE R R 525% -

AP BT 13 7 70 B T ok LR T M e 22
B FI129%2 & -
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streams.

12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) 12. FR8HIFA X (&)
The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to FRAMEHRASEGEERREMEZEI
the loss before taxation per consolidated statement of profit wmERFTYIBRTBIEE 2 HRAT
or loss and other comprehensive income as follows:
2020 2019
20204 20194
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FHTT
(Restated)
(& E5)
Continuing operations HEREEK
Loss before taxation BRELRIEE (3,025) (39,527)
Tax credit at the Hong Kong Profits REBNEHE16.5%
Tax rate at 16.5% (2019: 16.5%) (20194F : 16.5%) 51 & HY
RIEH B (499) (6,522)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible  FhatE &8 2 Al H1B B S A9
for tax purpose ik 711 4,662
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax FLEFE 1 2 BEREFR U AR
purpose M E (125) (77)
Tax effect of temporary difference not ~ KIERIREF EZAT BT E
recognised 82 -
Effect of different tax rates of RE M RLERE R & E M B AR
subsidiaries operating in other RN RS2
jurisdiction (119) (178)
Tax effect of estimated tax losses not ~ FHERGETHIBBENHEE T L
recognised 266 2,788
Tax reduction TR IE R (316) (399
Underprovision in prior years BAEFERETR 11 -
Income tax expense FSRiR 2 11 174
At the end of the reporting period, the Group has estimated RIBERR - AEEEFGHTABATIE
unused tax losses of HK$12,853,360 (2019: (restated) JE51812,853,360% 7T (20194 : (K &E5I)
HK$11,245,498) available for offset against future profits. 11,245,498 7T) * % 538 AJ K 85 R 2 s
No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of the A o PRI S FRBOATER - Bt
tax loss and impairment loss recognised in respect loan and HMIEEEERELNIBEERREER R
other receivables due to the unpredictability of future profit H A R G IR HERRREE1E o
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13. DISCONTINUED OPERATION 13. RIREHER
During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group REZ2019F12A31HILEE - K&EE
entered into a share purchase agreement with an BEVE=FAIERRGE  AEHEH
independent third party to dispose of its entire 51% R RIEE &5 B (BURR) B IR A 7] R ALt B A Rl
equity interest in Qihui Group (International) Limited and (I REEE]) (HETASERNRE
its subsidiaries (collectively referred as the “Qihui Group”), ERRBEAER) 2 2E51%KE - HEE
which carried out the Group’s mobile app business. The R2019F 2R ©

disposal was completed in 2019.

The loss for the period from the discontinued mobile app BRIEgEREEAEREBHENEER
business is set out below. YT o
2020 2019
20204 20194
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FEx FH&T

Loss from mobile app business for HRNREEREXELEE

the period - (31)
Gain on disposal of mobile app HERBERAERERH KE

business - 322
Profit for the period B A ) - 291
Profit for the period attributable to: FEAE BRI A -

- Owners of the Company S N/NCIEZ SN - 306

- Non-controlling interest - FEIE R - (15)

- 291

TECBEER | EHER (ZER) ARAE — 133



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e I RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & ZE20209F12 A31H L FE

13. DISCONTINUED OPERATION (Continued) 13. AR IEKEEK (@)
Loss from mobile app business for the period which have EEtALGZEBER REMEE KR RN
been included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss MENERENEBEENT -

and other comprehensive income, were as follows:

2020 2019

20204 20194

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FAT

Revenue e - -
Cost of sales SHE AR - -
Other income RN - -
Operating expense KR - (31)
Other gains or losses H Uik B8 - -

Impairment loss recognised on trade St & 5 FE W IERER AR EEE

receivables - B
Loss before tax BRA% AT ET 18 - (31)
Income tax expense FIS i - -
Loss for the period/year Hi,/F g8 - (31)
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13. DISCONTINUED OPERATION (Continued) 13. AR IEKREEK (@)
Loss for the period from discontinued operation has been AR TSR R 18 T AN B T 51 &
arrived at after charging: IE1§ 1SH -
2020 2019
20204 2019%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHIT
Depreciation of property, M - BMEERETE
plant and equipment - 2
Operating lease expense in respect of  MAEYWENKELHEM S
office premises = -
Employee benefits expense: BERAMNMAX :
- salaries, allowances and benefitsin =~ — 4% - EEEREWREF
kind = -
- contributions to retirement benefits ~ — B REFFT LR
scheme = -
During the year ended 31 December 2019, mobile app HE2019F12A318ILEE » moER

business contributed HK$188,730 net cash inflow to the
Group’s operating cash flows and HK$92,620 net cash
outflow to the Group’s investing cash flows. No financing
cash flow was derived from mobile app business. The
mobile app business was discontinued since 2019.

The carrying amounts of the assets and liabilities of the
Qihui Group at the date of disposal are disclosed in note 36
to the consolidated financial statements.

RBAXBRIAEEREHRETHKEAS
MAEF188, 730 BT R R ASERER
TIMEB RIS FEE2,6208 7T ©
//|b@rm$it¥$ﬁimﬁ/§ﬁ%um£°
m@JFﬁHkT%ﬁ“@2019%%1%%‘«

REEENHEAHNEERBEZRE
ERAR A B 5 Mk MY FE 36 FE
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14. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 14. EEME
The emoluments of directors and the chief executive for the HZE2020F X2019F12A318 EFER
years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019 are as follows: EERITETHAEMESHAT :

Year ended 31 December 2020

HZ2020F12831ALEE
Contributions  Equity-settled
Salaries to retirement share-based
and other benefit payment
Fees benefits Bonus scheme expense Total
ek BAER REEE
e  HtER %t SRR ROGREX CH
HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$000  HK$'000
TER TER TER THET TET TET
Executive directors HTEE
Hung Yuen Kin® AR fE - 604 - - - 604
Li Ka Yee Daphne FRED - 542 - - - 542
Non-executive director FH{TES
Lui Man Wah’ B3 163 - - - - 163
Independent non- BUFHTES
executive directors
Wong Chi Ling? HTR® 98 - - - - %
Wong Ling Yan Philip? ~ HER® 9 - - - - 9
Lee Man Yeung® E3g:2 ] - - - - 98
Total emoluments @ 457 1,146 - - - 1,603
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14. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued) 14. EEME @)
Year ended 31 December 2019
BE2019F12A31ALEE
Contributions Equity-settled
Salaries to retirement share-based
and other benefit payment
Fees benefits Bonus scheme expense Total
Fek R RiEsEE
e  Htid ®Re AR RONRAX =
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THET TAT THT TR TR
Executive directors HiTEE
Tang Yau Sing’ HEE - 2,993 - 16 = 3,009
Wong Siu Hung, Patrick! & /D - 673 - 12 - 685
Hung Yuen Kin® ARiRfE - 129 42 2 - 173
Li Ka Yee Daphne'® FRE° - 149 67 - - 216
Non-executive directors FH{TES
Chen Xiao® BRigo 12 - - - - 12
Lui Man Wah’ B3 63 - - - - 63
Independent non- BUFHTES
executive directors
Wen Kai? B2 100 = = = 17 117
Tsang Zee Ho PauP ZRR 224 - - - 50 274
Tse Chi Wai? i 115 - - - 17 132
Wang Yan® T 67 - - - - 67
Lau Fai Lawrence® 2|z 67 - - - = 67
Wong Chi Ling? TR 38 = = = = 38
Wong Ling Yan Philip® ~ &ER® 38 - = = = 38
Lee Man Yeung® FF 38 - - - - 38
Total emoluments ame 762 3,944 109 30 84 4,929
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14.

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

! Resigned as an executive director on 6 November 2019.

2 Appointed as independent non-executive directors on 24
January 2018 and resigned on 31 May 2019.

S Appointed as an independent non-executive director on 24
January 2018 and resigned on 6 November 2019.

4 Appointed as executive director on 15 April 2019 and resigned
on 6 November 2019.

9 Appointed as an executive director on 16 October 2019.

© Appointed as a non-executive director on 15 April 2019 and
resigned on 20 May 2019.

g Appointed as a non-executive director on 16 October 2019.

S Appointed as independent non-executive directors on 15 April
2019 and resigned on 6 November 2019.

® Appointed as independent non-executive directors on 16
October 2019.

L Appointed as an executive director on 16 October 2019 and
resigned on 4 December 2020.

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were
for their services in connection with the management of the
affairs of the Company and the Group. The non-executive
directors’ and independent non-executive directors’
emoluments shown above were for their services as
directors of the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the independent
non-executive directors were granted share options, in
respect of their services to the Group under the share
option scheme of the Company. There were no share
options granted during the year ended 31 December 2020.
Details of the share option scheme are set out in note 37 to
the consolidated financial statements.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, no amount
(2019: Nil) was paid or payable by the Group to the
directors or any of the five highest paid individuals set out
in note 15 as an inducement to join or upon joining the
Group or as compensation for loss of office. There was no
arrangement under which a director waived or agreed to
waive any emoluments for the both years.

Except for a loan from Lui Man Wah, as detailed in note 31
to these consolidated financial statements, no significant
transactions, arrangements and contracts in relation to
the Group’s business to which the Company was a party
and in which a director of the Company and the director’s
connected party had a material interest, whether directly
or indirectly subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e IR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z2020512 A31H L FE

15. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 15. AEESHES
The five highest paid employees of the Group during the FRNEAEEREERHEETBEMBE
year included two (2019: two) directors, details of whose £(2019F : MBES) ' EFHFMFBER
remuneration are set out in note 14 to the consolidated RAMBREMF14FHE - FREHT
financial statements. Details of the remuneration for the year =%019F : ZR)EmHEE BIIER
of the remaining three (2019: three) highest paid employees RAEEMIFFTEITHRAB)NTMFS
who are neither a director nor chief executive of the N

Company are as follows:

2020 2019
20204 2019%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Salaries and other benefits e REMET 1,792 1,791
Discretionary bonuses B IEAT 53 153
Contributions to retirement benefits RIRAEFIET B0 LR
scheme 36 51
1,881 1,995
The number of highest paid employee who are not directors MeENFLATHEmMTIFESN R T E
whose remuneration fell within the following bands: BAZ:
2020 2019
20204 2019%F
Nil to HK$1,000,000 £ 21,000,000/ 7T 3 S
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16. LOSS PER SHARE
Continuing operations
The calculation of basic and diluted loss per share for

continuing operations attributable to the owners of the
Company is based on the following data:

16. BREE

RFEREXK

ARRRHEE ANBEREREEBNERE
REEERETIRIBA T RIBE ¢

2020 2019
20204 2019%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
(Restated)
€<="27))
Loss for the year attributable to owners RN &IHEA AEIHFEREE
of the Company (2,847) (89,189)
2020 2019
20204 2019%F
Number of ordinary shares ZEBREE
Weighted average number of ordinary ~ FA AT E S E A R EHEEEH
shares for the purposes of basic and & 8 A% it S 5 &1
diluted loss per share 432,000,000 432,000,000

For the year ended 31 December 2020, dilutive loss per
share has not been presented as there is no potential
dilutive shares outstanding (2019: no dilutive effect to the
basic loss per share from continuing operations arising from
the outstanding share options).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e IR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z2020512 A31H L FE

16. LOSS PER SHARE (Continued) 16. BREE @)
Continuing and discontinued operations BERRIEREEK
The calculation of basic and diluted loss per share RARIHEANEESRERNREEEET)
attributable to the owners of the Company is based on the BATEURETE

following data:

2020 2019
20204 2019%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHEIT
(Restated)
€<="27))
Loss for the year attributable to owners RN &IHEA AEIHFEREE
of the Company (2,847) (38,883)
The denominators used were the same as those set out FTAERIEEE X FREiF B L& EBH
above for the continuing operations. EEMER -
Discontinued operation BRI ETE
The earnings per share for discontinued operation was as RIFTREXBHERENET
follows:
2020 2019
20204 2019%F
HK cents HK cents
Al AL
Basic BN - 0.07
The calculation of the earnings per share for the BRIEREEBOERE MR AT EAEG
discontinued operation was based on: ®:
2020 2019
20204 2019%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FBT FH&T
Profit for discontinued operation RATEE AR I EEE T
attributable to owners of the i )
Company - 306
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e I RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & ZE20209F12 A31H L FE

17. DIVIDENDS 17. BRE

EETEZRMNEZ2020F12A318 1k
FEMTARIAKE (20194 @ #) o

The directors do not recommend the payment of any final
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2020 (2019: Nil).

18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 18. Y% - EMERE
Furniture
Leasehold Office Motor and
improvements  equipment vehicles fixtures Total
HEEE BLERE AE BRAREE &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT TR AT THT THL
Cost B
At 1 January 2019 R2019F1A1H 1,840 753 480 1,331 4,404
Additions during the year FANRE - 91 = = 91
Written off g (688) = = = (688)
Disposal of subsidiaries & B B 2 7] (i 3£36)
(note 36) (838) 62) - (104) (1,004)
At 31 December 2019and ~ M2019F 12318 K
1 January 2020 202041 A1H 314 782 480 1,227 2,803
Additions during the year FARE - 30 - - 30
At 31 December 2020 MW2020%12A31H 314 812 480 1,227 2,833
Accumulated depreciation ZRFHTERREE
and impairment
At 1 January 2019 #2019%1 418 865 447 78 339 1,729
Charge for the year FNERE 317 154 158 212 841
Written off ik (688) = = = (689)
Disposal of subsidiaries & HT B A A (i E36)
(note 36) (382) (47) - (100 (529)
At 31 December 2019and ~ M2019F12A318 K
1 January 2020 202041 A1H 112 554 236 451 iF398
Charge for the year FRRE 64 142 160 213 579
At 31 December 2020 20205128318 176 696 396 664 1,932
Carrying values REE
At 31 December 2020 2020128318 138 116 84 563 901
At 31 December 2019 #H2019E12A31H 202 228 244 776 1,450
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z2020512 A31H L FE

18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

The above items of property, plant and equipment are
depreciated on its cost less their residual value on a
straight-line basis at the following rates per annum:

Leasehold improvement 33.33%
Furniture and fixtures 20%
Office equipment 20%
Motor vehicle 20%

No impairment was made for the years ended 31 December
2020 and 2019, as there were no impairment indicators.

19.

18. Y% - SRR RAE (8

bz - B NGEREIR B IR T AIE R
RARERE - LEREAENE :

HEEE 33.33%
RMRES 20%
PRERME 20%
bt 20%

AR EREDRR - Bl Z£2020%F k2019
F12A31BILFEWVEHRRE -

GOODWILL 19. &
HK$’000
FHET
At 1 January 2019, 31 December 2019, #2019F1 818 - 2019128311 -
1 January 2020 and 31 December 2020 202051 H1H &2020F12831H 1,399

Particulars regarding impairment testing on goodwill
are disclosed in note 21 to the consolidated financial
statements.

20. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

ANERRENRNDFERAGAMBERE
B 01 S EE o

20. EEEE

Club
membership
BEREE
HK$’'000
FAETT

At 1 January 2019, 31 December 2019,
1 January 2020 and 31 December 2020

M2019F1H18 - 201912H31H8 -
2020515 1HK20205612H31H

330

The club membership has indefinite useful life and is carried

at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. The

fair value of club membership is higher than the carrying
amount.

RLEE e R E AR FHER - HAAREA
ZETREEER - BEHERATES
REREE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e I RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z2020F 12 A31H L FE

21.

IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON GOODWILL

For the purpose of impairment testing of goodwill as set out
in note 19 to these consolidated financial statement, the
balance of goodwill has been allocated to CGU of exhibition
and trade show business and related services.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the directors of
the Company determine that there is no impairment loss on
goodwill (2019: nil).

The recoverable amount of the exhibition and trade show
CGU as at 31 December 2020 and 2019 have been
determined based on a value in use calculation. The
calculation uses cash flow projections based on financial
budgets approved by management covering a 5-year
period, and pre-tax discount rate of 17.2% (2019: 16.2%).
Cash flows beyond the 5-year period are extrapolated
using a steady 2.5% (2019: 2.5%) growth rate. This growth
rate is based on the relevant industry growth forecast and
does not exceed the average long-term growth rate for
relevant industry. Other key assumptions for the value in use
calculations relate to the estimation of cash inflows/outflows
which include budgeted sales and gross margin, such
estimation is based on management’s expectations for the
market development.

The management believes that any reasonable possible
change in any of the these assumptions would not cause
the aggregate carrying amount to CGU to exceed aggregate
recoverable amount of CGU.
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22.

23.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z2020512 A31H L FE

EQUITY INSTRUMENTS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

22.

BAVEFT AR MEE RS RAE
THA

2020 2019
20204 20194
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET

FELEMHES

Unlisted securities

The above unlisted securities represent the Group’s equity
interest in SNC Limited (“SNC”), a company incorporated in
the Cayman Islands. The Group hold 9.09% equity interest
in SNC. SNC is engaged in digital asset management,
exchange, advisory and related business in Hong Kong.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, a full
impairment loss of HK$1,423,000 was recognised through
other comprehensive income. Details of the fair value
measurements for the year ended 31 December 2019
are disclosed in note 40 to the consolidated financial
statements.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, SNC entered
into voluntary liquidation and was dissolved with no
residual value on 17 September 2020. Accordingly, the
Group’s equity interest in SNC was written off and the fair
value through other comprehensive income reserve was
reclassified to accumulated losses.

FitdE EMESHIEAEBMNSNC Limited
([SNC B Az  ZRARRNHAEHS
AL o REEFABSNC 9.09%H) AR
Az c SNCERAEREHFTEESHE
R5 - B RAEEER -

HZE2019F12A31HILFE » 2ERE
E5181,423,000/8 0 EFE B EM 2R A
R - B E2019F12A31HIEFENA
FEFAEFBREE PV ERRMF40H

?go

HE20205 12831 IEEE - SNCH# A
BEEERERF - WHR2020F98 178
AR - WEREE - At - NEBENSNCH
AHEZ T LAMSE - MZQAFEFAEMS
AR FHEET DO EEBRETEE -

LOAN RECEIVABLES 23. EWEFR
2020 2019
20204 20194
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Fixed-rate loan receivables within one ~ —FAKE BEEKRE R

year
Less: allowance for credit losses

W EEEREE
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z2020F 12 A31H L FE

23. LOAN RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Included in loan receivables as at 31 December 2018 were
two loans with a principal amount of HK$5,000,000 (“Loan
A”) and RMB10,000,000 (equivalent to HK$11,602,822)
(“Loan B”), respectively, advanced to independent third
parties, with details as follows:

(1) In respect of Loan A, the amount carried interest at
1% per month and is repayable on 24 February 2019.
During the year ended 31 December 2019, it has
come to the notice of the Group that the cheque in
the amount of HK$5,350,000 drawn by the borrower
in favour of the Group for the full settlement of Loan
A and the interest accrued was dishonoured. Loan A
and the interest accrued were subsequently settled in
full during the year ended 31 December 2019.

(2) Inrespect of Loan B, it originally carried interest at 4%
per month and was repayable in May 2018. Following
a supplementary agreement entered with the borrower
(the “Borrower”), the terms of Loan B was revised to
interest bearing at 1% per month and repayable in
May 2019. Loan B is secured by a pledge of the entire
share capital in an entity (the “Entity”) wholly owned by
the Borrower. Loan B was advanced to the Borrower
for the purpose to provide financial assistance to the
Entity to acquire a 10% interest in a business engaged
in lottery related business in the Mainland China (the
“Target Business”). As at date of the consolidated
financial statements, the Entity has not yet acquired
the 10% interest in the Target Business. However, the
Entity has advanced a convertible loan of the same
amount due on the same date as Loan B to the Target
Business (“Loan C”). Loan C may be convertible at
the option of the Entity to acquire 10% interest in the
Target Business. On 12 March 2019, the Group, the
Entity, the Borrower and the Target Business entered
into an agreement, whereby repayment at the maturity
date by the Target Business on Loan C will be directly
paid to the Group as the repayment of Loan B. The
management has assessed Loan B for expected
credit losses and has determined that Loan B was
credit impaired and has recognised an impairment loss
of HK$9,627,052 for the year ended 31 December
2018. The impairment loss was determined based on
the financial position of the Target Business as at 31
December 2018. No interest income was recognised
on Loan B during the year ended 31 December 2018.
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24.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z2020512 A31H L FE

LOAN RECEIVABLES (Continued) 23. EWER (@)

A further impairment loss of HK$1,751,533 was recognised BN AEERETEZRBER FDEZEWK
during the year ended 31 December 2019 as the Group has B - R EE2019F 1231 IEFE#
determined that there is no realistic prospect of recovery in — SRERREE 11,751,533 7T °

relation of Loan B.

Details of impairment assessment of loan receivables for the EBHE2019F12A31H IEFEMEIR
year ended 31 December 2019 are set out in note 40. EFR A IEE A 40 o
TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND 24, EFREMEBERRERRLBRS

OTHER DEPOSITS

2020 2019
20204 2019%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHIT
(Restated)
(&E:7)
Trade receivables B 5 e IR 5,620 7,126
Less: allowance for credit losses B EEEERE (301) (158)
5,319 6,968
Deposits & 11,389 1,679
Rental deposits Heke 144 83
Prepayment TEfTRIE 164 128
Other receivables H fth pE kIR 8 76
17,024 8,934
Less: deposits paid for securing B BESTRRIERBEEE T
advertising space shown under BEUENENES
non-current assets (note) (=) (9,426) -
Shown under current assets IR EER T 7,598 8,934
Note: During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group entered MizE : REE2020F12A318LLFEE - &A%

into a subcontracting agreement with an independent third party,
whereby certain advertising spaces in the Hong Kong Boundary
Crossing Facilities are subcontracted to the Group. Further
details in relation to the subcontracting agreement are set out in
the Management and Discussion Analysis to the annual report.
The Group was required to pay a deposit of HK$10,500,000 to
secure the advertising spaces from 1 January 2020 to 31 May
2025. The effective interest rate of the non-current deposits is
2.4% per annum.

EEBYE=ZATUDBHE Bt
BEBOEMNETESMNESBETASE
c BN BEHENE—SHBHERE
HNEREBIREDN - AEBEMAXA
10,500,000/ L7 & A E 52020 1 A1
HZE2025F5 A31BMESE - FEENHER
BRENEBEBRANERAETF2.4% -
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24. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND

OTHER DEPOSITS (Continued)

Note: (Continued)

The Group classifies the deposit as a financial asset at amortised
cost and assessed the fair value of the deposit as at settlement
date discounted by the prevailing market interest rate. The
difference between the fair value of the deposit as at settlement
date and the transaction price of HK$10,500,000 is recorded as
a contract cost, as disclosed in note 25 to these consolidated
financial statements. During the year ended 31 December 2020,
the Group recorded interest income on the non-current deposit,
amortised under the effective interest rate, of approximately
HK$172,000 (2019: HKS$NIl).

The Group provided customers with credit period ranging
from 0 to 90 days from the date on which invoice was
issued. The credit terms of each customer of the Group
were determined by the Group’s sales team and were
subject to review and approval of the Group’s management
based on the customers’ payment history, transaction
volume and length of business relationship with the Group.

All outstanding trade receivables balances were being
reviewed by the Group’s sales department on a regular
basis to ensure that any overdue receivable was promptly
monitored and appropriate collection actions were taken.
The Group’s sales department would follow up on the
collections and the Group’s accounting department would
monitor the progress of collection. For those material long
outstanding balances, legal actions would be taken for debt
collection. During the years ended 31 December 2020 and
2019, no legal actions were taken by the Group for debt
collection.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z2020512 A31H L FE

24. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND
OTHER DEPOSITS (Continued)

24.

The following is an aging analysis of trade receivables at the
end of the reporting period presented based on the overdue

EZRNHEMERREREMEZES
()

AR BBEINNE S RKFIAR RS B
REFREBEDMTEAT

days:
2020 2019
20204 2019%F
HK$°000 HK$’000
F& T FET
Current B HA 3,653 6,732
1-30 days 1-30H 227 125
3190 days 31-90H 1,213 50
Over 90 days B0 H 527 219
5,620 7,126

Details of impairment assessment of trade and other
receivables for the years ended 31 December 2020 and
2019 are set out in note 40.

H E20204F K2019F 12 A31 H ILFEH
B 5 N E A B UG SR IE R (B R Ak 55 18 S B
40 °

25. CONTRACT COSTS 25. R
2020 2019
20204 20194
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
(Restated)
Cc=7)
Cost to fulfill contracts in relation to: BITBBENATSRENEGHZ
D%
exhibition and trade show business RENEIREER
and related services T 429 72
publications and advertising business ¥ & B & %75 6,449 -
6,378 772
Less: contract costs for securing B BEEEITRIERBEE
advertising space shown under HTEEMEMNE LKA
non-current assets (shown GIRRIEREEEIET)
under non-current assets) (1,064) -
Included in trade and other receivables 5+ A& 5 K £ 1 & U 51 18
(shown under current assets) GIRRREEEERT) 5,814 772
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z2020F 12 A31H L FE

25.

26.

CONTRACT COSTS (Continued)

Contract costs capitalised for exhibition and trade show
business and related services related to the cost to fulfill
contracts of design and production of exhibition, trade show
events and advertisement resulted in customers entering
contracts for the Group’s design and production which are
still under process at the end of the reporting date. There
was no impairment on the contract cost during the year.

Contract costs capitalised for publications and advertising
business related to the time value of money arising from
the deposit to secure advertising space of approximately
HK$1,064,000, as disclosed in note 24 to these
consolidated financial statements, and costs to fulfill
contracts for advertising business arising from prepayments
for short term rental of advertising spaces of approximately
HK$5,385,000. There was no impairment on the contract
cost during the year.

FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group
entered into a lease arrangement with an independent
third party for storage space (the “Head lease”), with the
corresponding lease liabilities recognised in note 32 to
these consolidated financial statements, in order to provide
sub-leasing to a separate independent third party (the “Sub-
lease”). The term of the lease and sub-lease entered into is
2 years. All interest rates inherent in the leases are fixed at
the contract date over the lease terms.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z2020512 A31H L FE

26. FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES (Continued) 26. FiEHEEWFIEGE
Since the term of the Head lease and Sub-lease are the HREHEERSHENFHAR - ~EEE
same, the Group transferred substantially all the risks EHEEEFMERNBARE S AR XE
and rewards from ownership of the underlying asset, and W Ao B AREHE @ KILHE
therefore classified the Sub-lease as a finance lease and REREEEANEREEE - WS M
derecognised the right-of-use asset related to the Head IR E FEEER AR A HEREYGKIE - 40
lease and recognised the net investment in the sub-lease Miﬁ?\/\ﬁﬁk#ﬁzﬂ%ﬁﬁ TOFTHRER - AR TE
as finance lease receivables. The net gain arising between REOERAEEERS Tﬂﬂ’ﬁxﬁ%%ﬁZF’ﬁF
the derecognised right-of-use asset and the net investment A H) R YR R B R S B 1R A TR
in the sub-lease is recognised in other gains or losses,
as disclosed in note 9 to these consolidated financial
statements.
The carrying amount of finance lease receivables and the BEHE YW SIEN BRI E R FAZ B0
movements during the year are as follows: I
2020 2019
20204 2019%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHT
Carrying amount at 1 January M1 A1E/EREE - -
New leases g 927 -
Interest income recognised during the A RER A F B UK A
year 23 -
Payments received SEENEN (480) =
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 36) &K B R R (M 5E36) - -
Carrying amount at 31 December K12 A31BHMEREE 470 -
Analysed into: DA -
Current portion BIEREE 7 470 =
Non-current portion FEBNERES 7> - -

(Z)) BR23 — 151



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e I RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z2020F 12 A31H L FE

26. FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES (Continued) 26. wlEHEEWRIE (@)
Total minimum lease Present value of minimum
payments lease payments
REEESRERE REAESTRERE
2020 2019 2020 2019
20204 20194F 20204 20194F
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET TFET FET FABTT
Finance lease receivables &h& & fE WK
comprises HBE
Within one year —FRA 480 = 470 =
Less: Unearned finance & : AREIHE 75
income WA (10) = - =
Present value of minimum &K &~
lease payments A 470 = 470 =

As at 31 December 2020, the interest rate implicit in the
above finance lease is 5.06% per annum.

No aging analysis based on due dates of the finance lease
receivable instalments which are past due (instalments
which are not yet due at the end of the reporting period are
excluded) is presented as the finance lease receivables is
paid in advance.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group
entered into a lease arrangement with an independent third
party in order to secure the storage space, details of which
the corrsponding lease liabilities was recognised in note 32
to these consolidated financial statements.
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28.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z2020512 A31H L FE

BANK BALANCES AND CASH
Bank balances

Bank balance comprise cash and short-term bank deposits
with a maturity period of three months period or less bearing
prevailing market interest rates. As at 31 December 2020,
the interest rate range from 0.01% to 0.1%. (2019: 0.01%
to 0.1% per annum).

27. RITEHRES

RITHER

RITEHRBIERSURR =M A AR
B R RIRIT T I5 A R B AR BRTT
TFFR - 202012 A31H » FHRNF
0.01%%20.1% (20194 : FF|%L0.01% =2
0.1%) °

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 28. ES RHMENSKE
2020 2019
20204 20194
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
(Restated)
(&E7)
Trade payables B SN A 4,131 1,392
Other payables H fth fE T 50IR 215 15
Accrued expenses (Note) FEET & A (M5 4,210 5,793
8,556 7,200

Note: Accruals mainly consist of accrued staff costs and accrued
professional fee.

All of the trade payables are expected to be settled within
one year or are repayable on demand.

During the year, the credit period granted by the suppliers
are generally ranging from 0 to 60 days (2019: O to 60
days).

Mz : B EREXEREREEIKRARET
HEER -

EHMAE S RNKESN —FREER
RERER -

HEBRFARTHEESR KRN T0oz
B60H (20194 : 0E60H) °
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28. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Continued) 28. EZ K HMESFIE (&)

The following is an aging analysis of trade payables at the

AT RREZAH2IINE H RN FHIAR

end of the reporting period presented based on the invoice WEBRRR DN -
dates:
2020 2019
20204 20194
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
(Restated)
(&&=75)
0—-60 days 0-60H 2,963 1,136
61-90 days 61-90H 195 256
Over 90 days B0 H 973 =
4,131 1,392
29. CONTRACT LIABILITIES 29. EHNEE
2020 2019
20204 20194
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
(Restated)
€<$="27))
Receipt in advance for exhibiton and ~ FEWREENRE ZREEE ZA
trade show project 743 365
Receipt in advance for advertisement 8 Ut & & AR 7E ;0B
service 2,241 622
2,984 987
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29. CONTRACT LIABILITIES (Continued) 29. EHNEE@
Transaction prices allocated to performance obligations RGERIEEFRRBITHNBERNEMS -
unsatisfied at end of year and expected to be recognised as WIEEKR A TS EFER AW -
revenue in:
2020 2019
20204 2019%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FHTT
(Restated)
(& E5)
- 2019 - 20194 N/A T3 A N/A 73
- 2020 - 20204 N/A B H 987
- 2021 - 20214 2,984 -
2,984 987
2020 2019
2020%F 2019%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
(Restated)
(&&E7)
Revenue recognised in the year that RFERNERTAFIEHEERD
was included in contract liabilities e
at beginning of year 987 551
Significant changes in contract liabilities during the year: RERNEHEBNERES :
2020 2019
20204 20194
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FH&T
(Restated)
(& E3)
Increase due to operations in the year P4 A E & & M50 2,954 987
Transfer of contract liabilities to revenue EH A& B EZE S 987 551
When the Group receives a deposit at the acceptance MZK%@ETMEE& ENESRERE KE
of exhibition and trade show project and advertisement HEEOFWRIMIZE  GHBEREHHAR
contracts, giving rise to contract liabilities at the start of the RELEEZWGERR -

contract until the revenue is recognised.
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30. OTHER BORROWING 30. HMER

2020 2019

20204 20194

HK$’000 HK$’'000

FaxT FH&TT

Unsecured other borrowing EEAEMER 7,000 10,000

At 31 December 2020, other borrowing included an amount
of HK$7,000,000 (2019: HK$10,000,000) advanced from
an independent third party. The borrowing carries fixed
interest rate at 12% per annum, and is repayable on 9 June
2019. On 22 March 2019, the lender has agreed to extend
the maturity date of the borrowing to 9 June 2020.

On 9 June 2020, the lender and the Group agreed to
extend the maturity date to 31 December 2020 (the
“Extended period”) and modify the fixed interest rate for the
Extended Period to 24% per annum. On the same date, the
Group repaid HK$3,000,000 of the principal amount. The
debt modification arising from the extended maturity date
and increased interest rate did not result in a substantial
modification and accordingly the Company adopted
modification accounting. Under modification accounting,
the difference between the carrying value of the original
loan and the net present value of the loan under the revised
terms of HK$446,000, discounted at the original effective
interest rate, is recognised as loss on debt modification, is
charged to other gains and losses, as disclosed in note 9 to
these consolidated financial statements.

On 1 January 2021, the Company and the lender has
agreed to further extend the maturity date to 30 October
2021 and revised the interest rate charged onwards to
12% per annum. The debt modification would not result in
a substantial modification and accordingly the Company
would adopt modification accounting. The estimated
financial impact of the debt modification is a gain of
approximately HK$3,000. The amount is not recorded in the
current year’s financial statements and would be recorded
in the follow year’s financial statements.
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31.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z2020512 A31H L FE

LOAN FROM A SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDER

On 22 November 2019, the Company and Mr. Lui, the
substantial shareholder of the Company, entered into an
agreement whereby Mr. Lui has agreed to make available
to the Company and the Company has agreed to accept
an unsecured loan facility, containing a repayment on
demand clause, of up to HK$40 million (the “Shareholder
Loan”) during the available period which will expire on 31
December 2021. The Shareholder Loan will bear interest at
2.0% per annum and repayable within 15 months from the
drawdown date.

Although the Shareholder Loan contains a repayment
on demand clause, the carrying value is recorded under
non-current liabilities, as Mr. Lui has confirmed he will not
exercise his right to demand repayment immediately until
the Group has financial capability to do so, which was
estimated to be beyond the term of the loan.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, HK$10,000,000
has been advanced from Mr. Lui. The amount is repayable
from 24 February 2021 to 12 March 2021. The loan was
initially recognised at its fair value, being the present value
of the loan discounted at the prevailing market interest rate.
The difference between the face value of the loan and in the
amount initially recognised of approximately HK$1,378,000
was treated as deemed contribution from the substantial
shareholder and credited to capital reserve accordingly.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Company
further utilised HK$13,500,000 of the Shareholder Loan.
The amount is repayable on 23 June 2021. Similarly, the
loan was recognised initially at the present value discounted
at the prevailing market interest rate and the difference
between the face value of the loan and the amount
initially recognised, being approximately, HK$1,865,000,
was deemed as capital contribution from the substantial
shareholder and credited to the capital reserve.

31. FTERREN

MR2019%F 11 A228 » AR A|EARQF]E
EREBEAET LW - Bt - akER
B 2728 A B (202112 A31H &
WAARBRE  MARFERBES
BESEAOAERS TAHARERERF
HERFERRE ((REEK]) « BRE
BERBRENR2.0%:5 - BB R
HEAREEH151E B REE -

BERREFBSRERRMGEHER - B
HEMEMASERBRE  REASSELE

B R E N & BB 1T H B SRE AR
BEEASEBMBRENMLITE - MEMR
FHEEE T ERHR -

HE2019F12A31BIEEFE  ALLEDR
783710,000,000/8 7T ° 3% 5 JAZAE R 2021
F2H24HE2021F 312 HiEEE -
BEXVPRERATFEEMRERITHSF
KW EFIRE)ER - EREELEY]
PRS2 BRI ETEA1,378,000/8 T
WEARETERRLE - WIEEFTAZ
AN o

HE2020F12A31B ILFE - AAFIH#
— B ARFRE K F #913,500,000/8 7T °
ZREAN2021E6 23 EE - AE
- ERVFERBIEIRITH IS F RAEEA
RERR  BEREERVFERSEZHE
B Z 58 491,865,0008 TG ET BALER
HE - WEt ABAREE -
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31. LOAN FROM A SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDER 31. FERFRE (&)

(Continued)

On 31 December 2020, the Company and Mr. Lui entered
into an extension agreement (the “Extension Agreement”)
which (i) extended the available period of the Shareholder
Loan facility to 31 December 2022 and (i) revised the
repayment date of the loan drawn, which originally falls
fifteen months from the respective drawdown date, by a
further eighteen months from the respective drawdown date
(the “Extended Loan Period”). As a result, the loan will be
repayable from 24 August 2022 to 23 December 2022. The
interest charged during the Extended Loan Period is two
percent per annum on the amount of outstanding principal.
The Extension Agreement constituted a substantial
maodification on the financial liability and shall be accounted
for as an extinguishment of the original loan and recognition
of a new loan. The original loan as at the debt modification
date, being 31 December 2020, was derecognised and
the fair value of the modified Shareholder loan under the
Extended Loan Period (the “New Debt”) discounted at
the prevailing market interest rate, was recognised. The
difference between the face value of the loan and the fair
value of the New Debt of approximately HK$4,348,000,
at the debt modification date, is deemed as capital
contribution from the substantial shareholder. The balancing
amount, being the difference between the carrying amount
of the original loan and the face value of the New Debt, was
charged to other gains and losses at debt modification date
of approximately HK$532,000 was charged to other gains
and losses, as disclosed in note 9 to these consolidated
financial statements. The New Debt is classified as non-
current liabilities.

On 31 December 2020, the Company and Mr. Lui also
entered into a supplemental agreement under which Mr.
Lui formally agreed to waive the overriding right for demand
of further security and assurances and/or immediate
repayment of the loans outstanding.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z2020512 A31H L FE

31. LOAN FROM A SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDER 31.

32.

(Continued)

On 6 September 2021, the Company and Mr. Lui entered
into a deed extension and waiver which Mr. Lui agreed to
waive all rights in any outstanding interest accrued under
the Shareholder Loan and Extension Agreement. The debt
modification would not result in a substantial modification
and accordingly the Company would adopt the modification
accounting. The estimated financial impact of the debt
modification is a gain of approximately HK$742,000. The
amount is not recorded in the current year’s financial
statements and would be recorded in the follow year’s
financial statements.

Movement of the loan from a substantial shareholder during
the year is as follows:

FTERRERGE

MR2021F9H6H » KARE R SLER L
EEA R MERE - Bt atERERE
RERERRIERBEE NMERKREERN S

WATEREN EHXEFETeEHERE
B AEARNRSRAEEAEIE - &
BE M RGN AKET42,000
HBIT o 2R IE N BB A K F /B % R
= MBIAT—FENPTBERE -

FRATZRREREHERMOT

2020 2019

20204 2019%F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FHET

(Restated)

(B E5)

At 1 January ®1A18 8,718 =

Advance during the year FRBK 13,500 10,000
Deemed contribution from a substantial R{ER B AR BHAKREEE

shareholder at initial drawdown date R EE (1,865) (1,378)

Imputed interest expense (note 10) HE S (FisE10) 2,615 96
Deemed contribution from a substantial R{EAEREE BEKEEE

shareholder at debt modification date ~ AR A);EE (4,348) =

Charged to other gains and losses at ~ AEHEFR G HE MUK
debt modification (note 9) Es1a Bk (F13T9) 532 =
At 31 December »12H31H 19,152 8,718

LEASE LIABILITIES

During the year ended 31 December 2019, lease liabilities
with carrying amount of approximately HK$2,784,000 was
derecongised, upon disposal of subsidiaries, as detailed in
note 36 to the consolidated financial statements.

32.

HERE

HZE2019F12A31B IEFE - REEY
2,784,000 T EG BN HENB A
AR IETER - FFIBERN R A B IR MY
5F36 °
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32. LEASE LIABILITIES (Continued) 32. HEAE®@
During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group BE2020F12A31HILEFE - AKER
entered into a lease arrangement for storage space with BUE= RN FRERBEZHE - A
an independent third party in order to sub-lease the same FA—TGFRHREREAESE TR —2BUS
tenure to a separate independent third party for a term of =7 HHAME  E—FHBHARKRS
two years with further details in note 26 to the consolidated B $R A FTEE26 -

financial statements.

The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the movements HERENRAENRFAZSMT
during the year are as follows:

2020 2019
20204 2019%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FH&IT
Carrying amount at 1 January M1 ATEEREE - 4,181
New leases g 572 =
Accretion of interest recognised during 4 I RE 52 & Fl B 1% f1
the year 18 133
Payments (NE- (250) (1,530)
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 36) 1 E KB~ 7] (M 7E36) - (2,784)
Carrying amount at 31 December K12 831 BREREE 340 =
Analysed into: PR -
Current portion BNHAER 290 =
Non-current portion FEBNERER > 50 -
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32. LEASE LIABILITIES (Continued) 32. HEEBE®@

Total minimum lease Present value of minimum

payments lease payments
BREHESRAE BREHESREE
2020 2019 2020 2019
20204 20194 20204 20194F
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’'000
THT FET TH T FET
Finance lease receivables [EWELEME
comprises BIE
Within one year —FNR 300 = 290 =
After 1 year but within —FIEMENA
2 years 50 - 50 -
350 - 340 -
Less: Total future interest & : R KK & B
expenses 485 (10) = - =
Present value of lease HEBERE
liabilities 340 - 340 -
Less: Amount due for Sk M2fE A
settlement within EERIE
12 months BB R
(shown under NVTEIR=]
current liabilities) EIET) (290) -
Amount due for P12 R EE
settlement after 12 EIHA KA (B R
months (shown under RIEREBE
non-current liabilities) HT) 50 =
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33. AMOUNTS DUE FROM A SHAREHOLDER AND
A NON-CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER OF
A SUBSIDIARY

The amounts are unsecured, interest free, and repayable on

33.

FE W IR 3R 2 B BB 1 R FE R R AR 2R
I

BRARASELN 2R RRERER -

demand.
34. SHARE CAPITAL 34. B
Movements in the share capital of the Company during the FRARRBIRAEFHMOT -
year are as follows:
2020 2019
20204 2019%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FB T FET
Authorised: ERE
5,000,000,000 ordinary shares of 5,000,000,0000% & i%
HK$0.02 each (2019: 5,000,000,000 HE{E0.02/8 7T
ordinary shares of HK$0.02 each) LB (20194
5,000,000,0000%
FIEME0.02F T EBM) 100,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: ERTRERE :
432,000,000 ordinary shares of 432,000,000/ & X E{E0.02/8 7T
HK$0.02 each (2019: 432,000,000 TR (20194
ordinary shares of HK$0.02 each) 432,000,000/% &% E &
0.02%8 T & @A) 8,640 8,640
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34. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

35.

36.

The movements in authorised and issued share capital of
the Company during the year were as follows:

34. IR (1)

FARRBDEENMBEBETRAZBANT

Number of Share
authorised Number of premium
shares issued shares Issued capital account Total
AERNEE ERTRHEE  ERORE ROEER &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AL T THL
At 1 January 2019 M2019F1A1H 100,000,000,000 8,640,000,000 8,640 94,331 102,971
Share consolidation (note) 12 & B (3E) (95,000,000,0000  (8,208,000,000) = = =
At 31 December 2019, 1 January #2019F12H318
2020 and 31 December 2020 2020F1B18 R
2020127310 5,000,000,000 432,000,000 8,640 94,331 102,971
Note: On 20 February 2019, the Company completed the share MEE ©  HKR2019%F28208 @ ARQRZXBRMDE

consolidation whereby every twenty issued and unissued existing
shares of HK$0.001 each was consolidated into one share of
HK$0.02 each.

ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY

The Group did not have any acquisition of subsidiaries for
the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019.

DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

The Group did not have any disposal of subsidiaries for the
year ended 31 December 2020.

During the year ended 31 December 2019
Qihui Group (International) Limited and its subsidiaries

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group
entered into a share purchases agreement with an
independent third party, pursuant to which the Group
disposed of its entire 51% interest in Qihui Group
(International) Limited and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred as the “Qihui Group”). The disposal was completed
in 2019. The principal business and activity of the Qihui
Group was the mobile app business of the Group and the
disposal was regarded as a discontinued operation.

Bf - BBt - = +IRFREEO.001%
THEBTRABTRERNESH R
—REIREE0.027 LA AR 7

35. WHBHKIE A A

36.

HE2020F K2019F12A31H IEFE -
AEEWEKBEAHBAR -

HEKH B2 F

HE2020F 128318 ILFE - AEEW
ELERAMBAR o

B Z2019512A318 L FE
BEEE () ERLEIRENB A

REE2019F12A31HILFE © £&H
BB E=FRIBR S Bt A%
BEHEERNMESEBER)ERAFRE
B AR (GiEREERE]) 22 351%M8%
o HEMR2019F MK - ESEEMNE
EEBRREDAAEENRBEAREAE
% REERERARIECEER -
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36. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 36.

During the year ended 31 December 2019
(Continued)

Qihui Group (International) Limited and its subsidiaries

HE M B 2 7 (&)
B Z22019F12831H L FE (&)

REEE (EER)BERAAIREHE L A

(Continued) (&)
Consideration &
HK$’000
FHT
Cash Re -
HK$’000
FET
Analysis of assets and liabilities disposed: EHEEERBEN
Property, plant and equipment W - B EERE 19
Other receivables H fth pE R IR 618
Bank balances and cash IRITHEBR LIRS 111
Amount due to a non-controlling shareholder of & — & Mf B & &) FEIEAR AR R IA
a subsidiary (114)
Trade and other payables B 5 N E b e 5k I8 @4,171)
Contract liabilities BHEE (567)
Amounts due to group companies ENEERARRIEA (3,408)
Net liabilities disposed of EHEAEFE (7,512)
Consideration received 2R (E -
Transaction costs attributable to the disposal HERGRZRE (81)
Net consideration paid BERNREFRE (81)
Add: Net liabilities disposed of meEHEREFE 7,512
Amounts due to group companies assigned ENEHETERNEE AR
to purchaser HISRIE (3,408)
Non-controlling interests FEVERR R (3,681)
Reclassification of cumulative exchange reserved R HEREH D AR 1E L HEHS
to profit or loss upon disposal b= (20)
Gain on disposal B W a 322
Net cash outflow arising on disposal: HEEEMNIRSMLIFE -
Net cash consideration paid EfRESNREFE (81)
Bank balance and cash disposed of EHERITEBR KA (111)
(192)
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36. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 36. HEME QT (&

During the year ended 31 December 2019 H £2019F12A31H L FE (&)
(Continued)

Allied Power Management Limited BHEEBERL
RENE2019F12A31BILFE - A& E
BB VE=FFMNEERR Bt K
SEHEARENEBERAR(&NE

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group
entered into a sales and purchases agreement with an
independent third party, pursuant to which the Group
disposed of its entire interests in Allied Power Management BED2E#zmE o HER2019FTK - &
Limited (“Allied Power”). The disposal was completed in HEERERNERZMEARREEER
2019. Allied Power is engaged in provision of management % e

service to its fellow subsidiaries.

Consideration &
HK$’000
FHIT
Cash ke 465
HK$’'000
FHET
Analysis of assets and liabilities disposed: EHEBEERBES
Property, plant and equipment M - SR 456
Right-of-use asset EREEE 2,436
Trade and other receivables B 5 N E b e W k1B 637
Bank balances and cash RITHEBR LIRS 9
Lease liability HERE (2,783)
Tax payable FERT AR IE (69)
686
Loss on disposal HEEE (221)
Total consideration BRE 465
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: HEEENRSRAFRE
Cash consideration received BUERESNRE 465
Less: bank balance and cash disposed of B BEHSRITESRKRS 9)
456
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37. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted a share option scheme on 23
January 2015 (the “Scheme”) for the purpose of providing
incentive and rewards to eligible participants including:

()  any executive or non-executive director including any
independent non-executive director or any employee
(whether full-time or part-time) of any member of the
Group;

(i)  any trustee of a trust (whether family, discretionary or
otherwise) whose beneficiaries or objects include any
employee or business associate of the Group;

(i) any adviser or consultant (in the areas of legal,
technical, financial or corporate management) to the
Group;

(iv) any provider of goods and/or services to the Group;
and

(v} Any other person who the Board considers, in its sole
discretion, has contributed to the Group to take up
options (together, the “Participants”).

The Company is entitled to issue options, provided that the
total number of shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all options to be granted under the Scheme does not
exceed 10% of the Shares in issue on the listing date on
16 February 2015. The Company may at any time refresh
such limit, subject to the shareholders’ approval and issue a
circular in compliance with the GEM Listing Rules, provided
that the total number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised under the Scheme does not exceed 30% of the
shares in issue of the Company from time to time. The
total number of shares in respect of which options may be
granted to any individual in any 12-month period shall not
exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any
point in time, without prior approval from the Company’s
shareholders, with such individual and his or her close
associates (or his associates if the individual is a connected
person) abstaining from voting.
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37. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

Offer of an option shall be deemed to have been accepted
by the grantee when the duplicate of the relevant offer letter
comprising acceptance of the option duly signed by the
grantee together with a remittance in favour of the Company
of HK$1.00 by way of consideration for the grant thereof, is
received by the Company within 28 days from the date of
the offer.

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms
of the Scheme and such other terms and conditions upon
which an option was granted, at any time during the option
period after the option has been granted but, in any event,
not longer than 10 years from the date of grant. An option
shall lapse automatically and not be exercisable (to the
extent not already exercised) on the expiry of the option
period.

Options granted may be exercised at any time during the
option period and are to be settled by issuance of the
Company’s shares. The directors may at their absolute
discretion determine the period during which an option may
be exercised, such period to expire not later than 10 years
from the date of grant of the option. The exercise price
is determined by the directors and shall not be less than
the highest of (i) the closing price of the Company’s share
on the date of grant, (i) the average closing price of the
Company’s shares for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of grant, and (iii) the nominal value of the
share.

The Scheme will remain valid and effective for a period of
10 years commencing on the date on which the Scheme
is adopted, after which period no further options will be
granted but the provisions of the Scheme shall in all other
respects remain in full force and effect and options which
are granted during the life of the Scheme may continue to
be exercisable in accordance with their terms of issue.

On 13 April 2018, 148,800,000 share options of the
Company (the “Share Options”) were granted under the
Scheme to certain directors and consultants of the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e I RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z2020F 12 A31H L FE

37. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) 37. BRERTE(E)

The Share Options have an exercise price of HK$0.065 per
Share Option with an exercisable period up to 16 February
2025. 25% of the Share Options were vested immediately
at date of grant, 13 April 2018. The remaining 75% were
split evenly into three tranches and vested on 13 October
2018, 13 April 2019 and 13 October 2019.

The number of Share Options granted to certain directors
of the Company were 21,600,000 and consultants were
127,200,000. The Share Options granted to consultants
were for consultancy services rendered during 2018.
The total number of Share Options exercisable as at 31
December 2018 was 74,400,000.

All of the Share Option granted have been cancelled as at
16 October 2019.

The fair values of the Share Options were calculated using
the Binominal Option Pricing model. The inputs into the
model were as follows:

Spot price HK$0.059

Exercise price HK$0.065 per share
Expected volatility 74.90%

Risk-free rate 1.84%

Expected dividend yield 0.00%

Expected life 6.85

Expected volatility was determined by using the historical
volatility of the Company’ share prices. The expected
life used in the model has been adjusted, based on
management’s best estimate, for the effects of non-
transferability, exercise restrictions and behavioural
considerations.

The estimated fair values of the Share Options at the
date of grant are HK$4,686,600. During the year ended
31 December 2018, the Group recognised directors’
emoluments and consultancy fee of HK$581,385 and
HK$3,380,927, respectively, in relation to the Share
Options granted by the Company. During the year ended
31 December 2019, the Group recognised director’s
emoluments and consultancy fee of HK$84,360 and
HK$574,676.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z2020512 A31H L FE

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

The valuation was carried out by Moore Transactions
Services Limited, independent qualified professional valuer
not connected to the Group.

At the date of grant, the exercise price of the share
options was HK$0.065. The exercise price and number of
outstanding Share Options was adjusted to HK$1.3 and
7,440,000 respectively following the share consolidation on
19 February 2019 (note 34).

No new share options were granted during the year ended
31 December 2020 and outstanding number of share
option remained nil as at 31 December 2020.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS PLANS

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
(the “MPF scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees
employed under the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong
Employment Ordinance. The MPF scheme is a defined
contribution retirement plan administered by independent
trustees. Under the MPF scheme, the employer and its
employees are required to make contributions to the plan at
5% of the employees’ relevant income, subject to a cap of
monthly contribution of HK$1,500. Contributions to the plan
vest immediately.

The Group’s employees who are employed by subsidiaries
in the PRC are members of the state-managed retirement
benefit scheme operated by the PRC government. These
subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain percentage
of their payroll to the retirement benefit scheme to fund the
benefits, the only obligation of the Group with respect to the
retirement benefits is to make the specified contributions.

The Group’s employees who are employed by subsidiaries
in Macau are covered by a government-mandated defined
contribution plan pursuant to which a fixed amount of
retirement benefit would be determined and paid by the
Macao Government. Contributions are generally made by
both employees and employers by paying a fixed amount
on a monthly basis to the Social Security Fund Contribution
managed by the Macao Government. The only obligation of
the Group with respect to the retirement benefits is to make
the specified contributions.

Save for the above, the Group has no other obligation.
No forfeited contributions (by employers on behalf of
employees who leave the scheme prior to vesting fully in
such contributions) may be used by the employer to reduce
the existing level of contributions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z2020F 12 A31H L FE

39. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 39. EXxEmERE

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net of cash
and cash equivalents and equity attributable to owners of
the Company, comprising issued share capital and reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure
on a semi-annual basis. As part of this review, the directors
consider the cost of capital and the risks associated with
each class of capital. Based on recommendations of the
directors, the Group will balance its overall capital structure
through the payment of dividends, new share issues and
share buy-backs as well as the issue of new debt or the
redemption of existing debt.

Based on the information that was publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of its directors, as at
the date of this annual report, there was sufficient public
float of not less than 25% of the Company’s issued shares
as required under the GEM Listing Rules.
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2020 2019

20205 2019

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FHET

(Restated)

(& E5)

Total borrowings [EEE Ak 26,152 18,718
Less: Bank balances and cash B RITEBR KRS (3,212) (3,603)
Net debt BRF5 22,940 15,115

Capital deficiency to owners of the KNARIHER ANBAREA

Company (7,522) (10,888)
Net debt to equity ratio FEERERIEE (3.05) (1.39)

Note: Total borrowings represent other borrowing and loan from a
substantial shareholder.
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The Group’s major financial instruments include amount
due from a shareholder, amount due from a non-controlling
shareholder of a subsidiary, finance lease receivables, trade
and other receivables and deposits, bank balances and
cash, trade and other payables, other borrowing, loan from
a substantial shareholder, and lease liabilities. Details of the
financial instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The
risks associated with these financial instruments include
market risk (currency risk and interest rate risk), credit risk
and liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate these risks
are set out below. The management manages and monitors
these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.

40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 40. €@ T H
Categories of financial instruments SWMIAER
2020 2019
20204 20194F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FH T FHEIT
(Restated)
(& &E5))
Financial assets SREE
Financial assets at FVTOCI BAFEFTAEMEE RS
SREE - -
Financial assets at amortised cost REEXAVENCREE 21,084 12,409
Financial liabilities cHaE
Amortised cost BEIHRR 30,838 20,125
Financial risk management objectives and policies tRREREERERBEEK
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PR~ U — M B 2 AR R AR
B BEHERWKFIA  BHREMER
RENZE ROTEHLERE BHRHE
MR - EffER - TERRER R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z2020F 12 A31H L FE

40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 40. €@l T A (#)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk
Currency risk

Substantially all of the Group’s monetary assets and
liabilities are denominated in Hong Kong dollars and Macau
Pataca same as the functional currency of the respective
group entities.

The Group does not expect any significant currency risk
which materially affect the Group’s result of operations.

Interest rate risk

During the year, the Group was exposed to fair value
interest rate risk in relation to fixed rate other borrowing and
loan from a substantial shareholder (see notes 30 and 31 for
details of the borrowing).

The Group is not exposed to any significant cash flow
interest rate risk which may materially affect the Group’s
results of operations in 2020 and 2019.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z2020512 A31H L FE

40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default
on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to
the Group. The Group has adopted a policy of only dealing
with creditworthy counterparties and obtaining sufficient
collaterals, where appropriate as a means of mitigating the
risk of financial loss from defaults.

In respect of trade and other receivables in order to
minimise risk, the management has a credit policy in place
and the exposures to these credit risks are monitored on an
ongoing basis. Credit evaluations of its customers’ financial
position and condition is performed on each and every
major customer periodically. These evaluations focus on
the customer’s past history of making payments when due
and current ability to pay, and take into account information
specific to the customer as well as pertaining to the
economic environment in which the customer operates. The
Group does not require collateral in respect of its financial
assets.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by
the individual characteristics of each customer. The default
risk of the industry in which customers operate also has an
influence on credit risk but to a lesser extent. At the end
of reporting period, the Group has concentration of credit
risk as 14% (2019: 23%) of the total trade receivables of
the Company was due from the largest customer and 44%
(2019: 55%) of the total trade receivables of the Group was
due from the largest 5 customers. Taking into accounts the
creditworthiness of the customers, the credit risk measures
and the historical levels of bad debts, the directors consider
that such concentration of credit risk would not result in
significant credit default exposure to the Group.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit ratings assigned
by international credit-rating agencies.
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40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

As part of Group’s credit risk management, the Group
applied internal credit rating for its customers. Certain
of the Group’s trade receivables are grouped under a
provision matrix based on shared credit risk characteristics
by reference to past default experience and current past
due exposure of the debtor. The following table provides
information about the exposure to credit risk and ECL for
trade receivables which are assessed collectively based on
provision matrix as at 31 December 2020 and 2019.

40. €I A@®

TRE R EE B R R BUR ()

1= B/ B K 6l 18 771 (&)

EAAEBEERRERN—ZD » A&
EHERFEANDBEETR - AEBH
ETESRRFEDNRELREERRE
B 2 EFEIFARBEELLRH N E AT
HRER P EEEE T oHE - TRIBIEREHE
FrEfRiEERR & E 5 ERFENTEHE
EEEBERNER - HT32020%F K20194F
12831 B IR R B R B i 1T R B AT AR o

Gross Weighted Allowance Net
carrying average for credit carrying
amount loss rate losses amount
gy B8

IREAE fiES BERE BREFE
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT FHT FHT FHT
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
(&&E7) (&&E3) €<=y (B &E3)

At 31 December 2020 A2020F12H831H

Trade receivables 2 5 EWGIR

Current B ER 3,653 0.63% (23) 3,630
1 to 30 days past due BHEI1Z=30H 227 4.41% (10) 217
31 to 90 days past due BHI31Z90H 1,213 3.05% (37) 1,176
Over 90 days past due 70 BR800 A 527 43.83% (231) 296
5,620 5.36% (301) 5,319

At 31 December 2019 MR2019F12 H31H

Trade receivables 2 5 W GIR

Current BIEA 6,732 0.00% = 6,732
1 to 30 days past due wHEF1E=30H 125 0.00% - 125
31 to 90 days past due #HA31EQ0H 50 0.00% = 50
Over 90 days past due % B R 3R 00 H 219 72.15% (158) 61
7,126 2.22% (158) 6,968
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40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

The estimated loss rates are estimated based on historical
observed default rates over the expected life of the debtors
and are adjusted for forward-looking information that
is available without undue cost or effort. Such forward-
looking information is used by management of the Group to
assess both the current as well as the forecast direction of
conditions at the reporting date. The grouping is regularly
reviewed by the management of the Group to ensure
relevant information about specific debtors is updated.

In determining the ECL of the Group’s other receivables and
financial assets, the management assessed the expected
losses individually by estimation based on historical credit
loss experience, general economic conditions of the relevant
industry in which the debtors operate and an assessment
of both the current as well as the forecast direction of
conditions at the reporting date. Based on the result of the
foregoing, impairment loss of HK$Nil was recognised during
the year ended 31 December 2020 (2019: HK$20,800,000).

In determining the ECL of the Group’s loan receivables, the
management assessed the expected losses individually
by estimation based on general economic conditions of
the relevant industry in which the debtors operate, value of
any pledged assets, financial position of the debtors and
an assessment of both the current as well as the forecast
direction of conditions at the reporting date. In the opinion
of the management, the risk of default of one of the counter
party of loan receivables is significant and accordingly, the
respective loan receivables is credit-impaired. Based on
the result of the foregoing, impairment loss of HK$Nil was
recognised during the year ended 31 December 2020 (2019:
HK$1,751,533).
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40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)
The movement in allowance for credit loss in respect of

trade and other receivables and loan receivables during the
years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019 is as followings:

40. €I A@®

TRE R EE B R R BUR ()

1= B/ B K 6l 18 771 (&)

RELE2020F K2019F 12 A31H IEF

ER

g5 R EMBWSAREEERNE

BEEEEEHNT

Trade receivables

B2 EKHE
Loan Other
receivables Life-time receivables
Life-time ECL (not- Life-time Life-time
ECL credit credit ECL credit ECL credit
impaired impaired) impaired impaired Total
EWER 2HRES HitEWHE
2HES FEBR 2HEE 2HEHEE
FEBR (KRB 8K BREE
FERE FEHE) BREERE HE L)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR THT TR THL TR
(Restated) (Restated)
(1 E=51) (i =351)
At 1 January 2019 R2019F1 A1H 9,627 8 1,915 - 11,550
Impairment loss recognised/ 2 HER,/ (E @)

(reversed),net REBETFE 1,752 8) 158 20,800 22,702
Disposal of subsidiaries HEHBAR = = (1,975) = (1,975)
Exchange alignment i 5 A% 224 = 60 = 284
Written off (Note) HsE (B ) (11,603) = = (20,000) (31,603)
At 31 December 2019 R201912A31H - - 158 800 958
Impairment loss recognised/  ERER,/(BE)H

(reversed),net MEEBBFE = 108 193 = 301
Written off (Note) ss () - - (158) (800) (958)
At 31 December 2020 #2020%12H31H - 108 193 - 301

Note: During the year ended 31 December 2020, the amounts
written off on loan receivables and other receivables of
approximately HK$Nil and HK$800,000, respectively, (2019
(restated): approximately HK$11,603,000 and HK$20,000,000
respectively) as management considered there is no realistic
prospect of recovery.

MEE ©  #Z2020F12A31HIEFE  ARERE
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40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

At 31 December 2020, the Group has trade receivables
with gross amount of approximately HK$193,000 (2019:
approximately HK$158,000), loan receivables of RMBNIl
(equivalent to HK$NIl) (2019: RMB10,000,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$11,603,000) and other receivables of
HKS$NIl (2019: HK$20,800,000) being credit impaired since
the management of the Group considered these balances
are unlikely to be recoverable or partially recoverable.

The credit risks on bank balances are limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit ratings assigned
by international credit-rating agencies.
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40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 40. €T E@&)
Financial risk management objectives and policies SHEREERERBEGE)
(Continued)
Liquidity risk HBEZE R
The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current and AEBEHNBRBENERRE KBRS
expected liquidity requirements and its compliance with BB HRULNTEETMERR - AR
any leading covenants and to ensure that it maintains HEBERAT  WRRBIESHHKE
sufficient amount of cash and adequate committed lines of B 78 B A G R DA e B G B R B R R
funding from major financial institutions to meet its liquidity HELHE o
requirements in the short and longer term.
The table includes both interest and principal cash flows. TRERNELERRERE - HREAN
The table has been drawn up based on the earliest date SEARERERNFTOHTE BHFE - &
at which the Group can be required to pay. For the year E2020F12A31HLEFE - TREBER
ended 31 December 2020, it has not taken into account of 20211 A1AEERABE T REA
the extension of the maturity of the other borrowing agreed EREEE A RN2021F9A6H BT E
with the lender on 1 January 2021 and the waiver of interest PR E R T BREREKAFE o fHF
of the loan from a substantial shareholder agreed with BRAEE  RBRERE HIRAOFI &R dh Py
the substantial shareholder on 6 September 2021. To the BRBFDE -
extent that interest flows are floating rate, the undiscounted
amount is derived from interest rate curve at the end of the
reporting period.
Weighted More than
average Within 1 year Total Total
effective 1 year or but within  undiscounted carrying
rate on demand 2 years cash flows amounts
MmEFH 15/ BB1F RER
BRA= FRER Bo12FE  REREAHR REAE
% HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$000
% TER TER TAR TER
2020 2020%F
Non-derivative financial FTESREE
liabilities
Trade and payables BH RERFE 4,346 - 4,346 4,346
Lease liabilities HEBE 5 300 50 350 340
Other borrowing Htfg R 13 7,700 - 7,700 7,000
Loan from a substantial FERRER
shareholder 14 - 24,368 24,368 19,152
Total adt 12,346 24,418 36,764 30,838
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z2020512 A31H L FE

40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

40. €I AE@®

TRAREERRRBEEE

MEE 2 /E R ()

Weighted More than
average Within 1 year Total Total
effective 1 year or but within -~ undiscounted carrying
rate on demand 2 years cash flows amounts
g5 1R BRIF REEHR
RS HIREX BAR2E  FHERERE FREAE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
% TR TEx FAT FET
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
(=31 (tz=551) (tzE51) (51 (&=51)
2019 20195
Non-derivative financial FiTESRER
liabilities
Trade and payables 2 5 RIERFUR = 1,407 = 1,407 1,407
Other borrowing Hitfg 13 10,600 - 10,600 10,000
Loan from a substantial ZRRER
shareholder 15 - 10,250 10,250 8,718
Total ait 12,007 10,250 22,257 20,125
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e I RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z2020F 12 A31H L FE

40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 40.

Fair value measurements of financial instruments

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and liabilities
that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of the Group’s
financial instruments measured at the end of the reporting
period on a recurring basis, categorised into the three-
level fair value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13 Fair Value
Measurement. The level into which a fair value measurement
is classified is determined with reference to the observability
and significance of the inputs used in the valuation
technique as follows:

o Level 1 valuations: fair value measured using only
Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities at the
measurement date;

° Level 2 valuations: fair value measured using Level 2
inputs i.e. Observable inputs which fail to meet Level
1, and not using significant unobservable inputs.
Unobservable inputs are inputs for which market data
are not available; and

o Level 3 valuations: fair value measured using
significant unobservable inputs.

LRI A@E
EMITAQAVERE

R EEL L FETENEIEEZH
BEREEHAFE

RFIEER

TREJNIREEZEHBHRELRF13
AT EEMER C=BXTFEERER
BREHR  THRAVEAEAEEZS
BTE - REHEEMRALBEZTEER
MEREEEIEREIEA TR HEAEE

M

e FEHEE:EFERE-—RIEHEAE
RET28H - HREESRABEER
BB AEAEREB)FTEZRAF
& ;

s FAME: ERE_HK2EET
HaE—RZABE28  BY R
EREATABRREZ28 - TABE
SEANEEESTHBIEZ 2805
B2RVHE: R

e FZAMHE:EBEXTAHRES
HETEZRFE -

Fair value measurements categorised into

PERNTERNAPENE

Level 1 Level 2

£-& e
2020 2019 2020
2020 2019 20205

Level 3 Total
£=4 &if

2019 2020 2019 2020 2019

2019E 2020 20194 2020 20196

HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HKS000  HK$'000  HK$'000

TEn  TEnr  TEx

Thr TEn  TEr TRz TR

Financial assets SHEE
Financial assets at VIPL ~ RATE AER
MeREE
~ listed equity sectrities - LTRAES  NATER - NATER
Equity instrument at FVTOCI  RAF{E:F A Kb
EAREHRA
T4
- unlisted securities -EETES  NATER - NATER

- NATER - NATER -

- NATER - NATER -
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40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 40. €@l T A (#)

Fair value measurements of financial instruments
(Continued)

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and liabilities

EMITAQAVEFEGE

BEEMEEL N FEBHFEE L B

that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis BEREBENAFEE)
(Continued)
Fair value hierarchy (Continued) NFEER(E)
Fair value at Fair value at
31 December 31 December  Fair value Valuation techniques
Financial assets 2020 2019  hierarchy and key inputs
20194
H20204 12A31H
tREE 12A31A AL {E AYE DVEER HEAERFERAE
HK$ HKS
BT BT
Financial assets at FVTPL
- listed equity securities in Hong N/A - Leveld Quoted bid prices in active markets
Kong
BRATEGF ARG EREE TER & RERTISAARE AR
- BB LTRAES
Equity instrument at FVTOCI
= unlisted securities N/A - Level2 Recent market an equity financing transaction
of SNC with an independent third party
RATFERARM 2 U TER E-4& SNCEE £ = F TR AR ERE
BRATIE X555
-k EMESF

The Company did not have any financial assets and liabilities
that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis as at 31
December 2020.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, there were no
transfers between Level 1 and 2.

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and liabilities
that are not measured at fair value on a recurring
basis

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial instruments
carried at cost or amortised cost were not materially
different from their fair values at 31 December 2020 and 31
December 2019.

MR2020F12A31H @ AR @) EA IR
NEEEEHAENEREENEE -

HZE2019F12A31BILEE - £ 8
F_HoMIEERS -

BEEMEEWH UL FETEBHEAEE
EHEEREEBH A FE

M2020F 12 A31H k2019512 A 31
B - NEBE AR A S 3 AT BR A £ Bl
TERAMEEREQNFETEERAEZE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e I RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & ZE20209F12 A31H L FE

41. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities
arising from financing activities, including both cash and
non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities
are those for which cash flows were, or future cash flows
will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated statement of
cash flows as cash flows from financing activities.

41.

HREETHELENEEHR

TR AREERETDELNEER
BHE DeRReIReZEY -8
MERPEENEEDEREREBIARK
Heng CRIBAIBIRA/AEHE
FARERERATERERDNRER

=
£ -°

Loan from a
Other  substantial
Interest borrowing  shareholder
payable (including (including
on bank interest interest Lease
overdrafts payable) payable) liabilities Total
Hite TERRER
RTEXH (BfEEM (BfERES
EfRFIE EfFIE) FlE) HESE -
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT T T THT TRT
(Restated) (Restated)
(lm=51) (m=51)
At 1 January 2019 2019 1R1H - 10,100 - - 10,100
Deemed capital contribution RETE - = (1,378) = (1,378)
Recognition of lease liabilties BRAREERE - - - 4,181 4,181
Disposal of a subsidiary HERBLR = = = (2,784) (2,784)
Interest expense MERX 122 1,270 % 133 1,621
Financing cash flows BEREME (122) (1,370) 10,000 (1,530) 6,978
At 31 December 2019 and R2019512R318 )

1 January 2020 2020%1 718 - 10,000 8,718 - 18,718
Deemed capital contribution RRIE - = (6,213) = (6,213)
Charged to other gains o losses at REBREER A

debt modification (note 9) YagEEnk

(Rzr9) - 446 532 - 978
Recognition of lease liabilties RHEEE - = = 572 572
Interest expense MERY = 1,027 2,615 18 3,660
Financing cash flows BERENE = (4,473) 13,500 (250) 8,777
At 31 December 2020 2020512731 A - 7,000 19,152 340 26,492
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42. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Save as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial
statements, the Group had the following material
transactions with related parties during the year:

The key management personnel of the Group are the
directors of the Company. Details of their emoluments are
disclosed in note 14.

Mr. Lui, a substantial shareholder and a non-executive
director of the Company, has granted an unsecured loan
facility of up to HK$40,000,000 during the available period
which will expire on 31 December 2021. The Facility bears
an interest of 2% per annum.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, an aggregate
amount of HK$23,500,000 (2019: HK$10,000,000) of the
Facility has been drawn down by the Company which has
been utilised to repay the outstanding loans due and owing
to independent third parties of the Group.

42, ERBEHRAIRS

Brir & WIS T INEEE S -
NEANTEREH TS

AEERF

AEBETEEEBABRARBES -
FH M FIERMT 1485 -

AR EERBRIENITESELETEE
FREIR (&R 2021F12 A31 8 f@m) 12t
& A] #40,000,0005% 7T B 4K 30 B 2R
& o LB IRFFE2%ET B ©

REE2020F12H31BIEFE - KD A
Wz mh & A& HHRE23,500,000/% 7T (2019
£ :10,000,000/870) * ZEREE AR
BEIHEANFAERBIE=FHE
BEER -
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43. PARTICULAR OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

General information of subsidiaries

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at the end of

43. T EMB A TFHIE
Ft B A B By — AR E R

RBERROAATEEHBA THER

the reporting period are set out as follows: FIEAT
Issued and
Country/place  Class of shares  Proportion of ownership fully paid
of incorporation held/registered interest and voting power share capital/
Name of subsidiary or operation capital held by the Company  registered capital ~ Principal activities
BRTR
B it/ LSNGEER YL 2o 95 BRRE/
WEARER EXER /Y% TRERER SELA dfEx FEXH
2020 2019
20205 2019F
% %
Grand Oceans (HK) Limited Hong Kong Ordinary 100 100 HK$1  Provision of management
service
b8 (BB BRAA & Rk BT REUEEERE
Ocean Media (Hong Kong) Limited  Hong Kong Ordinary 100 100 HK$100  Sales of magazines and
provision of magazines
advertising service
R ELRARAT &H LRk 1008 HEMSIIRMMS
BERE
TBC (note) Hong Kong Ordinary 67 67 HK$10,000  Provision of exhibition and
trade show service
Bt () &b LEk 100008 REEREREIRERS
Tiance Cultural Communication Macau Ordinary 99 99 MOP100,000  Sales and distrioution of
Limited publications and sales of
print and onling
advertising space
AR EEBRAT 38 LER 100,0002M9%  HERETHY - UHE
IR g - RER B
Note: TBC is a subsidiary of the Company incorporated in Hong Kong. Mzt : BLER B AR DR R B ML /T

The subsidiary has a financial reporting year end dated on 31
March in accordance with the local statutory requirements,
which is not coterminous with the Group. The consolidated
financial statements of the Group were prepared based on the
management accounts of these subsidiaries for the year ended
31 December 2020 and 2019.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at
the end of the year.

BAR - REBEEHWEATER  ZMBA
RN EREFEB A3A31H » BARE
ER—2 c NEENGEAEVBERERIRB
B EMW B AR E20204 K 2019412
A31BILFEENEEEERE -

RAFEARENB QRS BT EAER
RE 75 ©

184 — WINTO GROUP (HOLDINGS) LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2020



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR
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43. PARTICULAR OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)
General information of subsidiaries (Continued)

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company,
which in the opinion of the directors of the Company,
principally affected the results or assets of the Group. To
give details of other subsidiaries would in the opinion of the
directors result in particulars of excessive length.

Details of a non-wholly owned subsidiary that has
material non-controlling interest

The table below shows details of a non-wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Group that has material non-controlling
interest:

43.

ETERMBLFFE ()

M2 RN —RER &)

EREINARRBMBAR  ARAEER
B EBREAKEXELEE - EFR
o REFEEHMHE AR FEHERFE
BRITE ©

BEEARFEZEREZENFZENBE AR
IR

TRINRAEEEREAFERE RN
2EMBLRBNFS :

Proportion of
ownership
interest and
Place of voting power held
incorporation and by the Company Loss allocated to
Name of subsidiary place of business 2020 and 2019 non-controlling interest Accumulated non-controlling interest
20205 R 20195
ARRRE
AR LR E NEEER
HEARER E3uE REELA IREFEREENER ZitFERER
2020 2019 2019 2020 2019 2019
20205 20194 2019F 2020F 2019 20194
(Restated) (Restated)
(& =31) (& =31)
TBC Hong Kong 67% (215) (609) (555) 156 324 372
Bt 5 &%

Summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s
subsidiary that has material non-controlling interests is set
out below. The summarised financial information below
represents amounts before intragroup eliminations.

BRASERAEAFERERNHBER
AP BEEREEHN X - L THBE
P Z e R EAK B R RIMIER RS 5 o
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43. PARTICULAR OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 43. TEMBATRIE (&)

(Continued)
General information of subsidiaries (Continued) MBATN—RER (&)
TBC BLHESE
2020 2019 2019
20204 20194 20194
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET
(Restated)
(& E3)
Current assets MENE E 2,709 3,714 3,785
Non-current assets EMENE E 290 370 370
Current liabilities mEEE (2,475) (3,102) (3,028)
Non-current liabilities IEmEBEE (50) - -
Equity attributable to owners RAEHEE AEL
of the Company s 318 658 755
Non-controlling interests of L R & 8 FE1E AR
TBC HE 156 324 372
Revenue Wz 8,195 13,107 13,447
Expenses HX (8,847) (14,936) (15,130)
Loss and total BN EEEX
comprehensive expense BEE (652) (1,829) (1,683)
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43. PARTICULAR OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 43. XEMBEATFE (&)
(Continued)

General information of subsidiaries (Continued) MBATN—RER (&)
TBC(#& BLEE (E)
2020 2019 2019
20204 20194 20194
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET FH&T
(Restated)
(& E7)
Loss attributable to RAEHER A
owners of the Company Bt (437) (1,226) (1,128)
Loss attributable to FEIE AR M 2 B
the non-controlling interest B8 (215) (603) (555)
Loss and total comprehensive FRNEBER
expense for the year FHMAS B (652) (1,829) (1,683)
Net cash (outflow)/inflow KEESMSES
from operating activities (mi),/ mAFEE (958) 3,401 3,401
Net cash inflow/(outflow) REFREMENRE
from investing activities A () 358 564 (77) (77)
Net cash inflow/(outflow) MEEHEERS
from financing activities A () 458 230 (122) (122)
Net cash (outflow)/inflow Be (Rl HmA
R (164) 3,202 3,202
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44, STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND

MOVEMENT OF RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

4. XRAMBRARRBEELE

(a) Statement of financial position of the Company (a) Z<42 3B #ikR&K
2020 2019
20204 20194
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FHET
(Restated)
(B E7)
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FREBEE
Office equipment WRERME 49 134
Interests in subsidiaries R ENGIE o 105 105
Equity instruments at fair value BATFERTAEM
through other comprehensive eI EaTE )
income IR - -
154 239
Current assets REBEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries N ENGIE S 13,170 6,272
Amount due from a shareholder JE UL A% SRR IE 529
Prepayment and other receivables TEAT FRIE & B A fE
WskIE 26 126
Cash and cash equivalents REMREEEY 89 2
13,814 6,400
Total assets EEH#AE 13,968 6,639
EQUITY s
Capital and reserves AKATEE AERN
attributable to owners of the EARR#HE
Company
Share capital f& A 8,640 8,640
Reserves (et (27,106) (29,714)
Cash deficiency B A (18,466) (21,074)
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44. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 44. KD FHBEMRRRR HES S (&)
MOVEMENT OF RESERVES OF THE COMPANY
(Continued)

(a) Statement of financial position of the Company (a) ZA2 TR REK (&)

(Continued)
2020 2019
20204 20194
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHT
(Restated)
(&&E7)
LIABILITIES aE
Current liabilities REBEE
Amounts due to subsidiaries S NGRS 2,706 4,116
Accruals and other payables FEET B A K EfhpE
(NS 3,576 4,878
Other borrowing HAth &5 7,000 10,000
13,282 18,094
Non-current liabilities REBEE
Loan from a substantial shareholder FEREER 19,152 8,719
19,152 8,719
Total liabilities BERLE 32,434 27,713
Total equity and liabilities Kk BERRE 13,968 6,639
Net current assets/(liabilities) mEEE/(AfF)FE 532 (12,594)
Total assets less total liabilities BEEBEBERTBAE (18,466) (21,074)
Approved and authorised for issue by the board of EE2R2021F 107298 #L & W R
directors on 29 October 2021. ffa
Hung Yuen Kin Lui Man Wah
RER BXE
Director Director
o 2
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44. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 44. XD FMBEMRRRR HES S (&)
MOVEMENT OF RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

(Continued)
(b) Reserve of the Company (b) AATREME
Share
Share options FVTOCI Capital  Accumulated
premium reserve reserve reserve losses Total
BRAYE
FHARM
2EKE
RipEE BRERE 1 uN-1 R ER &5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T T T T T
At 1 January 2019 12019%1 A1H 94,331 3,962 - - (84,271) 14,022
Loss and total comprehensive ~ FREERZ AR YA
expense for the year (restated) 2 (& Z71)) - - = = (44,350) (44,350)
Fair value loss on equity BATEHALZE
instrument at FVTOCI KatRATART
EER = = (1,423) = = (1423)
Recognition of equity-settled ~ BARAEERHFHZ
share-based expense - 699 - - - 659
Cancellation of share options S5 EERRE = 4,621) = = 4,621 =
Deemed capital contribution ~ BEE AT E = = = 1378 = 1378
At 31 December 2019, R2019F12A318
as restated &) 94,331 - (1,423) 1,378 (124,000) (29,714)
At 31 December 2019, 12019F 12431 B
as previously reported KAIZ5 94,331 = (1429 = (123,904) (30,996)
Prior year adjustment BEFERE = = = 1,378 96) 1,282
At 1 January 2020, as restated 12202041 A18
] 94,331 - (1,429 1378 (124000  (29.714)
Loss and total comprehensive ~ FREERZAMY
expense for the year ke - - - - (3,609) (3,606)
Deemed capital contribution ~ BEEATE - = = 6,213 = 6,213
Reclassification upon equity ~ MIRATE AEA
instrument at fair value through ~ 2 EREMBEATA
other comprehensive income i 4 EFH 18
written off - - 1423 - (1,423) -
At 31 December 2020 #2020%12A31R 94,331 - - 7,591 (129,028) (27,106)
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45. EVENTS AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

46.

47.

After the outbreak of Coronavirus Disease 2019 (“COVID-19
outbreak”) in early 2020, a series of precautionary
and control measures have been and continued to
be implemented across the world. It has brought
about additional uncertainties in the Group’s operating
environment and may impact the Group’s operations and
financial position. The Group has been closely monitoring
the impact from COVID-19 on the Group’s businesses
and has commenced to put in place various measures.
Based on the information currently available, the directors
confirm that there has been no material adverse change in
the financial and operating position of the Group up to the
date of this report. The Group will pay close attention to the
development of the COVID-19 outbreak and perform further
assessment of its impact and take relevant measures.

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

As further explained in note 3 to these consolidated financial
statements, due to the correction of prior period errors,
the accounting treatment and presentation of certain
items and balances in the financial statements have been
revised. Accordingly, certain prior year adjustments have
been made, and certain comparative amounts have been
reclassified and restated to conform with the current year’s
presentation and accounting treatment.

APPROVAL OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved and
authorised for issue by the board of directors on 29 October
2021.

45. MEMERNEH

46.

47.

MR2020F W] 1EE2019F A TR F S
(TCOVID-19& B 2 1& - ERLIFER
EIREE AN E I — R FER RIEHIFEHE o
BEAASEMCERIBERT REING TR
Hx WA 2 ASENEERYK
AR o AEE—EHZ Y EEERCOVID-19%
AEBEBHTE  VEFRREHESER
Mo BIEREER EEEREEZARE
BE - REEMIT B REERRLBmEKR
THE - AEBEKE Y ECOVID-19
BIEMER - WiE— P HEFE KRR
FEEEFEE o

EEEBE T

WMZEHE VB RRMEIE—FFHA
MR EERTHAHR - MBEmKRPETIHA
NERNGARER 25D HENR °
- EHE—FRETETHE  AEE
HMOBRERETHERSE UANEARFE
ERN2HEETRE

RS I RER

EAE B HRN2021F10 290 EES
b E R ET)E -
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

EEHBHRE

RESULTS 4
Year ended 31 December
BZE12A31BLEE
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
In HK$’000 T &R 20204 20194 20184 20174 20164
(Restated) (Restated)
C=7)) (&E7)
Revenue g 29,866 20,838 14,785 29,734 35,559
Loss before tax bR AT E 1B (38,025) (39,527) (34,370) (22,677)  (24,530)
Total comprehensive expenses  F N2 X 258
for the year (3,036) (41,014) (38,371) (17,368)  (27,404)
SUMMARY OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREEBEME
Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31ALLEE
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
In HK$’000 LA F % T3 R 20204 20194 20184 20174 20164
(Restated) (Restated)
(&&E7)) (&&E7)
Total assets BEMLE 30,756 16,626 46,095 64,892 130,572
Total liabilities BREEHE 38,032 27,079 21,252 6,436 55,766
Net (liabilities)/assets (B8R, EAEFE (7,276)  (10,453) 24,843 58,456 74,806
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